
MEETING AGENDA 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 

56 CHURCH STREET 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

 
NOVEMBER 9, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 

___________ 
 

1. Approval of the minutes of the October 26, 2015 regular meeting of the City Council. 
 

2. Approval of the minutes of the November 2, 2015 special meeting of the City Council. 
 

3. Consideration:  Resolution ratifying internal fund transfers as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2015 (Park Board to General Operations and General Operations to Emergency 
Reserves). 
 

4. Consideration:  Resolution authorizing the street light upgrades (3) on Brook Manor Drive. 
 

5. Consideration:  Resolution authorizing the execution of the following service agreements: 
a. Jefferson/Blount/St. Clair Mental Health Authority 
b. Exceptional Foundation 
c. Jefferson County Historical Commission 
d. Alabama Veterans’ Memorial Foundation 
e. Birmingham Museum of Art 
f. Alabama Symphonic Association 
g. Birmingham Botanical Society 
h. Birmingham Children’s Theatre 
i. Birmingham Zoo 
j. Prescott House 
k. McWane Science Center 
l. Alabama Ballet 

 
6. Consideration:  Resolution authoring the installation of a street light on Mount Royal Circle 

(between houses 2720 and 2724). 
 

7. Consideration:  Resolution authorizing the execution of an agreement with ETC Institute 
regarding the follow-up (second) resident survey. 
 

8. Consideration:  Resolutions regarding the [roundabout] improvements to be constructed at the 
intersection of Cahaba Road/U S Highway 280/Culver Road/Lane Park Road: 

a. Agreement for Cost Sharing between the City and City of Birmingham with respect to the 
Roundabout Improvements, ALDOT Project CMAQ-3715( ) 

b. Agreement between the City and ALDOT for Preliminary Engineering 
(Project CMAQ-3715( ), Project Reference Number 100064199 

c. Agreement between the City and ALDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisition 
(Project CMAQ-3715( ), Project Reference Number 100064200 

d. Agreement between the City and ALDOT for Utility and Construction 
(Project CMAQ-3715( ), Project Reference Numbers 100064201 and 100064202 

 



MEETING AGENDA – PAGE TWO 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 

56 CHURCH STREET 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

 
NOVEMBER 9, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 

___________ 
 
 

9. Consideration:  Ordinance amending the educational incentive policy of the City with respect to 
the Director of Planning, Building and Sustainability. 
 

10. Announcement:  The next regular meeting of the City Council is November 23, 2015, at 7:00 
p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 
35213. 
 

11. Comments from residents. 
 

12. Adjourn. 
 



Minute Book 87 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

OCTOBER 26,2015 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, the 26th day of October, 201 5. The Council President 
called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, Ill, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Street Lights upgrades on Brook Manor Drive-Ronnie Vaughn and Sam Gaston 

The members of the City Council expressed their general consensus with the lighting upgrade. 
The City Manager stated that letters will be mailed to Brook Manor residents informing them that 
this matter will be considered again on November 9,2015 at which time a final decision will be 
made with respect to the lighting upgrades. 

2. Request by HorneFit Consulting to hold a weekly exercise class for four weeks in front of City 
Hall-Cody Robinson 

The members of the City Council expressed their general opposition to the classes being held in 
front of City Hall. However, several members of the City Council expressed that such classes 
may be considered in other public locations within the City. President Smith invited Mr. 
Robinson to a public hearing before the Park and Recreation Board scheduled for October 27, 
201 5 at 6 p.m. where the Master Plan will be publicly discussed. [Note: Residents expressed 
interest in similar recreational activities during the public involvement meetings held during the 
early stages of the Master Plan project]. 

3. Review and discussion of the 7 p.m. Mountain Brook Emergency Communications District and 
City Council formal meeting agendas 

Regarding the Park Board appointment, three names were submitted to the City Council by the 
Park and Recreation Board for consideration: Trenton Wright, Leigh Ann Speake, and Eddie 
Allen. The Park and Recreation Board recommended that Trenton Wright be appointed to the 
Board. The general consensus of the members of the City Council was to appoint Mr. Wright to 
the Park and Recreation Board (see Resolution No. 2015-146). 

2. EXECUTlVE SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further matters for discussion, it was moved by Council President Smith that the City 
Council convene in executive session to discuss a matter involving good name and character of an individual. 
The motion was seconded by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard. [The matter did not require 
certification from the City Attorney as it is expressly provided for in the Open Meetings Act.] Then, upon the 
question being put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

J;\Minuln 8: Agcndns'Council'i?~ IS20 I 5  1026 Minutes.doc October 16,20 15 



Minute Book 87 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith declared that the motion carried by a vote of 5-0 and then asked that the 
members of the audience be excused. She also announced that the City Council shall reconvene in the City 
Hall Council Chamber (Room AIO8) upon conclu~ion of the executive session. 

3. CE RTI FICA'l'IOX 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the work session of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A106) on October 26,2015, and that the meeting was duly 
called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and 
that no formal action or votes were conducted at said work session. 

City Clerk 

J:\Minutes L Agenda$Counci~20 l Si20 151026 Minutes doc 



Minute Book 87 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ClTY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF MOUNTALN BROOK, ALABAMA AND 

MOUNTAIN BROOK EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT 
OCTOBER 26,2015 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama and Board of Commissioners of the 
Mountain Brook Emergency Communications District met in public session in the City Hall Council Chamber 
at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 26th day of October, 201 5. The Council President (and Chainnan) called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President (and Chairman) 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Teinpore (and Vice-Chairman) 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Wornack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President (and Chairman) stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was 
open for the transaction of business 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President (and Chairman) Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at 
one time on the consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the October 12,2015 meeting Mountain Brook Emergency 
Communications District. 

Approval of the minutes of the October 12,201 5 regular meeting of the City Council. 

2015-146 Appoint Trenton Wright to the Park Board (replacing Pinkie Exhibit 1, 
Chace) to serve without compensation through October 26, Appendix 1 
2020 

2015-147 Declare certain vehicles and equipment surplus and authorize Exhibit 2 
their sell at public Internet auction 

2015-148 Authorize the establishment of an interest bearing checking Appendix 2 
account (Iberia Bank) to be used for the deposit of municipal 
court cash bonds and fines 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions were introduced by Council President (and 
Chairman) Smith and their immediate adoption were moved by Council (and Board) member Womack. The 
minutes and resolutions were then considered by the City Council and Board of Commissioners. Council (and 
Board) member Shelton seconded the motion to adopt the foregoing minutes and resolutions. Then, upon the 
question being put and the rolt called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Chairman 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Vice-Chainnan 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 



Minute Book 87 

Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Chairman Smith thereupon declared that said District minutes are adopted by a vote of 5 4 .  

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said Council minutes and resolution (Nos. 2015-146 
through 2015-148) are adopted by a vote of 5-0 and as evidence thereof she signed the same. 

2. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 1942) AMENDING THE EDUCATIONAL 
INCENTIVE POLICY OF THE CITY WITH R E S P E n  TO PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL 
(EXHIBIT 3, APPENDIX 3) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments from the audience. 

There being no comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for a motion. Council 
President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would 
prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent 
to the immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be 
waived. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared the motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Shelton then moved 
for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard. 
Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice 8. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 1942) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 5-0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 



3. ANNOUNCEMENTS RECARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, November 9,2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church 
Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.orq) for more 
information. 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council President Smith adjourned the 
meeting. 

5. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Council Chamber (Room AIO8) on October 26,2015, and that the meeting was duly called and held 
in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a quorum 
was present. 

City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-146 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
Trenton Wright is hereby appointed to the Park and Recreation Board, to serve without compensation, with the 
term of office to end October 26,2020. 

APPENDIX 1 

EXHIBIT 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-147 
WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which are 

no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

IVHEREAS, Section 1143-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, as 
follows: It is hereby established and declared that the following property owned by the City of Mountain 
Brook, Alabama is not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus property: 

Item Asset Description Serial Number Notes 
1 13333 2006 Ford Crown Victoria 2FAHP71 W36X156284 Police 

2 13694 2009 Ford Crown Victoria 2FAHP7 1V29X 123577 Police 

3 13890 201 0 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BVXAX 126722 Police 

4 1395 1 20 1 1 Ford Crown Victoria 2FABP7BV4BX123090 Police 

October 26,20 15 



Minute Book 87 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

NOVEMBER 2,2015 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Training Room A23 1 at 200 p.m. on Monday, the 2nd day ofNovember, 2015. The Council President called 
the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: Alice B. Womack 

Also present were City Attorneys Whit Colvin and Melissa McKie, City Manager Sam Gaston, Parks 
and Recreation Superintendent Shanda Williams, and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Council President Smith made a motion that the City Council convene in executive session to discuss 
a matter involving potential litigation and another involving economic development. The motion was 
seconded by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard. The City Attorney certified that the subjects of the 
executive session are allowed pursuant to the Open Meetings Act. Then, upon the question being put and the 
roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith declared that the motion carried by a vote of 4--0 and then announced that 
the City Council shall adjourn upon conclusion of the executive session. 

2. CERTIFICATION 

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the special meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Training Room (A23 1) on November 2,2015, and that the meeting was duly called and held in all 
respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a quorum was 
present. 

City Clerk 

Novcmbcr 2,201 5 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-149 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby ratifies and approves the transfer of funds as follows as of and for the 
year ended September 30,20 15: 

Ledger Number Ledger Description Amount 
1 15-1 00 1-0000 Cash (Park Board) $46,979.96 CR 
1 15-3408-48 10 Transfers to General Fund (Park Board) 46,979.96 DR 

Transfer surplus from Park Board to General Operations 

146- 1 00 1-0000 Cash (Emergency Reserves) 41,140.97 DR 
146-340848 10 Transfers to General Fund (Emergency Reserves) 41,140.97 CR 

Transfer surplus from General Operations to Emergency Reserves 

1 00- 1 00 1-0000 Cash (General Operations) 5,838.99 DR 
100-1 I 1 6-691 5 Transfers to Park Board (General Operations) 46,979.96 CR 
100-1 1 16-6945 Transfers to Emergency Reserves (General Operations) 41,140.97 DR 

Complete intrahnd transfers itemized above 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November, 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November, 2015. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,201 5, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Ratify Fiscal 2015 Intrafund Transfers 



Voucher List 
1012812015 1:24:37 PM 

Citv of Mountain Brook 

Voucher Voucher Description 
- ~ .. - 

Date Entered No Trans Status Ctrl Total Actual Total 

Trans ID Year Per Entered Ledger Ledger Description Transaction Notes OF Amount lndep Status 

b 1 I GJ09-45 GJ 0945 lntrafund Trans 28Uct-15 7 B $0.00 $0.00 I 
I 

Pooled Cash, General OperalGJ09-45 100<115, and 100>146 i D 
Transfers-Parks & RecreationGJO9-45 100<115, and 100>146 / D 
Transfers-Emergency Storm IGJ09-45 100<115, and 100>146 1 D 
Pooled Cash, Park Board GJ09-45 Trans 115>100 i D 
Transfewcity General Fund GJ09-45 Trans 11 5>100 1 D 
Pooled Cash, Storm Reserve GJ09-45 Round 146 to $75,000 from D 

100 I 
Transfers-City General Fund GJ09-45 Round 146 to $75,000 from C 

100 / 
. . . . . - - - . . .  - . . - - - . - - - - - - . . . . . . . - - - - - . .. 

Financial Unit . - . . - . - - . . . . - . . . Sum of NonIndcpendcnt 
-- - - . - . . . - . - - . . . . - - . . - . . . - - . . . . ... . - 

Gcncnl Fund 

Parks and Recreation 

Gcncnl Fund-Storm Rcscntcs C 

Gcncral Fund-Storm Rcscrvcs D 



Trial Balance Budget Period 13 / 2015 City of Mountain Brook 
- -- - --- 

Fund 146 General Fund-Storm Rcscrvcs 
- - - - -- - -- - - - - 

Begiti Balancd Etiditrg Balance/ 
Accormf Description Bridget 

-...---..--p--- - ~ _- I 

YTD Debits YTD Crcilits YTD Ettctitttb Remaitr- Bu(Igef 
- ------I-- - - --- -- - 

146-6663-6004 Overtime X 30.00 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.06 
146-6663-61 10 Benefits FICA X $0.00 S0.W $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

1 46-6663-61 20 Benefits RSA X $0.00 SO.OO $0.00 $0.00 f 0.00 

X-EXPENSE Type Totals 
Fund 146 Totals 

$0. 00 SO. 00 SO. 00 $0.00 $0.00 

$27,500.00 533.858.99 (567,718.02) $0.00 ($6,359.03) 

Grand Toials $27,500.00 $33,858.99 ($67,718.02) SO. 00 ($6,359.03) 

*I 

-- - - ---A- - - . -- --- is- - -  
-0 -- 

Wrrlnt:vtIflj, October 28,2015 
-- 



Trial Balance Budget Period 13 I 20 15 
- -- -- 

Flint1 146 Gcneral Fund-Storm Reservcs 

Account 

A-ASSETS 
146-1001-0000 

146-1 002-0000 

146-1201 9000 

146-1 260-0000 

L-L IA BILITIES 
146-2000-0000 

146-3000-0000 

146-9998-0000 

146-9999-0000 

R-RE VENUES 
14831 06-4310 

146-3206431 0 

146-34074400 

t 46-3408-481 0 

X-EXPENSE 
146-121 16510 

146-3510-6501 

146-3550-6520 

146-661 0-6501 

146-6660-6420-0501 

146-6660-6420-1 101 

146-6661-6004 

146-6661-6110 

1466661-61 20 

146-6661 -6451 

146-6662-6004 

1464662-61 10 

1464662-61 20 

Pooled Cash. Storm Reserves A $2.400.000.00 
Cash-Regions #78-355389 A SO. 00 
AIR-State A $0.00 
AIR-Other A $0.00 

A-ASSETS Type Totals $2,400,000.00 

Accounts Payable L $0.00 
Fund Balance Unreserved L (S2,400.000.00) 
Revenue Control L $0.00 
Expenditure Control L $0.00 

L-LIABILITIES Type Totals ($2,400,000,00) 

Grants Federal R $0.00 

Grants Stale R $0.00 
Other lnveslment Earnings R $2,500.00 
Transfers-City General Fund R $25.000.00 

R-REVENUES Type Totals $27,500.00 

Rep & Maint-Grounds 

Repair & Maint-Bldgs & Grounds 

Rep 8 Mainl-Veh 

Rep 8 Maint-Bldgs & Grounds 

Waste Disposal-Hurricane Ivan 

Waste Disposal-4127111 Tornado 

Overtime 

Benefits FlCA 

Benefits RSA 

Rents-LandlEqulp 

Overtime 

Benefits FlCA 

Benefits USA 

City of Mountain Brook 

Ertding Bn/nt~ce/ 
YTD Dcbifs YTD Cre(1its YTD Etjcunrb ~ t - ? ~ a i ~  Budget 

- * -- - -- - - - -- - - - - - - - - - . - - -. - - - - 

$33,858.99 SO. W $0.00 $2,433,859.03 

$0.00 $0. 00 $0.00 $0.00 

50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

533,858.99 $0.04 SO. 00 52,433,859.03 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 $0 00 ($2.400,000.00) 

$0.00 ($33,859.03) $0.00 ($33,859.03) 

$0 00 $0.00 $0. 00 $0.00 

SO. 00 ($33,859.03) $0.00 ($2,433.859.03) 

SO.00 

SO. 00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

50.00 

50.00 

$0.00 

Page I of 2 



Trial Balance Budget Period 13 / 2015 City of Mountain Brook 
Fund 115 Parks and Recreation 

-- -- 
Begln Bnlancd Ending Balance/ 

Account Dcscripiiort Birdget Y TD Debits 
-. -- .--.-----.-. - -- -- - -- - -. - ----- - -- -- - - - - - - - - - -- - - - 

YTD Credits YTD Et~cunib Rcntair~. Budget 

A-ASSE TS 
1 15-1 001 -0000 Pooled Cash. Park Board A $29.684.19 $1.234.981.83 ($1.144.637.73) $0.00 $120,028.29 

11 5-1 002-0000 Cash-Regions W78-355-389 A 90.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

lnvestmentsGommon Stock @ FMV A $34,692.00 91 6.687.00 $0.00 $0.00 351,379.00 

AR-County A $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

AR-School Board A $44,236.19 50.00 ($44.236.19) $0.00 $0.00 

AR-Unassigned A 00.00 S0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

115-1230-0000 AR-Mountain Brook Athletics A $48,401.19 $54,088.69 ($48,401 .19) $0.00 $54.088.69 

A-ASSETS Type Totals $157,013.57 SL305.757.52 ($1,237,275. i f )  $0.00 $225,495.98 

L-L IA BILITIES 
11 5-2000-0000 Accounts Payable 

11 5-21 00-0000 Accrued Salaries L $0.00 $0.00 $0. 00 $0.00 $0.00 

R-RE VENUES 

AR-General Fund L $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Fund Balance Unreserved L (5150.000.00) 50.00 $0.00 $0 00 ($150,000.00) 

Revenue Control L 50.00 $0.00 ($1,221,514.05) $0.00 

Expenditure Control L SO.00 91,272,654.07 ($98,119.98) $0.00 $1,174,534.09 

L-LIABILITIES Type Totals (Si57.013.57) $1,367,346.04 ($1,435,828.50) $0.00 ($225.495.98) 

$%?74.46 
Grants State 

Grants Local 

Approp-Mtn Brook Athletics 

Approp-Mtn Brook Soccer 

Other Miscellaneous Tennis 

Approp-MB BOE 

Other Investment Earnings 

Other Miscellaneous 

Transfers-City General Fund 

Transfers-Library 

Donations-Other 

Donations-Park Benches 

Donations-Street Lights 

Donations-Cahaba River Walk 

- - - - . . . - -. - - - a - - - - - - - . - -- - - - - -A - - - - - - - - - - 
Wrrlrrrdlg*, October 28,2015 Pafie 1 of 4 



Trial Balance Budget 
-. - 

Fund 115 Parks and Recreation 

Period 13 / 2015 
-. - 

Account 
. - -. . - - . - - - - - - - 

1 15-3409-451 0-7801 

1 15-3409-451 0-7802 

1 15-3409-451 0-7803 

11 5-3409-4510-7804 

115-3409-451 0-7805 

X-EXPENSE 
1 15-7800-6001 

175-7800-6004 

1 15-7800-601 0 

1 15-7800-601 1 

1157800-6110 

115-7800-6120 

1 15-7800-61 30 

1 15-780047 31 

1 15-7800-61 32 

11 5-7800-61 33 

11 5-7800-61 34 

115-7800-6140 

1 15-7800-61 50 

1 15-780061 52 

11 5-7800-61 53 

1 15-7800-6160 

1 15-7800-6161 
115-7800-6162 

1 15-7800-621 1 

1 1 17800621 2 

1 15-7800-6300 

11 5-7800-6303 

1 15-7800-6314 

1 1 5-7800-631 4-7801 

1 15-7800-6314-7802 

t 15-7800-6314-7803 

Description 
. - -- - - - -- - - 

Donations-Mtn Park Cir Island 

Donations-Park Lane Trees 

Donations-Zoo 

Donations-Memorials 

Donations-Friends of Jemison 

R-REVENUES Type Totab 

Salaries-Regular Full-Time 

Wages-Overtime 

Special Pay-Longevity 

Special Pay-Senrice Awards 

Benefits-Taxes FICA (7.65%) 

Benefits-Penson (RSA] 

Benefits-MedicaVDental Ins 

Benefits-Group Dental (Only) 

Benefits-Group Term Life 

Benelits-Long-Term Disability 

Banelits-Flex Plan Admin Fees 

Benefits+Wokers' Compensation 

Benefits-lnduslrial Health 

Benefits-Pre-Employment Exam 

Benefits-Drug Testing 

Alowances-Automobile 

Allowances-Uniforms 

Allowances-Declined Medical 

Development-MeelingslConf 

Development-TraveVMeaIs 

SupplieslExp-General 

SupIExp-Other Office Equip 

Misc Expense 

Misc Expense-5ldg Materials 

Misc Expense-Parksllslands 

Misc Expense-Ball Fields 

Begin Btrlatrcd 
Budget YTD Debits 

- 
R $0.00 $0.00 

R $0.00 $0.00 

R $0.00 $0.00 

R S0.00 $0.00 

R SO. 00 $0.00 

$1.186.467.00 $0.00 

City of Mountain Brook 

-- 

YTD Crcrlirs YTD Ertcumh 
- - - - . . . . - . . 

$0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 s0,oo 

s0.00 $0.00 

($3.520.00) $0.00 

SO.OO $0.00 

($1,221.514.05) SO. 00 

($71,767.35) 

($3,205.77) 

50.00 

$0.00 

($5,848.51) 

(S 1.759.10) 

($13,416.73) 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

80,OO 

$0.00 

$0.00 

50.00 

SO. 00 

50.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

f 0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

a0.w 

50.00 

($165.10) 

-- ----- .- 
Page 2 l f 4  





Trial Balance Budget Period City of Mountain Brook 
- - - - - - . - - - - - - - -- - -. 

Fund 115 Parks and Recreation 
- - - . .  -- 

Ending Balarrcd 
Remain. Btnlgcl 
- -- - 

$0.00 

$0.00 

50.w 

$0.00 

ao.oo 
$0.00 

($4.069.42) 

($18.725.18) 

$0. 00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

50.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

50.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

511,932.91 

(523,114.14) 

Account Descr@tiort 
- - - - - - - - - - - ~ - - - - - -. . - - - - - 

1 15-7890.6760-0501 ~ark&iden Field One Road 

1 15-7890-6760-0504 Parks-Parkbrook Parking Spaces 

11 5-7890-6760-0505 Parks-Irrigate Overbrook Trian 

1 15-78906760-0601 Parks-Woodcliff Play Equip 

YTD Debits 
- 

$0.00- 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$4.069.42 

$48.725.1 8 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

90.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

SO.00 

$0.00 

51,272,654.07 

$3,945,757.68 

YTD Crerlirs YTD Encumb 

1 15-7890-6760-0603 Parksdron Fence Furnace 

1 15-7890-6760-0604 Parks-Memory Triangle 

1 15-7890-6760-0605 Parks-Benches 

1 1 C78906760-0702 Parks-Sports Complex Mstr Plan 

1 15-78906760-0703 Parks-Island Improvements 

1 15-7890-6760-0705 Parks-Bleacher Railings 

11 5-7890-6760-0706 Parks-Benches lrondale Furnace 

11 5-7890676W801 Tennis Courts (112 Pd by BOE) 

11 5-7890-6760-0802 Park Restroom Facility 

1 15-7890-6760-0803 Garbage Cans for MBE Field 

1 15-7890-67604901 Parks- Playhouse 

1 15-7890-6760-0902 Soccer Field Slope Failure 

1 15-7890-6760-1001 Parks-Play Area Overhead Cover 

1 15-7890-6760-780 t Parks-Step Lighting 

1 15-7890-6760-7802 Parks-Fountain (M-132-2) 

1 157890-6760-7803 Parks-Picnk Tables 

1 15-78906760-7804 Parks-Memorials 

1 15-7890-6760-7805 Parks+Unassigned 

1 15-7890.6760-7806 Parks-Unassigned 

1 15-7890-6760-7807 Parks-Unassigned 

1 15-7890-67647808 Parks-Canterbury Park Fence 

1 15-7890-6760-7809 Parks-Unassigned 

1 15-7890-6760-781 0 Parks-Unassigned 

1 15-78906760-781 1 Parks-Island O'brooWCher 

1 1 5-7890-6760-781 2 Parks-Unassigned 

1 15-7890-6760-781 3 Parks-Unassigned 

X-EXPENSE Type Totals 
Fund 115 Totals 

Grand Totals 

- * ~  

Page 4 of 4 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-150 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the Alabama Power Company be requested to upgrade three (3) street lights on existing poles 
along Brook Manor Drive (see attached map1 illustration - Exhibit A). 

2. That the City Clerk be directed to furnish the Alabama Power Company a certified copy of this 
resolution. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November, 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November, 20 1 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I ,  Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a hue and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Street Light Upgrades (3) Along Brook Manor Drive 



Qldemanl 
crm t!! tound 

0 Commlrrknbl 
Clty ot  Mountai? a-rook , 

mtordrlwmt IuaWa 

*See attached I 

(4 AdQHl- 

- - 
See attached 

(bD R~monts. 

RnonOrwnMp 

(d) NoI CMngl Im krn~Il8Ulln~ 8 b 

a m p  
Runmr) ------ 

lSOW BPS 

4 

L.oubn 

Ccbraheada-Existing poles along Brook Manor 
* 

-d- 
OlYurlrW 

Cttoff Cobrahead-Existing pole along Brook 

I 

Upgrbde 1 

* W U R U W W  

llPll 

Upgrade 2 
II 

RplP Pllrl mMa 

* 

1 5 C - W  HPS 



I-- 

C i t y  of Mountain B r ~ c k  I- 
I" tbn -w I" 



Lighting Proposal 

City of Mountain Brook 

Brook Manor Drive 

Lighting Upgrade 

October 21,2015 

Install: 

2 - 150 watt HPS Cobraheads 

1 - 150 watt HPS Cutoff Cobrahead 

@ $13.78 ea. 

@ $15.99 ea. 

1 - 6' U ~ s w e e ~  Bracket b $6.00 ea. = $ 6.00 

Total Monthly Lighting Cost = $47.34 

The two cobrahead fixtures on Brook Manor Drive will be a "bronze" color &the Cobrahead 
near the entrance to Brook Manor Drive will be a "grayJ' color. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this quote. If 1 can be of further assistance you may 
contact me at 205-257-0135 or ~aniohns@southernco.com. 

Sincerely, 

Dan Johnson 

Alabama Power Company 

Lighting Senrices 











RESOLUTION NO. 2015-151 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into an agreement with the Jefferson-Blount-St. Clair Mental Health 
Authority, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to such minor changes as may be 
determined appropriate by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,201 5, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

JefTerson-Btount-St. Clair Mental Health Authority 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  M A Y O R  
56 Church Strect 
PO Baa 130009 
h\ounlo~n Brook, Atobamo 352 13 
Tclephonc 205.802.5802 
For, 205.870.3577 
eprte~nc@mfnbraat otg 
pcrranol omas! . LorlVoIhollo@;1aI corn 

LAWRENCE T. ODE8 
t.\ AY 0 ?. 

October 28,201 5 

Richard Craig. Ph.D. 
Executive Director 
JBS-MH Authority 
940 Montclair Road, Stc 200 
Birmingham, AL 35113 

Dear Dr. Craig: 

The City oFMountain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7"'. We appreciate your interest in partnering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

Afier much discussion and deliberation. the City of Mountain Brook has dccidedtn q te r  
into a contract for services with your organization in the amount o 
If you haven't already done so. please email a proposed contract for scrv 
(October 1.2015 to September 30,2016) to our City Manager. Sam Gaston, at 
p-q). The City Council \trill consider your contract for services at its 
November 9'' or 23" meetings. 

Again, thrtnk you for your interest in our community and city government. We look 
hnvard to a productive and successful relationship with you in FY-30 16. 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

Virginia C. Smith 
Council President 



STATE OF ALABAMA) 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON) 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on this the day of 2015, 

by and between the City of Mountain Brook (hereinafter referred to as "City") and the Jefferson 

- Blount - St. Clair Mental Health Authority (hereinafter referred to as "Contractorn): 

WHEREAS, municipalities in the State of Alabama are authorized to promote the public 

health, safety, morals, security, prosperity, contentment and the general welfare of the 

community; 

WHEREAS, Jefferson - Blount - St. Clair Mental Health Authority, is an organization 

which has as one of its goals the promotion of public health, safety, morals, security, prosperity, 

contentment and the general welfare in the City of Mountain Brook; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama desires to enter 

into a contract with the Contractor for the purpose of providing mental health services to 

residents of the City of Mountain Brook; 

WTNESSETH, 

1. That the City, for and in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter 

set out to be kept and performed by the Contractor, does hereby agree to pay the Contractor the 

sum of TWO THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED and N0/100 ($2,100?') Dollars, for performing 

the services herein provided for the period beginning October 1,2015 through September 30, 

20 16). 



2. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

In consideration of the covenants and agreements made herein by the City, the Contractor 

agrees that it shall be totally responsible for, and shall have exclusive control over the 

management and disbursement of all such monies received from the City, and that all monies 

received under this contract shall be used only for the purposes herein described: 

a. Provide relief for residents who are in need of crisis stabilization for uninsured 

mentally ill persons; 

b. Provide medication and outpatient therapy for mentally ill persons; 

c. Provide housing and treatment for mentally ill persons; 

d. Provide in - home therapy for at - risk youths who are in danger of being 

removed from their homes; 

e. Provide case management to access housing and other supports to avoid 

unnecessary admissions to state hospitals; 

f. Provide social work assistance to families; and 

g, Contractor agrees to provide any and all personnel, supplies, equipment 

necessary for the services herein to be provided. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide to the City at all reasonable times and places an 

accounting for the expenditure of funds granted herein. 

4. The Contractor shall not transfer or assign this contract or the license or any of the 

rights and privileges granted herein without the prior written consent of the City. 

5. The Contractor agrees that upon violation of any of the covenants and agreements 



herein contained, on account of any act or omission of the Contractor, the City may, at its option, 

terminate and cancel this contract and to exercise any remedy, at its option, available to it 

whether in law or equity. 

6. The Contractor agrees that it will comply with Title 6 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

assuring that no person under its employ will be excluded from participation in, be denied 

benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination on the grounds of race, sex, color, 

national origin or handicap. 

7. Notwithstanding any of the other provisions contained in this contract, the City shall 

maintain the right to terminate this contract upon proper notice, which shall be in 

writing and shall be provided to the Contractor at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

intended date of cancellation. 

8. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any notice, consent or 

other communication required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and will be 

deemed received at the time it is personally delivered, on the day it is sent by facsimile 

transmission, on the second day after its deposit with any commercial air courier or express 

service, or, if mailed, 3 days after the notice is deposited in the United Sates mail addressed as 

follows: 

To City of Mountain Brook: City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 3521 3 

To Contractor: Jefferson - Blount - St, Clair Mental Health Authority 
James A. Crego, Associate Director 
940 Montclair Road, Suite 200 
Birmingham, AL 35213 



Any time period stated in a notice will be computed from the time the notice is deemed 

received. Either party may change its mailing address or the person to receive notice by 

notieing the other party as party as provided in this paragraph. 

No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, employee, or consultant of 

the City either before or after execution of this Agreement, will affect or modify any of the terms 

or obligations contained in this Agreement. Any such verbal agreement or conversation will be 

considered as unofficial information and in no way binding upon City or Contractor. Any 

amendment to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals on this the 

day of ,201 5. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 
A Municipal Corporation 

BY: 
Lawrence Terry Oden 

Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 

WITNESSED: 

BY: 

JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAIR MENTAL 
HEALTH AUTHORITY 

BY: 
Its Authorized Agent 
Print name: 



STATE OF ALABAMA 1 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 1 

f, a notary public in and for said County in 
said State, hereby certify that whose name as Authorized 
Agent of the JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAIR MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY, a 
nonprofit corporation, is signed to the foregoing instrument and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, 
he/she, as such officer and with full authority executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of 
said corporation. 

Given under my hand this the day of ,2015. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-152 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Exceptional Foundation, subject to such minor 
changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Exceptional Foundation contract 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  OF THE M A Y O R  
56 Church Street 
PO Bar 130009 
Mounto~n Brook. Alnbamo 352 13 
Telcphonc 205 802 3802 
Fox 205 870 3577 
epstc~nc@mtnbr~ok org 
personol erne,. . LortVa hallc!:. 03' cam 

LAWRENCE T .  ODEN 
t. \AYOR 

October 28: 20 1 5 

Tricia Kirk 
The Exceptional Foundation 
1626 Osmoor Road 
Homeivood, AL 35209 

Dear Ms. Kirk: 

The City of Mountain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7'. We appreciate your interest in partnering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

After much discussion and deliberation, the City of Mountain Brook has decidc 
into n contract for services with your organization in the amount 
If you haven't already done so, please email a proposed contract for services ior r r -LW i 
(October 1.2015 to September 30,2016) lo our City Manager, Sam Gaston, at 
pastons@mtnbrook.org). The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 
ldovernbcr 9Ih or ~ 3 ' ~  meetings. 

Again. thank you for your interest in our community and city government. We look 
fonvard to a productive and successful relationship with you in FY-2016. 

Sincerely. 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

~irgninin C. Smith 
Council President 



BOAR0 OFFICERS 

October 29,201 5 
ROB CONRAO 

Prcsidenl 

DIANNE KENORLCK 

Vice Prssidcnt 

BETH ARNETT 

Treasurer 

B O & M O Y E H B E R 5  

TRlSH ACTON 

CHARLIE CARPER 

RING EOWARDS 

CINDY FRAVERT 

MARGIE GRAY 

MATI GRILL 

POBBHAGAN 

GREG JAMES 

BILL MCCARTY 

BILLY MAGRUDER 

CONNIE PRUEtT 

AOAMAHOAOES 

KEN SANDERS 

RUSHA SMITH 

ELLEN WALKER 

T J. WILLING5 

Mr. Steven Boone 
City of Mountain Brook 
P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 3521 3-0009 

Dear Mr. Boone, 

The Exceptional Foundation is grateful for the ongoing support of our program 
from the City of Mountain Brook. We would like to request the 2015-201 6 budget 
appropriation of $7,500.00 at the city's earliest convenience. A check may be 
mailed to the attention of Tricia Kirk, Executive Director, at The Exceptional 
Foundation, 161 6 Oxmoor Road, Homewood, AL 35209. 

Please let me know if additional information is required. 

Thank you, 

Amanda Terry 
Grant Writer 

1616 Dxrnoar Raad I Birmingham,AL35209 
exceptlonatfoundatlon.org 



STATE OF ALMAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

WITNESS this contract cntcrcd into this 291h &y of Octobcr 2015, by and bctwccn the City 
oCMountain Brook, Alabama, hereinaRer referred to as "City", nnd The Exceptional Foundation, Frdcnl 
ID # 63-1096855 hcrcimftcr rcfcrtrd to as "Conkactor": 

WEEREAS, Conlractor is a duly incorporaled non-profit corporition, incorporated under the 
laws of h e  Slnte o r  Alabama 

WHEREAS, Contnctor hus q x r d  to accept u General Fund appropriation from City 
hereinafter dcsigmted and to thereafter pcrform in consideration Ihemf, the herein described public services 
and the provisions of h i s  conmet: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of thc abovc prcmiscs nnd considerntion of mutual 
covenants md agreerncnL5 conuined herein, thc parties hcrcto do hcreby agree, covenant and contnct as 
follows: 

1. For the fiscal ycar cnding Septcmbcr 30,2016, Cily will pay to Contractor h c  following 
amount; S7,500, 

2. That upon rcccipt by Contractor orthe contract funds contemplated hcrcin, Contmctor 
shall be responsible for providing the personnel, supplies, cquipmmt nnd cxperlise necessury lo comply with 
all provisions, stipulations, terms und conditions o r  his contract. 

3. Con~dctor is an indepcndcnt contractor and nonc of its agcnb, servmls or cmployccs shall 
be decmed to he under control of City nor in any way shall any o r  its agents, scrvanki or employees or ohcr 
pcrsons, firms or corporations conducting business for Contractor bc decmed to be cmployccs or agenls, 
servants or employees of City. 

4. Contractor shdl indemnify and save City safe and hannlcss from any claims madc by any 
pcrson, firm or corpord-~lion against City for injuy to propcrty or person arising directly or indirectly out ornny 
activity or pursuit of Conlmctor, which said obligation ol  indemnity sball include the paymcnt by Conmctor to 
City of any and all attorneys' fccs. costs oldcfense ond judgments rendered, if my, in t'avor of such person, 
firm or corporation. 

5. Contractor shall: 

t i )  Provide to thc Cily and to the c i h n s  of the City Lhc following public services during the applicoblc 
fiscal ycar: (Ticre l i t  and describe all public serviccs to bc peflormcd by Conlrictur) 

To provide sociiil and recreationnl activities tu individuals who arc mentally challcngcd. 

6. Conmctor shall be responsible Cor providing its eligible cmployes medical, dcnlul, life 
and disability insurnnce as Conlractor shall dccm advisoblc. No qcnls, servants or cmployecs of Contnctor 
s h l l  he provided nor be eligible for medial, dental, life or disnbitity insumce undcr any policy or policies 
offc'crcd or provided by or in the nume of City or any of its ngencies. No employees of Contractor will be 
carried as an insured on any City insunncc policy nor will any Contracror employee bc cligiblc Tor n'tircmenl 
or other bencfits otTered by City to City cmployces. 

7. Contractor shnll be xsponsible for nll filing and accounting responsibilities for its 
corpomtion and ils employecs, including but not being limitcd to Social Security, all fcdcral and statc tw 
tcporting, unemployment compensation and rclircrncnt benefit.. 

8. Canlraclor will kcep complete records of all sums of moncy receivd from City und 
completc rccords of all disburscmcnts and purchases from such funds. Contmctor will submit upon request, 
and in no cvcnl I a s  than quarterly. ilcmizcd statements to the City listing dl purchases and expenditures from 



the contract funds provided by City. 

9. Audit of Funds: Contrnctor agrees to employ accounting pmcedutes which are appropriate 
to the type of opcrntioa conducted and which arc customary to similar operations. All records perbining to 
thk agreement shall be maintained by Contnctor for o period of three (3) ycars afler termination of this 
conhct, Contmctor ngrccs to nrrnngc and assumc all finnncial obligations for rcquircd audits provided for in 
grant application or the grant itsclf, utilizing the normal City Auditing Procedw.  

Contractor agrees that upon request h r n  City, Contractor will submit to and cooperate with 
periodic audits by Ule City Auditors or other City rcquestcd audit proccdurcs. 

10. Conlractor agrccs that it will cstablish and maintnin all accounting rccords, document all 
projcct cosls nnd keep all invoices, checks and finnncid m r d s  scpnratc, will makc p r o p s  rcpork us 
required by the City or othcr applicable agency or govemmentnl entity und otherwise do d l  things undert;lkm 
by City in connection with any such grant, payment or other contract by which such runds are supplied. 

I 1. Cantractor will retain all books, records and othm documents rclativc to this ngrccrncnt, 
or uny port thcreof, Sor a period of lhrec (3) ycars after project termination or close ou t  City or any other 
partics cntitlcd to such records provided in uny scpontc grant document or contract cxeculd by and betwccn 
the City und any other supplier of funds which are ultimntely paid to or for thc usc and benefit of Contmclor, 
shall have full access 10 and right to cxaminc any of said mntcrials at d l  reasonable times during said period. 

12. In the event that C o n a t o r  rhdl in any manner Fail to comply with any provisions or 
requirement of any p t  documcnl or contract or provisions of this agrerment, such failure will constitute u 
dcraulr und unlcss corrcctcd by Conwdctor within thirty (30) days following receipt of written noticc from City 
of such dcfault, shall be decmcd a brench of this agrccmcnt and City shall havc a right lo tcnninate this 
ugrcemcnt by giving ten (10) days written notice af such knninution. 

By: 
Witncss Mayor 

Conhctor (Exceptional Foundatian) 

Witness 
BY 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-153 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that either the 
Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, to 
enter into an agreement with the Jefferson County Historical Commission, in the form as attached hereto 
as Exhibit A, subject to such minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certifjl 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Jefferson County Historical Commission 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  M A Y O R  
56 Church Slrect 
PO Boa 13000F 
Mounla n Brook. A aboma 35213 
Tclephono 205 802.3802 
Fax. 205 870 3577  
cpste~nc:f m~nbtook.otg 
personal erne I . La~~Vclholla@aol corn 

L A W R E N C E  T ODEN 
?.\AY 0 R 

October 28,201 5 

Linda Nelson 
Jefferson County Historical Commission 
4700 Seventh Ct. South 
Birmingham, AL 35222 

Dear Ms. Nelson: 

The City of Mountain Brook wvould like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7'" We appreciate your interest in pnnnerinp with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

Afier much discussion and deliberation. the City of Mountain Brook & decided to enter 
into a contract for services with your organization in the amount q 
If you haven't already done so. please email a proposed contract for =ices foT FY-2016 
(October 1,201 5 to September 30.2016) to our City Manager, Sam Gaston, at 
astons~rntnbrook,org). The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 

I[lovember gth or ~3~ meetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city government. We look 
fornard to a productive and successfir1 relationship with you in FY-2016. 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

vGginia C. Smith 
Council President 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

This Contract for Services ("Contract") is entered into between the City of Mountain Brook, an 
Alabama municipal corporation ("City") and the Jefferson County Historical Commission 
(LLCommission"). 

WHEREAS, the Commission was established in 1971 by a act of the Alabama Legislature; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission sponsors publications on Jefferson County history and works with 
other organizations and agencies to further historic preservation and the documentation and protection of 
the historic resources of the City of Mountain Brook. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, the City and the Commission hereby agree as follows: 

1. This contract shall be effective on the 1st day of October, 2015, and will continue in 
effect until September 30,2016, unless terminated sooner by either party. 

2. The City shall pay to the Commission the sum of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00), 
upon execution of this contract for services. 

3. in consideration of the payment of the contract fund as provided herein, the Commission 
shall provide at least the following services to the City ("Services"): 

a. The Commission, through its Historic Marker Program, shall identify and recognize 
houses, commercial, or public buildings, churches, and sites of historic interest and 
integrity, encouraging the preservation of these historically important places. 

b. The Commission shall sponsor publications on Jefferson County history and 
cooperate with property owners, historical societies and authors in the publication of 
books, videotapes and audiotapes concerning the City of Mountain Brook and 
Jefferson County. 

c. The Commission shall hrnish information concerning advantages of 
preservationfrestoration and provide assistance for architectural/preservation/ design 
interns, teachers, students, and other citizen groups. 

d. The Commission shall hrnish speakers for civic clubs, parent-teacher associations, 
and school groups about history and historic preservation and its importance to the 
past, present, and future. 

4. The Commission shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise 
necessary to fulfill its obligations under this Contract. The Commission is an independent contractor and 
none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of the City, nor shall any of the 
agents or employees of other persons, firms, or corporations conducting business for or on behalf of the 
Commission be deemed to be agents or employees of the City. 



5. The Commission shall indemnifL and hold harmless the City and its agents, employees, 
and elected officials, from and against any and all actions, causes of actions, claims, demands, damages, 
losses, and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to attorney's fees and court cost, which may be 
asserted against, or suffered by, the City or its agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: 
(a) the performance or attempted performance, by the Commission or its agents or employees of the 
Commission's obligations under this Contract; and (b) any claim that the Contract Funds were improperly 
paid by the City to the Commission. 

6. The Commission agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the 
types of operations conducted by the Commission and which are customary to similar operations. All 
financial records and other documents pertaining to this Contract shall be maintained by the Commission 
for a period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Contract. The City shall have full 
access to, and the right to examine any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable 
times during the term of this Contract and during said three-year period. The Commission agrees that 
upon request from the City, the Commission will submit to, and cooperate with, periodic audits by the 
Alabama Department of Public Examiners or other audit procedures requested by the City. 

7. If the Commission fails to comply with the provisions of this Contract, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this Contract and, unless corrected by the Commission within thirty (30) days 
following receipt of written notice from City of such default, shall be deemed a breach of this Contract 
and the City shall have the right to terminate this Contract by giving the Commission twelve (12) days 
prior written notice of such termination. Such termination of this Contract by the City shall not relieve 
the Commission of any of its obligations or liabilities to the City under the provisions of paragraph 4 of 
this Contract, whether such obligations or liabilities occur or accrue before or after the termination of this 
Contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Jefferson County Historical Commission has caused this 
Contract to be executed by its duly authorized Executive Director on the day of 

2 0  15 and the City of Mountain Brook has caused this Contract to be executed 
by its duly authorized representative, on the d a y  of ,2015. 

ATTEST: JEFFERSON COUNTY HISTORICAL 
COMMISSION 

By: 

Its: 

ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: Lawrence T. Oden 
Its: Mayor 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-154 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into an agreement with the Alabama Veterans' Memorial Foundation, 
in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to such minor changes as may be determined 
appropriate by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 20 15. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certifL the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Alabama Veterans' Memorial Foundation 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  OF T H E  M A Y O R  
56 Church Street 
PO. Boa 130009 
Mountain Brook, Aloborna 352 13 
Telephone. 205 802.3802 
Fa#. 205.870.3577 
cprtcnc@m~nbrd org 
personal c m ~ l  . La~tVolhclto@lool.cam 

LAWRENCE T ODEN 
MAYOR 

October 28,201 5 

Mr. Robert Mosca 
AL Veterans Memorial Foundation 
PO Bos 366972 
Birmingham, AL 351 16 

Dear Mr. Mosca: 

The City of Mountain Brook would like lo thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7'. We appreciate your interest in pannering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community [br our residents. 

After much discussion and deliberation, thc City of Mountain Brook has decided to enter 
into n contract for services with your organization in the amount qf6 1.000 1 -2016.1 
If you haven't already done so, please email a proposed contract for services for FY-2016 
(October 1,201 5 to September 30.2016) to our City Manager, Sam Gaston, at 
pastons~mtnbrook.orq). The City Council tirill consider your conlracl for services at its 
November 9"' or 23' meetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city government. Wc look 
forward to a productive and successkl relalionship with you in FY-20 16. 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

virgi%n C. Smith 
Council President 



This Contract for Services ("Contract") is entered into between the City of Mountain 
Brook, an Alabama municipal corporation ("Cityt') and the Alabama Veterans Memorial 
Foundation ("Foundation"). 

WHEREAS, the City desires to promote learning opportunities and resources for its 
citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Foundation provides educational resources to the citizens of the City by 
operating and maintaining a park which honors Alabama veterans; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the public interest to engage the 
Foundation in order to assist in the development and promotion of said educational resources. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the 
covenants and apemen& contained herein, the City and the Foundation hereby agree as 
follows: 

1. This contract shall be effective on the 1st day of October, 2015, and will 
continue in effect until September 30, 2016, unless terminated sooner by either party. 

2. The City shall pay to the Foundation the sum of One Thousand Dollars 
($1,000.00) upon execution of this contract for services. 

3.  In consideration of the ayment of the finds as provided herein, the 
Foundation shall provide at least the fol f' owing services to the City ("Services"): 

a. The Foundation will continue to operate and maintain the Alabama Veterans 
Memorial Park so that the park will remain a symbol of our servicemen's and 
servicewomen's dedication to their country. 

b. The Foundation will provide educational resources to the citizens of the City 
through the Alabama Veterans Memorial Park that will not only teach the high 
cost of war, but celebrate peace and democracy. 

4, The Foundation shall rovide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise 
necessary to fulfill its obligations un g er this Contract. The Foundation is an independent 
contractor and none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of the 
City, nor shall any of the agents or employees of other persons, firms, or corporations conducting 
business for or on behalf of the Foundation be deemed to be agents or employees of the City. 

5 .  The Foundation shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents, 
employees, and elected officials, from and against any and all actions, causes of actions, 
claims, demands, damages, losses, and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to 
attorney's fees and court cost, which may be asserted against, or suffered by, the City or its 
agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: (a) the performance or attempted 
performance, by the Foundation or its agents or employees of the Foundation's obligations under 
this Contract; and (b) any claim that the Contract Funds were improperly paid by the City to the 
Foundation. 



6. The Foundation agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to 
he types of operations conducted by the Foundation and which are c-maryto similar operations. All financial 
recMds and other documents W'ning to this Contract shall be maintained by the Foundation for a period of 
three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Contmct The City shaIl have fill access to, and the 
right b examine any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable times duringthe term of 
this C o n M  and during said h y e a r  period. The Foundation agrees that upon request h m  the City, the 
Foundation will submit to, and coopetate with, periodic audits by the Alabama Depadment of Public Examiners 
or other audit procedwes requested by the City. 

7. Ifthe Foundation firils to comply with the provisions of this Contract, such Mure 
shall constitute a dekult under this Conttact and, unless cmxted by the Foundation within thirty (30) days 
following receipt of written notice h m  City of such dehult, shall be deemed a breach ofthis Contmct and 
the City shall have the right to terminate this Conbad by giving the Foundation twelve (1 2) days prior written 
notice of such termination. Such termination ofthis Contmt by the City shall not relieve the Foundation of 
any of its obligations or liabilities to the City under the provisions of pamgmph 4 ofthis Contract, whether 
such obligations or liabilities occur or accrue before or after the termination of this Conhct 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Alabama Veterans Memorial Foundation has caused this 
Contract to be executed by its duly authorized Executive Director on the day of 

2 0  1 5 and the City of Mountain Brook has caused this ConEract to be executed 
by its duly authorized Mayor, on the day of ,2015. 

ALABAMA VETERANS 
MEMORIAL FOUNDATION 

By: 
Its: Executive Director 

ArnST: 
ALABAMA 

ClTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 

Steven Boone, City Clerk By: Lamnce T. Oden 
I t s  Mayor 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-155 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Birmingham Museum of Art subject to such 
minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract 
is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 2015. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Birmingham Museum of Art contract 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  OF T H E  M A Y O R  
56 Church Street 
P.O. Box l30009 
A\oun~oin BrooL. Alobono 352 13 
Telephanr: 205.802.3802 
Fan. 705.870.3577 
cpi!c;nc@mlnbroct.org 
pcr~onol ernoil . Las~?rathul lo~~ot .~om 

t A W R E N C E  T. O D E N  
M A Y O R  

October 28.101 5 

Gail Andrews 
Birmin ham Museum of art B 2000 8' ' Avenue North 
Birmingham, AL 35203 

Dear Ms. Andrews: 

The City of Mountain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on Octobrr 7'? We appreciate your interest in partnering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

After much discussion and deliberation, the City of Mountain Brook has decided to enter 
into a contract for services with your organization in the amount of for FY-20! 6 
If you haven't already done so, please email a proposed contract for services for FY-2016 
(October 1.2015 to September 30,2016) to our City Manager, Sam Gaston, at 
pastons~rntnbrook.org). The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 
~ovember 9Ih or 23rd meetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city government. We took 
fonvard to a productive and successhl relationship with you in FY-2016, 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

~ i r g n i a  C. Smith 
Council President 



June 5,2015 

Mayor Tcny Oden 
C/O Sam Gas ton, City Manages 
City of Mounhin Brook 
Post Office Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Dear Teq, 

For more than 15 years the City of Mountnin Brook has supported rile Birmingham Museum of Art (BMA), 
helping the BMA continue its mission of providing quality and exciting educational opportunities to our 
community. We arc grotell to the City of Mountain Brook not just for its hancial support of our 
educational endeavors, but also for its leadership role in providing municipal support to our agency. This year 
we respectFully request continuing support horn the City of Mountain Brook and we ask you to consider 
reinstating our appropriation level to $13,000 for the educational senrices we provide to the community. 

Our strong partnership with Mountain Brook has allowed us to work together to provide a higher quality of 
Iife for our community, and provide residents of Mountain Brook with unique and unparalleled educational 
opportunities. In 2014-2015, we wclcomcd more than 140,000 individuds to the Museum, provided arts 
education experiences to moxe than 50,000 children in tI~e Greater Birmingham area, and offered more than 
1,100 programs and services. This past year, the BMA welcomed 208 Mountain Brook students for guided 
tours, had 28 students participate in student classes ox axt camp at the Muscum, and had 132 students 
involved in student art exhibitions. Additionally, we had more than 1,000 Mountain Brook residents come to 
our recent cshibition, Small Tnar~tm: hn~brnt~dt, Venr~eer, Hak a11d Their Co~ttcmpomrics, and currently 32% of 
our membership base lives within the City ofMounhin Brook. 

In 2015-2016, the BMA plans to present a wide m g e  of exhibitions and programming ehnt highlight our 
permanent collection of over 27,000 objects wlde also bringing in new works for our community to enjoy. 
The BMA will opcn the summet with the exhibition Risitrg Up: Hale 1Viodn~~ M~tttlh at Talhdega Collrge 
(G/13/15 - 9/6/15). Risitg Up will include works that span WoodrufPs career, wid1 a pltrticuIar focus on lis 
important work as a muralisr. Commissioned in 1938 to both comrnemomte the 1867 founding ofTdadega 
College and celebrate its success as one of the nation's fist  all-black colleges, Woodcuffs Tallodega murals, 
comprised of six monumental canvases, are considered among his greatest achievements. This exhibition will 
continue the Museum's efforts to recognize the struggle For civil rights, provide new ways to reflect on 
AGican American history, and higldight the Museum's focus on African American artists. 

The BMA will also have two exhibitions consisting primarily of works fiom our permanent collection, Bhtk 
Like IVho? Eaphring Race and Qbn~efttafioton in Amcnirrn Azt (711 1 /15 - 1 1 /1/2 5) and Haifiatt Flogs (12/19/15- 
4/10/16). Exhibitions currently on display that wil! remain free and open to the public include DavidPtulg: 
~Iedg~rvood's Finf Sfttdo Potfer (4118115 - 12/6/15); So Clasc to I3eavet1: SamdSn~/pf~~n  o/Rn'u fmm tbc collcfiot~ of 

Jtnc yintmy" DcH: and Hetrry H. IVe/don (10/25/14 - Fall 201 5); and Fmtk Flcmitg: Bei~veet~ Fat~tuy ut~d hakg 
(2127115 - 8/9/15). The BMA will end its exhibition year with Eucg Color oftbe Rairrborv: Uxbeisraa~~ Ikaf.rjiom 

BIRMINGHAM MUSEUM OF ART 
2000 Rev. Abraham Woods, Jr, Blvd. P: 206.254.2565 F: 205.73 1.9425 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 ARTS8MA.0RG 



Zbe Colhcrion qfPcgg S/@pg. The exhibition will in Jude a vane9 of colorful 19th-century robes fiom the 
Russian Empire woven using the ikat technique, as wd as a number of other v e n t s  and accessode, 
including hats, boots, crowns, bags, and jewelry. 

Per our agreement with the City o F M o u n ~  Brook and as is our goal, we will continue to provide Mountain 
Brook schools and residents with a wide variety OF educational services and resources. These dl indude 
opportunities for tours and art activities for students, educational workshops fot teachus, educational 
materials which can be borrowed for use in the classroom, an artmaking outreach event at a Mountain Brook 
school or library, a c%iountain Brook Night" at the museum, and a wide variety of lectures and programs 
rekting to the permanent collection and special exhibitions, all of which will be avahble to the City and its 
residents free of charge. By working in partnership with cities like Mountain Brook we axe able to expand the 
role we play in our community, increasing participation, encouraging a sense of ownership in the Museuq 
and making the visual arts more accessible. In the coming year, we look forward to men greater success. The 
2015-2026 exhibition and program schedule promises a variety of opporhlnitics for visitors to become 
engaged with the Museum, lmtn about the diverse cultures within our community and connect thoselocd 
communities to the wider c u l t d  and intdectud worlds represented by our collection. 

The Museum offers oppoztdties for a variety of audiences, from studio dasscs and workshops, to lectures 
and fikn series, and musical and dance performances. Adult pxopms will continue to be a mainstay of the 
Department's schedule, with efforts dedicated to mmaintaining its cuaent level of offerinngs, while diversiFging 
its audience through new programs, workshops, and lecmes. Continuing free pro-s indude Bart's 
Artventure, Bart's Books, Family Days, AaBrcaks, lectures, BMtl Speaks, First Thusdays, and Teen BMA. 

The City olCMoun& Brook's partnership and support is greatly valued by the Museum, as wd as the 
participation of its residents. Your past appropriations havc been a direct investment in arts education, 
improving the qudilicy OF life for our community, and the pattonage of your dtizens encourages us to continue 
presenting the best in visual arts opportunities. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request., and if you have any additional questions or would like to 
discuss further, please feel free to contact me or Meghan Ann Hdeoga, Development Officer for Grants and 
Individual Giving, at mhdenga@utsbma.org. We look f o m d  to welcoming you to the Museum again soon 
and to continuing to provide a wide variety of educational opportunities and 
resources to Mountain Brook students and residents in the coming year. 

Gail Andrews 
The R Hugh Daniel Director 
205.254.2855 //pdrcws@ar tsbma.org 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
Fiscal Year 2016 

This contract for services ("Contract") is entered into by and between City of Mountain 
Brook, an Alabama municipal corporation ("City") and the Birmingham Museum of Art, a non- 
profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama ("Contractor"). 

Whereas, City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students in its school 
system; and 

Whereas, Contractor has developed certain programs, exhibitions and learning laboratories 
which, in City's opinion, will be helpful and instructive to such students; and 

Whereas, such programs, exhibitions and leming laboratories are not available in the 
Mountain Brook school system; and 

Whereas, City has agreed to pay Contractor the sum of eleven thousand five hundred 
dollars ($1 1,500.00) in consideration of Contractor providing City the services referred to in this 
Contract. 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, City and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

I. City shall pay to Contractor the sum of eleven thousand five hundred dollars 
($1 1,500.00), upon execution of this contract for services for one year from the date of 
execution. 

2. In consideration of the payment of the Contract Funds as provided herein, Contractor shall 
provide at least the following services to City ("Services"): 

a. Contractor will continue to provide, free of charge, tours of the permanent 
collection to all students in the Mountain Brook Education system. 

b. Teachers of the Mountain Brook school system will be permitted to attend 
teacher-training seminars and special in-service workshops conducted by 
Contractor. In addition, teachers will have access without charge to materials in 
the Contractor's Teacher Resource Center. The Contractor will also make Culture 
Cases, poster sets, and other educational materials available to teachers for 
curriculum enhancement. Teachers aIso have the option for interdisciplinary 
museum tours and studio classes. These offerings focus on the Museum's 
permanent collection and complement and enhance core curricula of language 
arts, social studies, science and math. Tours may include hand-on art lessons that 
tie into these various curricula. 



c. Contractor will offer the opportunity for an art-making outreach program 
onsite at a Mountain Brook City school or Emmet O'Neal Library targeting 
elementary, middle school and high school students. 

d. During each year of the tern of this Contract, Contractor will make 
available a series of lectures and other programs relating to the Museum's 
permanent collection and special exhibitions as a part of the programs 
conducted by the Emmet O'Neal Library, or other locations, in the City of 
Mountain Brook, 

e. The City will have the opportunity to host one "Mountain Brook Night" at 
the Museum, during the year of its contract for services. Museum rental fee 
will be waived for the event (overhead charges for security and catering will 
be the responsibility of the City). 

3. Contractor shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment and expertise necessary 
to fulfill its obligations under this Contract. Contractor is an independent contractor 
and none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of City 
nor shall any of the agents, or employees of other persons, firms or corporations 
conducting business for or on behaIf of Contractor be deemed to be agents or 
employees of City. 

4. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents, employees 
and elected officials, from and against all actions, causes of action, claims, 
demands, damages, losses and expenses of any kind, including but not Iimited to 
attorneys' fees and court costs, which may be asserted against, or suffered by, City 
or its agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: (a) the 
performance, or attempted performance, by Contractor or its agents or employees 
of Contractor's obligations under this Contract; and (b) any claim that the Contract 
Funds were improperly paid by City to Contractor. 

Contractor agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the 
types of operations conducted by Contractor and which are customary to similar 
operations. All financial records and other documents pertaining to this Contract 
shall be maintained by Contractor for a period of three (3) years after the expiration 
or termination of this Contract. City shall have full access to, and the right to 
examine, any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable times 
during the term of this Contract and during said three-year period, Contractor 
agrees that upon request from the City, Contractor will submit to, and cooperate 
with, periodic audits by the Alabama Department of Public Examiners or other 
audit procedures requested by the City. 

6. If Contractor fails to comply with the provisions of this Contract, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this Contract and, unless corrected by Contractor within 
thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice from City of such 



default, shall be deemed a breach of this Contract and City shall have a right to 
terminate this Contract by giving Contractor twelve (12) days prior written notice 
of such termination, and City shall not be obligated to make any additional 
payments to Contractor, Such termination of this Contract by City shall not 
relieve Contractor of any of its obligations or Iiabilities to City under the 
provisions of paragraph 4 of this Contract, whether such obligations or liabilities 
occur or accrue before or after the termination of this Contract. 

In witness whereof, the Birmingham Museum of Art has caused this Contract to 
be executed by its duly authorized Director and City of Mountain Brook has caused this 
Contract to be executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all a u f  the - day of 

,2015. 

ATTEST: Birmingham Museum of Art 

By: By: 
Secretary Its Director 

ATTEST: City of Mountain Brook 

By: By: 
City Clerk Its Mayor 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-156 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Alabama Symphonic Association subject to 
such minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which 
contract is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 20 15. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Alabama Symphony contract 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  OF T H E  M A Y O R  
56 Chufch Strcot 
PO Baa 130009 
L4ounlorn Brook, Alnbnrno 352 13 
Telcphonc 205 802 3807 
F ~ I  205 870.3577 
CPSIE nc'.rrlnbrooL.org 
persona. emcrl - LaslVolhall~ '.col corn 

LAWREFICE T. ODEP1 
LIAYOR 

October 28,20 15 

Susan Barclay 
Alabama Symphonic Association 
3621 Sixth Avenue South 
Birmingham, AL 35222 

Dear Ms. Barclay: 

The City of Mountain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7"'. We appreciate your interest in pafinering with the City to 
improve the quality of Iife in our community for our residents. 

After much discussion and deliberation. the City of Mauntain Brook t 
into a contract for services with your organization in the amount 4 m 
If you haven't already done so, please cmail a proposed contract for services for FY-20lb 
(October 1,201 5 to September 30,201 6) to our City Manager, Sam Gaston. at 
astonscii,,mtnbrook,or~). The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 

kovember 9"' or ~3~ meetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city government. We look 
fonvard to a productive and successful relationship with you in FY-2016. 

Sincerely. 

~awrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

Virginia C. Smith 
Council President 



CONTRACT FOR GENERAL SERVICES 

This contract for services ("Contract") is entered into by and between City of Mountain 
Brook, an Alabama municipal corporation ("City"), and the Alabama Symphonic Association, a 
nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama ("Association"). 

Whereas, City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students in its school 
system, including music and other arts-related subjects; and 

Whereas, City also desires to enrich the cultural life of its residents by providing 
opportunities for them to participate in musical and other arts-related events, recognizing that 
exposure to educational and culturaI experiences is valuable to the residents of the City of 
Mountain Brook; and 

Whereas, in consideration of the payment referred to hereinafter, the Association has 
agreed to provide musical programs and to perform services for the students of City's school 
system and for the residents of the City. 

Now therefore, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, City and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1. City shall pay to the Association the sum of ten thousand dollars ($12,000.00) for services 
for the one-year period from October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016 ("Contract 
Fundsv'). 

2. In consideration of the payment of the Contract Funds by City, the Association shall 
provide the folIowing services to the students of City's school system and to the residents of 
City: 

a. The Association will perform a concert at a City of Mountain Brook school: 
Crestline Elementaq School before September 30, 2016 

b. The Association will provide up to 300 tickets for Mountain Brook students to attend an 
AS0 Coffee Concert, Young People's Concert or Explorer Concert during the 2015-16 
academic school year. 

c. The Association will provide Mountain Brook school teachers with access to innovative 
music education lesson plans associated with the A S 0  Young People's Concerts. 

d. The Association will provide lectures, demonstrations, and educationa1 programs for the 
reachers and students of the Mountain Brook school system on request, schedules 
permitting. 

Exhibit A 



e. The Association will provide opportunities for young musicians from the Mountain Brook 
school system to participate in pre-concert performances and s p e d  masterchss offerings, 
and audition for the Alabama Symphony Youth Orchestra (ASYO). 

3. The Association shall deliver to City's Finance Department a detailed report describing the 
Association's use of the Contract Funds by the earlier of sixty days following the 
expenditures or November 30,20 16. 

4. The Association shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment and expertise necessary 
to fulfill its obligations under this Contract. The Association is an independent contractor 
and none of its agents, or employees shalI be deemed to be under the control of City, nor 
shall any of the agents or employees or other persons, firms or corporations conducting 
business for, or on behalf of, the Association be deemed to be agents or employees of City, 

5. The Association shall indemnify City and its employees and elected officials, and hold 
them harmless from and against, all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, damages, 
losses and expenses of any kind, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and court 
costs, which may be asserted against, or suffered by, City or its employees or elected 
officials arising out of, or in connection with: 

(a) the performance, or attempted performance, by the Association or its agents or 
employees of the Association's obligations under this contract; and 

(b) any claim that the Contract Funds were improperly paid by City to the Association. 

6. The Association agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the types 
of operations conducted by the Association and which are customary to similar operations. 
All financial records and other documents pertaining to this Contract shall be maintained 
by the Association for a period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. City shall have full access to, and the right to examine, such financial records 
and other documents at all reasonable times during the term of this Contract and during 
said three (3) year period. The Association agrees that, upon request from City, the 
Association will submit to, and cooperate with, periodic audits by the Alabama 
Department of Public Examiners or other audit procedures requested by City. 

7. The Association and the representative of the Association, who executes this Contract, by 
the execution of this Contract, certify that: 

a. no part of the Contract Funds paid by City pursuant to this Contract shall be paid 
to, or used in any way for the personal benefit of, any elected official, employee or 
representative of any government or any family member of any such official, 
employee or representative, including federal, state, county and municipal 
governments and any agency of any such government; 

Exhibit A 



b. neither the Association nor any of its officers, agents, representatives or employees 
has in any way colluded, conspired or connived with any elected official, employee, 
or representative of City, or any other elected official or public empIoyee, in any 
manner whatsoever, to secure or obtain this Contract; and 

c. except as expressly set out in this scope of services of this Contract, no promise or 
commitment of any nature whatsoever of any thing of value whatsoever has been 
made to any such elected official, employee or representative of City as an 
inducement or consideration for this Contract. 

Any violation of this cerrification shall constitute a breach and default of chis Contract 
which shall be cause for termination. Upon such termination, the Association shall immediaaly 
refund to City all amounts paid by City pursuant to this Conrract. 

In witness whereof, the Alabama Symphonic Association has caused this Contract to be 
executed by it duly authorized Executive Director on (date) , and City of 
Mountain Brook has caused this Contract to be executed by its duly authorized representative, on 
(date) , but this contract shall be effective as of (date) 

ATTEST: Alabama Symphonic Association 

- 
Susan Barclay 
Its Government Relations Manager 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

By: 
Curt Long 
Its Executive Director 

City of Mountain Brook 

Sam S. Gaston 
Its City Manager 

Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-157 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Birmingham Botanical Society subject to such 
minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract 
is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 2015. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,201 5 as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Birmingham Botanical Society contract 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  OF THE M A Y O R  
56 Church Streel 
P.0. Bog 130009 
h\ounloin Brook, Alobomo 352 13 
Tclephonc: 205.802.3B02 
Fax. 205.870.3577 
cpsteinc@mtnbrook.org 
pe~sonnl c ~ d l  - CortVnlhn!lnQool.com 

L A W R E t l C E  T .  ODEM 
M A Y O R  

October 28,201 5 

Fred Spicer 
Birmingham Botanical Society 
26 1 2 Lane Pork Road 
Birmingham, AL 35223 

Dear Mr. Spicer: 

The City of Mountain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7*'. We appreciate your interest in portnering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

Afier much discussion and deliberation. the City of Mountain Brook has decided to enter- 
into a contract for services with your organization in the amount ( !0,000 for F Y - 3  -- 
If you haven't already done so, please email a proposed contracl Iof scrviCEs for FY-2016' 
(October 1,201 5 lo September 30,2016) to our City Manager, Sam Gaston, at 
gastons@mtnbrook.org), The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 
November 9'" or 23" meetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city govenunent. We look 
Fonvard to a productive and successful relationship with you in FY-20 16. 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

virgnia C. Smith 
Council President 



Contract for Services 
Fiscal Year 2016 

This contract for services ("Contract") is entered into by and between City 
of Mt. Brook, an Alabama Municipal corporation ("City"), and the Birmingham 
Botanical Society, a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State 
of Alabama ("Association"). 

Whereas, City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students 
in its school system including: and 

Whereas, Contractor has developed certain programs, exhibits, and 
learning laboratories which, in the City's opinion, will be helpful and instructive to 
such students; and 

Whereas, such programs, exhibits and learning laboratories are not 
available in the Mt. Brook school system; and 

Whereas, City has agreed to pay contractor the sum of twenty thousand 
dollars ($20,000.00) in consideration of Contractor providing City services 
referred to in the Contract. 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the 
covenants and agreements contained herein, City and Contractor hereby agree 
as follows: 

1. City shall pay to Contractor the sum of twenty thousand dollars 
($20,000.00), upon execution of this contract for services for one year 
from date of execution. 

2. In consideration of the payment of the Contract Funds as provided herein, 
Contractor shall provide at least the following services to City ("Services"): 

a. Contractor will continue to provide city students with a variety of 
free science curriculum-based field trips. The trained docents 
provide activities which are based on Alabama Course of Study: 
Science. 

b. Contractor agrees to inform the teachers about the Contractor's 
field trips and invite their participation. 

c. Field trips are for students in grades Kindergarten (K) through 
High School, inclusive. 

d. The following field trips are available during the following 
months: 

Native American Area 

Dr. George Washington Carver 
Garden Gates Workshop 

September-November 
March-May 
September-November 
January-February 



e. Field Trips are available Monday through Friday, inclusive, from 
9:30-11:30am. No field trips are offered on federal and state 
holidays. 

(Plant Propagation) 
Tropical Rain Forest 
Alabama Woodlands 
(Interdependence) 
Secret Life of Trees 

Plants: Inside Out 

f. Schools shall select the students that will attend the contractors' 
field trips. The Contractor shall not be responsible for providing 
transportation. 

March-May 
September-November 
March-May 
September-November 
March-May 
September-November 
March-May 

g. Schools shall contact the contractor at least ten (10) business 
days in advance of a proposed field trip to schedule a date that 
shall be reasonably convenient for schools and the contractor. 

h. The Contractor requires the presence of one (1) adult per ten 
(10) children for the duration of each field trip. 

i. The city and the contractor shall each monitor the number of 
students that attend the contractor's field trips and shall agree to 
reconcile the number at the end of the contract period. 

j. The Contractor will engage with sophomore-through-senior city 
high school students in a field study program 

k. City Chamber of Commerce shall seek additional opportunities 
with the contractor. 

3. Contractor shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise 
necessary to fulfill its obligations under this Contract. Contractor is an 
independent contractor and none of its agents or employees shall be 
deemed to be under the control of City nor shall any of the agents, or 
employees or other persons, firms, or corporations conducting business for 
or on behalf of Contractor be deemed to be agents, or employees of City. 

4. Contractor shall indemnify City and its agents, employees and elected 
officials harmless, from and against all actions, causes of action, claims, 
demands, damages, losses and expenses of any kind, including, but not 
limited to attorneys' fees and court costs which may be asserted against, or 
suffered by, City or its agents and employees arising out of, or in 
connection with: (a) the performance, or attempted performance, by 
Contractor or its agents or employees of Contractor's obligations under this 
contract; and (b) any claim that the Contract Funds were improperly paid 
by City to Contractor. 



5. Contractor agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate 
to the types of operations conducted by Contractor and which are 
customary to similar operations. All financial records and other 
documents pertaining to this Contract shall be maintained by Contractor 
for a period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of the 
Contract. City shall have full access to, and the right to examine, any of 
such financial records and other documents at all reasonable times during 
the term of this Contract and during said three-year period. Contractor 
agrees that upon request from City, Contractor will submit to, and 
cooperate with, periodic audits by Alabama Department of Public 
Examiners or other audit procedures requested by the city. 

6. If Contractor fails to comply with the provisions of the Contract, such 
failure shall constitute a default under this Contract and, unless corrected 
by Contractor within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice from 
City of such default, shall be deemed a breach of this Contract and City 
shall have a right to terminate this Contract by giving Contractor ten (10) 
days prior written notice of such termination, and City shall not be 
obligated to make any additional payments to Contractor. Such 
termination of this Contract by City shall not relieve Contractor of any of its 
obligations or liabilities to City under the provisions of paragraph 4 of this 
Contract, whether such obligations or liabilities occur or accrue before or 
after the termination of this Contract. 

7. The Association and the representative of the Association who executes 
this Contract, by the execution of the Contract, certify that: 

a. no part of the Contract Funds paid by City pursuant to this Contract 
shall be paid to, or used in any way for personal benefit of, any 
elected official, employee or representative of any government or 
any family member of any such official, employee or representative, 
including federal, state, county and municipal governments and any 
agency of any such government; 

b. neither the Association nor any of its officers, agents, 
representatives or employees has in any way colluded, conspired 
or connived with any elected official, employee, or representative of 
City, or any other elected official or public employee, in any manner 
whatsoever to secure or obtain the Contract; and 

c. except as expressly set out in this scope of services of this 
Contract, no promise or commitment of any nature whatsoever of 
any thing of value whatsoever has been made to any such elected 
official, employee or representative of City as an inducement or 
consideration for this Contract. 

Any violation of the certification shall constitute a breach and 
default of this Contract which shall be cause for termination. Upon such 



termination, the Association shall immediately refund to City all amounts 
paid by City pursuant to this Contract. 

In witness whereof, the Birmingham Botanical Society has caused 
this Contract to be executed by it duly authorized Executive Director on 
Nov 6 ,2015, and City of Mt. Brook has caused this Contract to be 
executed by its duly authorized representative, on -, 2015, but this 
Contract shall be effective as of October 1, 2015. 

Birmingham Botanical Society, Inc. 

City of Mt. Brook 

Its Mayor 



Novcmbet 2,201 5 

Mr. Sam S. Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
5G Church Strcct 
Birmingham, rll, 35213 

Dcar Mr. Gaston: 

President 
Hrkn H u r  

Thank you and evcryonc tvith the City of Mountain Brook for cvcrything you hawre done for 
Birmingham Romnical Gnrdcns over our morc than 50 years as n cultural and cducntionnl 
landmark. It is only thanks to grcat partners k c  thc City of hiountain Brook that we arc able 
to cclcbratc this milcstonc and all of our accomplishmcnts. 

Discovcry Ficld Trips arc once a@ in full swing with scvcral hIountain Urook schools 
alrcady schcdulcd to partake in thcse scicncc curriculum-based cxpcricnccs at 'l'hc Gardens. 
\Vc arc so happy to provide thcsc cducationnl cxpcriunccs to thousands of hlountain Brook 
studcnts over the morc than 16 years of Discovery Ficld Trips. 'fit City of Mountain Brook's 
funding helps to ensure that this program remains frcc and of thc highcst quality for your 
students, and for that, wc arc grateful. 

With the city's continued support in 201 5, we hope to continue our grcat tradition of 
providing Gcc, hands-on sucncc curriculum+bnscd cducntion to blountzin Brook studcnts as 
wcll as crpanding thosc offcdngs. '15s year wc look to inttoducc an environmental scicncc 
ficld study focused on soil scicncc and plant-soil relationships to hIountain Brook high school 
studcnts, 

\Vc are wcll awnrc that thcru arc many worthy organizations to partncr with and wc continuc 
to bc truly grateful that h,lountain Urook has choscn to partner with us. Whilc participation 
condnucs to incrcasc, so do the costs. With that rcality in mind, wc hopc that you and thc City 
of hlountain Brook will consider increasing our contract for services to a 520,000 gift for 
Discow~cry Field Trips, the new high school scicncc Eidd study program and to allow us to 
cxplorc ncw opportunities to partncr with thc hlountain Urook Chambcr of Commcrcc. 

We cannot overstate thc importance of the City of hlountain Brook's continued funding for 
our programs, and wc sincerely apptcchtc your consideration. 

For TIC Gardcns. . - 

Donor Rclntjons Officer 

Enclosures: Proposal and Education Impact Statcmcnt 

P u t  Prcsidcnt 
H. 1 lmrun Shughtcr 

Treasurer 
Scutt \Valum 

VP Dcvclopmcnr 
Rcvvrlty l lrlyt 

VP Cardem and Buildings 
ISlrrabcth Hnlughton 

Covcmvncc Chair 
Charh.5 Gtndrich 

Junior Board Prcaidcnt 
Amanda I'lnhcc 

At h r g c  
Cathy :\duns 
Crig H~qtty  
Mav Hcrhm 
Chns Hr~lcs 
l3miiy Houron 
>hIUjU H n ~ ~ k c  
(:tarkc C;illtspy 
John I ludstrn 
Jclhn I lurst 
J 'I'umur tnse~c 
H11l lrriand 
I YrzaCrh Jvrnigan 
[:arlJoni% 
Katak Kdy 
h t i c  Halicr Iskvr 
John Xl~ller 
john Smlh'l' 



Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gardens* 
Funding Request 
City of Mountain Brook 

Birmingham Botanical Gardens fcaturcs 67.5 acrcs of breathtaking gardcns which includc ovcr 3,000 typcs of  
plants, a large consen7atory (recently improvcd and rcopencd) and morc than 30 works of outdoor sculpturc, 
all enjoycd by ovcr 350,000 annual visitors. \Krith morc than 25 separate specialty gardens and woodland areas 
rcpresenung the best of Alabama's horticultural and natural wondcrs, 'lhc Gardcns is an important pqrt of 
our region's biodiversity as wcll as a bcauriful assct to A h b m a  and our neighbors in h loundn  Brook.. 

Fricnds of Birmingham Botanical Gardens [ i l e  Friends) ptovidcs staff, voluntocrs and funding for 
cducational programming, gardcn maintcnancc, plant and libcar). collections cspanaion, 1ong:rangc planning 
and phps~cal dcvclopmcnt -The 1;ricnds is also rcsponsiblc for direction and day to day management of all 
Gardcns' cmployccs. h[ost importantly, 'lhc Friends taiscs and administcrs funds that providc pear-round 
cducational programming for childrcn and adults, helps to kccp 'lhc Gardcns - thc most vi~itcd frcc 
nttracuon in the statc -.clean and grccn, and a~r ; i~ tg  In maintaining thc most cxtcn:ivc living plant collccti~n in 
thc rcgion. 

Scicncc education is the kcvstonc of Thc Pricnds' mission. ' f ie  benefits of involverncnt in horticultural 
activities and csposurc to naturc can bc sccn In copitirc, psychologcd, social, and physical rcalms and 
rcscarch continues to rcvcal there conncction~ across many groups of people, Pricnds of BLmingharn 
Botanical Gardens w s  thc fust wca organization to base its children's cducation programs, Diacovcry F d d  
Trips, on the apptoucd state scicncc curriculum. \Ve arc proud to scc that our model has bccn 50 succcsrful 
that it has bccn adaptcd by other local non-profits, expanding thc number of hands-on education 
opportunities to Mountain Brook school childrcn. 

Uiscovcq 14cld Trips arc hands-on scicncc curriculum-bnscd ficld trips for studcn~x from prcschooi through 
h~gh school. I'articipant..; lcam about intcrdcpcndcncc of plants and animals in thc ecosystem, basic plant and 
flowcr parts and methods of propagatiotl, photosynthesis and plant respiration, the life and scientific 
contributions of Dr. Gcorgc \Vashngton Carver, varictics of plants utducd by Native hmcricans, plant 
adaptation in tropical rain forcsts, and "Thc Sccrct Lifc of 'l'rccs." Discowry Ficld l'rips arc avdablc frcc-of- 
charge to City of  Mountain Brook students. Ovcr its morc than 16-yciu history, thousands of hfountain 
13rook students havc engaged in thcsc intctacti\*c Icarning c~p~t icnccs .  \Yfc thank the City of hlountiin Brook 
for helping us connect thcsc children to naturc. 

W'c arc dso looking to cspand our cducariond offerings to hlountain Brook students by cngaging sophmorc- 
through-scniot lJgh school studcnts in a hands-on, scicncc curriculum-bascd cntlronmcntal sacncc ficld 
study focused on soil scicncc and plant-soil relationships. 'Il~csc on-site fidd stuhes will last appro.simatcly 40 
minutcs and cover topics such a5 soil formation, particle size, pore spacc, wttcring, mineral and organic 
contcnt, root growth zonc, soil dcvclopmcnt, trcc growtl~ rcsponsc to landscape position and soil dcpth, 
crosion mitigation, and morc. 1\11 topics coordnatc uith statc curricula for thosc grade Icvcls. 

In addition, as you know, 'illc Gardcns attracts many visitors to the area, acting as an cconomic catalyst for 
hfountain Brook Vilhgc, Crestline Villagc, the Grand Bohcmian I-lotcl, and morc. As such, wc look to fostcr 
our rclationship with the City of Mountain Brook's Chmbcr  of Commcrcc. As funding allows, wc mill 
invcstigatc further opportunitiw for us to pxtncr with thc chamber and work with your city. 

Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gardens respectfu1Iy requests continued support in the amount of  
$20,000 from the City of Mountain Brook to help underwrite Discovery Field Trips, thc new 
environmentnl field study program, and our work with the Mountain Brook Chambcr of Commerce 
for the 2015/2016 academic year. Fund.$ protldcd by thc City of Mountain Brook will support thc 
administrative, training and coordination costs. matcrids and cqlllprncnt for thc ficld trips, mdntenancc of 
gardcns whcrc trips takc pL~cc and professional dcvclopmcnt workshops. 

With !*our help, Thc Friends w i l l  continuc to cxpand cducational programming, cnvironrncntal scicncc, 
facilities maintenance and dcvclopmcnt, a5 wcll as horticultural hcdth and diversity. Birmingham Botanical 
Gardcns constitutes a valuable rcsourcc for our community wlich must be maintained and cnhanccd for 
present and future visitors. 

* Rirmin~ham Bnhnicnl Societv. Inc. dba Friends of Binnineham Botanical Gardens 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-158 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Birmingham Children's Theatre subject to 
such minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which 
contract is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 2015. 

Mayor 

CERTIE'ICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Birmingham Children's Theatre contract 2015-158 



CiTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F l C E  OF T H E  M A Y O R  
56 Church Streel 

PO. 502 l30009 
Moonla~n Broak. A'abarno 352 13 
Tclsphone 205 802.3802 
FOE. 205 070 3577 
epsle nc@mlnbrook org 
persand emo I - LoriVo'holla Tcol corn 

October 28,20 1 5 

Ricky Strickland 
Birmingham Children's Theatre 
PO Box 1362 
Birmingham, AL 3520 1 

Dear Mr. Strickland: 

The City of  Mountain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7'". We appreciate your interest in partnering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

After much discussion and deliberation. the City of Mountain Brook has dccidcd to enter 
into a contract for services with your organization in the amount q 10 for FY-20 
I f  you haven't already done so, please cmail a proposed contract for services for FY2tJl6 
(October I ,  201 5 to September 30.20 16) to our City Manager. Sam Gaston, at 
pastonsfZlmtnbrook.orq). The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 
~ovembkr 9Ih or 23'%eetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city govcrnmcnt. We look 
fonvard to a productive and successhl relationship with you in FY-20 16. 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

. %;$ 
Virginia C. Smith 
council President 



BIRMINGHAM 
CHILDREN'S 

THEATRE 

AGREEMENT 

This Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a 
municipal corporation (City) and Birmingham Children's Theatre (BCT), a not-for-profit corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Alabama, effective as of the date last signed below by a party. 

WHEREAS, BCT offers professional theatre for children in the Greater Birmingham Area and 
associated educational and instruction services aligned to the Alabama Course of Study used in public 
schools for children who attend its productions (collectively, the Services); 

WHEREAS, the Services provided by BCT provide unique educational and enrichment 
experiences for children living in any community; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the term, conditions and understandings in this Agreement, the City 
desires that the BCT provides Services that benefit students who attend elementary schools located in 
the City of Mountain Brook; and 

;h 

WHEREAS, KT'S performance of Services for students who attend elementary schools in the 
City enhances the quality of life therein and serves a public purpose for its citizens. 

Witnesseth 

In consideration of the mutual covenants herein and other consideration, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledges, the City and BCT agree as 
follows: 

1. BCT shall offer the following productions and provide Services in connection therewith for 
students who attend elementary schools located in the City: 

MainStaae ~roductions - for students in arades 2-8 include: 

Seussical December 2 - 19,2015 

Tuxedo Junction+ February 3 - 20,2016 

Pinocchio April3 - 27,2016 

28 performances 

30 performances 

34 performances 



Wee Folks Productions - for students in nrades ~reK-1 include: 

Dear Sonta Bov. 23 - 30; Dec. 1 - 18,2015 42 performances 
The Jack and the Beanstalk + Feb. 2 - 20; April 13 - 24,2016 60 performances 

+ Will also tour with BCTOn Tour 

Additional information and commitments by BCT about the Services it will provide are set forth on BCT's 
Request for Contract for Service that is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 

2. As part of BCT's mission to integrate the arts into classroom academics, BCT also will provide, 
a t  no additional charge other than set forth herein, an on-site Study Guide Live for one grade level a t  
each Mountain Brook elementary school for a BCT production of their choice. 

3. In consideration for BCT providing the Services and performing i ts  other obligations set forth 
herein, the City will pay BCT five thousand dollars ($5,000) for its fiscal year October 1, 2015 - 
September 30,2016. These funds will be paid to BCT on or before December 31,2015. 

4. Other Terms and Conditions. 

(a) At i t s  expense, BCT shall provide all personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise necessaw 
to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement. 

(b) BCT is an independent contractor of the City. The City has no right to control the persons, 
agents or employees of BCT who provide the Services, and none of them are agents or 
employees of the City. 

(c) BCT shall indemnify and hold harmless City and its agents, employees, and elected officials 
(collectively the City) from and against all actions, causes, claims, demands, damages, losses 
and expenses of any kind, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees and court costs which 
may be asserted against, or suffered by the City arising out of, or in connection with the acts 
or conduct of BCT, and its agents, employees and representatives, in performing or failing to 
perform any of their obligations under this Agreement. The indemnification obligations in 
this provision shall survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement for a period 
of three years. 

(d) BCT agrees to utilize commercially reasonable accounting procedures which are customary 
to similar operations. BCT shall maintain all financial records and other documents 
pertaining to its performance of obligations under this Agreement for a period of three (3) 
years after i ts  expiration or termination. Upon advance request by the City, BCT agrees to 
provide the City full access to, and the right to examine and audit, any of such financial 
records and other documents at reasonable times during the term of this Agreement or 
during the three-year period following its expiration or termination. 

(e) If BCT fails to perform or comply with any of its material obligations under this Agreement, 
any such failure shall constitute a default hereunder unless corrected by BCT within thirty 
(30) days following its receipt of written notice of such default from the City. Upon the 



occurrence of any such default, the City shall have a right to terminate this Agreement 
before its expiration by giving BCT written notice of such termination effective as of the time 
designated in that notice. Any such termination by City shall not relieve BCT of its 
obligations or liability to City arising hereunder that relate to or arise from events occurring 
before the termination or early expiration of this Contract, 

[f) This Agreement contains the complete terms, conditions, understandings, representations 
and covenants between the City and BCT concerning the matters set forth herein. Unless 
stated herein, any prior negotiations or understandings concerning these matters are 
merger herein and of no effect. 

In witness whereof, the undersigned, duly authorized representatives of the parties have affixed 
their signatures with the intent to bind their respective entities to the obligations in this Agreement. 

BIRMINGHAM CHILDREN'S THEATRE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: 
Printed Name: Ricky Strickland 
Its: Executive Director 
Date: 

By: 
Printed Name: Lawrence T. Oden 
Its: Mayor 
Date: 



BIRMINGHAM CHILDREN'S THEATRE 
City of Mountain Brook Request for Contract of Services 

Name of the Organization: 

Birmingham Children's Theatre 

Mission of the Organization: 

To educate, entertain and enrich the lives of children through the magic of professional theatre. 

Reauest: 

Birmingham Children's Theatre requests a $5,000 contract for funds from City of Mountain Brook to 
provide services that create and increase access to live theatre to Mountain Brook school students, 
parents and teachers. BCT will also provide on-site Study Guide Live to one grade level of the 
elementary schools in the city. 

Birmingham Children's Theatre (BCT), established in 1947, is one of the nation's oldest and largest 
professional theatre companies for young audiences. The mission of Birmingham Children's Theatre 
(BCT) is to educate, entertain and enrich the lives of children through the magic of professional theatre. 
BCT produces high-quality, professional theatrical entertainment and curriculum-relevant arts education 
experiences for children and families. BCT reaches upwards of 150,000 young people annually through 
i ts  performances in Birmingham and on tour throughout Alabama and the Southeast. In its seven 
decades, BCT has touched the lives of more than 12 million children. 

BCT celebrates the connection between literature and theatre and bridges professional theatrical 
entertainment with relevant curriculum-based education experiences for children. Research has shown 
that when students have access to arts education they perform better academically, participate more 
actively in extracurricular activities and are more likely to pursue higher education. BCT is committed to 
live theatre for young audiences within a professional theatre setting. 

BCT i s  second largest employer of professional theatre artists in Alabama. As the resident professional 
theatre of the Birmingham-Jefferson Convention Complex (BJCC), BCT operates the 150-seat Dominick 
Studio Theatre, the intimate 250-seat Wee Folks Theatre for students ages 3-6 and the larger 900-seat 
Mainstage Theatre for students ages 6-up. 

For the 2015-2016 season, Birmingham Children's Theatre is producing eight works including a new 
commissioned script and an Alabama premiere. BCT On Tour will tour four productions to rural 
Alabama and the Southeastern United States; the Academy will offer workshops and master classes; and 
we will provide additional community education programming. BCT's Academy of Performing Arts 
workshops and camps provide individualized instruction and theatre training for students ages 4-16 
each year. 

BCT's ongoing New Voices Project has commissioned more than 50 original scripts, stories, musicals and 
adaptations for young audiences since 1982. BCT maintains a commitment to discovering new voices 
among playwrights, and the presentation and experimentation in dramatic literature for youth. It is 
Alabama's only ongoing new play development project that focuses specifically on theatre for young 
audiences. 



BIRMINGHAM CHILDREN'S THEATRE 
City of Mountain Brook Request for Contract of Services 

2015-2016 Season Repuest for Services: 
Birmingham Children's Theatre desires to enter into a contract for services with the City of Mountain 
Brook thereby increasing opportunities for learning in the Mountain Brook School System. BCT is  a 
community resource that provides the City of Mountain Brook students, parents and teachers access to 
live theatre within a professional theatre setting. The children benefit from the exposure, immersion 
and integration of arts education. At BCT, we are "education" wrapped in amazing, inspiring 
productions that engage your students. The productions that BCT chooses to present are relevant, fresh 
stories covering a variety of topics and classroom literature suggestions and requirements. Generation 
after generation of Mountain Brook residents have attended performances - children, parents, 
grandparents, great grandparents. Yearly, all four of the Mountain Brook elementary schools attend 
BCT with over 1,800 elementary students attending a BCT performance during the 2014-2015 season. 
This does not include children attending from Mountain Brook daycares, performances a t  the Emmett 
O'Neal library and public performances. 

As part of BCT's mission to integrate the arts into classroom academics, BCT will provide an on-site Study 
Guide Live for one grade level at each Mountain Brook elementary school for a BCT production of their 
choice. The Study Guide Live Program is a supplement to the Study Guide offered to teachers for each 
show, but taken to the next level. All BCT Study Guides are tailored for each PreK-8th grade classroom 
and are carefully designed to include both National Arts Standards and State curriculum standards 
outlined by the Alabama Course of Study. 

Study Guide Live focuses on the merit of language arts, its relevance in everyday life and it's usefulness 
in the career field. It is an interactive program that seeks to educate children through the art of theatre 
with a focus on communication, imagination and team-work. Prior to attending the B(3T production, 
BCT staff and teachers work together to create an age appropriate and relevant curriculum, based on 
state standards with focuses on subjects such as history, language arts and theatre craft. Students will 
participate in theatre games and warm ups, and they will also be introduced to various theatre careers, 
practices and etiquette. These activities will stimulate lively responses and multi-sensory explorations of 
concepts in order to use the theatrical event as a vehicle for cross-curriculum and language arts 
learning. Session will last approximately one hour at a time designated by the teacher and school. 

Birmingham Children's Theatre also provides access to Study Guides that empower teachers and parents 
with customized lesson plans, concrete examples of cross-curriculum learning and specified arts 
integration techniques, while challenging students of all ages to bridge their arts experiences with 
current educational standards. These well researched resources will be available for all BCT productions 
and are sure to become a key in-school component for supporting and sustaining arts education both in 
and out of the classroom. 

Birmingham Children's Theatre's actors and teachers attended and brought study guides to all four 
elementary schools this year. Audience reaction to the productions and Study Guide Live was extremely 
positive and well received, by both student and teachers. Some of the teacher's comments were, "very 
interactive and engaging; good for active 1st graders", "I feel the students will get more out of the play 
because of the presentation", "children asked good questions - had our children thinking" and "went 
along with our Reader's Theatre". 

BCT instills a love of theatre while imparting important life lessons and addressing issues facing our 
children. BCT1s MainStage productions will stimulate the creativity and innovation that will prove critical 
to classroom learning. These series of productions are carefully constructed to provide curriculum-based 
entertainment, offering productions, often based in literature or history. BCT puts great importance into 
integrating important social issues, such as bullying and greed, into each season's shows. 



BIRMINGHAM CHILDREN'S THEATRE 
City of Mountain Brook Request for Contract of Services 

This season, Mainstage Productions will share the lessons of love and appreciation of reading and 
books, the consequences of cyber bullying and the effects of technology, the value of people and the 
powers of friendship, loyalty, family and community. 
MainStaae productions - for students in wades 2-8 include: 
The Reluctant Dragon + September 29 - October 9,2015 18 performances 
Seussicol December 2 - 19,2015 28 performances 
Face/ Time *+ February 3 - 20,2016 30 performances 
Pinocchio April 3 - 27,2016 34 performances 

Summer Series -~roductions for families: 
Gingerbread Boy June 2 - 13; July 20 - Aug. 1,2015 40 performances 

Wee Folks productions will share messages and principles such as the value of hard work, the difference 
in doing all you can and doing nothing a t  all, the value of friendship, that nothing is ever hopeless and 
any problem can be solved with a little bit of thinking. 
Wee Folks Productions - for students in grades areK-1 include: 

The Litlle Red Hen + Sept. 15 - Oct. 2,2015 
Dear Santa Nov. 23 - 30; Dec. 1 - 18,2015 
The lock and the Beanstalk + Feb. 2 - 20; April 13 - 24,2016 
* New commissioned work 
+ Will also tour with BCT On Tour 

31 performances 
42 performances 
60 performances 

Goals and Obiectives 

Birmingham Children's Theatre strives to meet the following goals each and every season: (1) Provide 
ideas and tools for teachers to utilize in their existing programs along with ways to use theatre arts in 
other areas of study, such as history, social studies and language arts; (2) To help students gain a better 
understanding of theatrical arts, which research has shown brings overall improvement in their other 
educational studies; and (3) )To introduce theatre arts to students who may never have attended a 
professional live theatre performance. 

Kev Personnel 

Ricky Stricklin (Executive Director) is a CPA and retired as Vice President of Finance for Shook and 
Fletcher Insulation Company. He holds a degree in business and accounting from the University of 
Alabama. He previously was the Director of Finance and Administration at BCT. His experience in 
strategic planning, visioning, and managing financial operations and human resources in a senior 
management position combined with his longtime support and love of the arts community make him a 
great addition to Birmingham Children's Theatre. 

Leah Luker (Production Manager) has written, directed, stage managed and starred in many BCT 
productions over the past eight years. Leah has a degree in theatre and is a proud member of the 
Actors' Equity Association. 

Merelee Robinson (Director of Touring) holds a BA in Theatre Technical and a BA in Theatre 
Performance. She has been working in theatre for the past ten years and has spent the past four years 
touring professionally with several different theatre companies. 

Staff: BCT maintains a full-time administrative and production staff of 15, and will employ over 100 
professional theatre artists in 2015-2016 including actors, directors, choreographers, designers, 
costumers, musicians, technicians and teaching artists. 



BIRMINGHAM CHtLDREN0S THEATRE 
City of Mountain Brook Request for Contract of Services 

Need 

Arts education plays an important role in providing Alabama students with a well-rounded education. 
"The arts provide a vehicle through which to learn almost any subject currently taught in public schools 
today, but regretfully arts education is  one of the first programs to be lost when budgets are limited," 
said Tommy Bice, State Superintendent of Education, in a statement. "It is imperative that we create a 
priority for the arts in our total school program for it is through this creative learning experience so 
many of our students find their 'voice' -- in its broadest sense." 

US. Secretary of Education Arne Duncan remarks that "arts education can help build the case for the 
importance of a well-rounded, content-rich curriculum in at least three ways. First, the arts significantly 
boost student achievement, reduce discipline problems and increase the odds that students will go on 
to graduate from college. Second, arts education is essential to stimulating the creativity and innovation 
that will prove critical to young Americans competing in a global economy. And last, but not least, the 
arts are valuable for their own sake, and they empower students to create and appreciate aesthetic 
works." 

Every season, BCT performs a series of shows for local school children and the general public giving 
children and families the opportunity to share the total theatre experience. BCT is open to all children, 
regardless of age, race, religion or nationality. Over 50% of the youth that attend BCT performances are 
from culturally and financially underserved communities. BCT seeks to expose i ts  youth-centric 
audiences to new heritages, traditions and art forms by producing works that elevate the public 
perception of art and continue to reinforce the artistic merit of live theatre for young audiences. 
Regardless of the need, BCT continues to maintain a policy of ensuring that children can attend a 
performance and works closely with many schools and families to provide complimentary tickets or 
subsided tickets to the underserved communities. Through generous contributions from institutional 
donors and individuals, BCT makes performances available to al l  students in the Greater Birmingham 
metropolitan area. 

Proiect Evaluation 

BCT will evaluate the entire season by collecting standard metrics of participation including numbers of 
teachers served through the utilization of BCT Study Guides, number of students served through in- 
school theatre education workshops and overall number of schools, teachers, students and individuals 
reached by BCT's performances at home and on tour. Beyond these standard attendance measures, 
BCT's Director of Production and Education will oversee formal and informal evaluation of all education 
programs and activities. Both written and electronic surveys will be distributed to attendees to collect 
feedback regarding the quality of work presented, professionalism and instructional techniques 
displayed by teaching artists and staff and the overall degree to which attendees benefited and felt 
engaged. Additionally, both anecdotal and formal survey feedback will be sought from home season 
and tour performance attendees from which all formal evaluation and statistical analysis will occur, and 
if BCT is meeting i ts  specific objectives by producing a long-term impact on attendees. All evaluations 
inform BCT staff and board committees in determining future programming. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-159 

WHEREAS, the Birmingham Zoo ("Zoo") is a regional educational and entertainment attraction 
located adjacent to the municipal limits of the City of Mountain Brook ("City"); and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo serves the Mountain Brook community and its citizens through educational 
and informational programs, offering educational and family entertainment options, and through its 
cooperation in the City's recent flood control efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the City, as a community partner, supports the mission and purpose of the Zoo, and 
has provided financial commitments to the Zoo as a result of the ZOO'S commitments and service to the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook wishes to extend those financial 
commitments to the Zoo for an additional year, all as set forth in the attached Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT MSOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook 
that the City's financial commitments to the Zoo shall be and hereby is extended for an additional year as 
set forth in the attached Agreement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the commitments between the parties expressed in the 
Agreement are deemed to be fair and adequate and serve a public purpose, and the Mayor is hereby 
authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk for the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Birmingham Zoo, Inc. Agreement for Services 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  OF T H E  M A Y O R  
5 6  Church Street 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountoin B ~ o Q ~ ,  Alabama 352 13 
Tclcphonc: 205.602 3802 
F c g .  205.670.3577 
cprtclnc@mtnSiwk.arg 
personal cmdl Lo~~Volhollo@ool.com 

L A V I X E N C E  7 ODEN 
1.1 A Y  0 R 

October 28,201 5 

Dr. Bill Foster. CEO 
Birmingham Zoo 
I Wild Place 
Birmingham, AL 35223 

Dear Dr. Foster: 

The City of Mounlain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7'. We appreciate your interest in pafinering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

AFter much discussion and deliberation, the City of Mountain Brook has decided to enter 
into a contract for services wit11 your organization in the amount of $20,000 for FY-20 16. 
If  you haven't already done so, please email a proposed contract for services for FY-2016 
(October 1,201 5 to September 30.20 16) to our City Manager, Sam Gaston, at 
gastons/amtnbrook.org), The City Council will consider your controct for services at its 
November 91h or 231d meetings. 

Again, thank you for your interesi in our community and city government. We look 
forward to a productive and successful relationship with you in FY-2016. 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

~ i r i i n i a  C. Smith 
Council President 



THIS AGREEMENT made this 9th day of November, 20 1 5 by and between the CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("Mountain Brook"), a municipal corporation of the State of Alabama, 
and the BIRMINGHAM ZOO, INC. ("Zoo"), an Alabama non-profit corporation. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students who attend 
Mountain Brook City Schools; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo has developed certain programs, exhibits, and learning opportunities which, in 
the City's opinion, will be helpfil and instructive to said students; and 

WHEREAS, such programs, exhibits, and learning laboratories are not available at Mountain Brook 
City Schools; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo has agreed to work cooperatively with and assist the City with future public 
works projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to pay the Zoo the sum of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00), 
in consideration of the Zoo providing the City the services referred to in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, the City and the Zoo hereby agree as follows: 

1 .  The City shall pay to the Zoo Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) i n A p ri l of 
2016. 

2. In consideration of the payment of the funds as provided herein, the Zoo shall provide at 
least the following services to the City ("Services';): 

a. The Zoo will provide guides and educational enrichment for all pre-scheduled field trips 
to the Zoo from Mountain Brook City Schools for one ( I )  year from the date of execution 
of this Agreement. In addition, all participants in pre-scheduled field trips from Mountain 
Brook City Schools to the Zoo will be eligible to participate in the Zoo's group discount 
admission program. 

b. The Zoo will provide to Mountain Brook City Schools a series of educational 
programming and classes targeting elementary, middle, and high school students free of 
charge for one (1) year from the date of execution of this Agreement. 

c. The Zoo will use its best efforts to work cooperatively with the City and provide 
assistance and support to the City with the City's future public works projects that are 
located near the Zoo. 

3. Effective upon the execution of this agreement, the City conveys and the Zoo accepts title and 
interest in the soil, dirt, earth and other excavated material that was removed as a result of the City's Flood 
Control Project ("Materials") with no further obligation on the City's part with respect to the storage, removal, 
or redistribution of such materials. 

4. The Zoo shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise necessary to fulfill 

Page 1 of 2 



its obligations to Mountain Brook City Schools under the tenns of this Agreement. The Zoo is an 
independent contractor and none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of the 
City nor shall any of the agents or employees, or other persons, firms, or corporations conducting business 
for or on behalf of the Zoo be deemed to be agents or employees of the City. 

5. The Zoo shall indemnify the City and its agents, employees, and elected officials and hold 
them harmless from and against all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, damages, losses and expenses 
of any kind, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees and court costs, which may be asserted against, or 
suffered by the City or its agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: (a) the performance or 
attempted performance by the Zoo or its agents or employees of the Zoo's obligations under this Agreement; 
and (b) any claim that the payments described herein were improperly paid by the City to the Zoo. 

6. The Zoo agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the types of 
operation conducted by the Zoo and which are customary to similar operations. All financial records and 
other documents pertaining to this Agreement shall be maintained by the Zoo for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement. The City shall have full access to, and the right to 
examine any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable times during the term of this 
Agreement and during said three-year period. The Zoo agrees that upon request from the City, the Zoo will 
submit to and cooperate with periodic audits by the Alabama Department of Public Examiners or other audit 
procedures requested by the City. 

7. If the Zoo fails to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this Agreement and, unless corrected by the Zoo within thirty (3 0) days following 
receipt of written notice for the City of such default, shall be deemed a breach of this Agreement and the 
City shall have a right to terminate this Agreement by giving The Zoo twelve (12) days prior written notice 
of such termination, and the City shall not be obligated to make any additional payments to the Zoo. Such 
termination of this Agreement by the City shall not relieve the Zoo of any of its obligations or liabilities to 
the City under the provisions of paragraph 4 of this Agreement, whether such obligations or liabilities occur 
or accrue before or after the termination of this Agreement. 

In witness whereof, the Birmingham Zoo, Inc. has caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly 
authorized Chief Executive Officer and the City of Mountain Brook has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all as of the - day of November, 2015. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK BlRMINCHAM ZOO, INC. 

Lawrence T. Oden William R. Foster 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook Chief Executive Officer, Birmingham Zoo, Inc. 

Attest: Attest: 

Page 2 of 2 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-160 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Prescott House subject to such minor changes 
as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 20 15. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certi6 the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Prescott House contract 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

O F F I C E  O F  THE M A Y O R  
56 Church Street 
PO. Box 130009 
tAountc~n Brook, A lobona  352 13 
Telephone. 205 807.3802 
Fax. 205.870 3577 
epste~nc@rr.!nSrwk.olg 
personal emall - Los~Vclhalb@col corn 

LAVtREEICE T. ODEN 
MAY 0 R 

October 28,201 5 

Mr. David Barber 
Prescott House 
1730 14Ih Avenue South 
Birmingham, AL 35205 

Dear Mr. Barber: 

The City of Mountain Brook would like to thnnk you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7". We appreciate your interest in pafinering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

After much discussion and deliberation. the City OF Mountain Brook has decided to enter 
into a contract for services with your organizalion in the mount 
If you haven't already done so, please email a proposed contract 
(October 1 , 2 0 1  5 to September 30,201 6) to our City Manager, Sam Gaton. a1 
astons~mtnbrook.or~). The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 

i o v e r n ~ r  9 '  or 23" meetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city government. We look 
fonvard to a productive and successful relationship with you in FY-20 16. 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

~ i G i n i a  C. Smith 
Council President 



From: Barber, David [mailto:barberd@icmI.orq] 
Sent: Monday, November 02,2015 8:51 PM 
To: Sam Gaston 
Cc: Barber, David 
Subject: Fwd: Service Contract for City of Mt. Brook, 2016 

Sam, THANK YOU for your help in securing this funding for Prescott House for the new FY! 

My Executive Director called me this morning with the good news, so attached is the contract 
you requested. Prosecutors are not known for their contract drafting skills, so if the City Attorney 
wants to tweak the attached document that is perfectly acceptable to me - no pride of authorship 
here! 

Let me know if this document is acceptable and I will come by City Hal1 and sign it. 

Thanks again! 

David Barber 
205-53 1-3375 (Cell) 



CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, Prescott House provides forensic interviews for law enforcement agencies 
in reported cases of reported, or suspected, child physical abuse and sexuaI abuse; and 

WHEREAS, Prescott House has been providing said services to law enforcement 
agencies in the Birmingham Division of Jefferson County, Alabama, including the 
Mountain Brook Police Department, since Prescott House began operation in March, 
1987; and 

WHEREAS, Prescott House provides these services at no cost to the child, the child's 
family, or to the Mountain Brook Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, Prescott House is a not-for-profit corporation under the laws of the State of 
Alabama, and has been granted non-profit status under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code; and 

WHEREAS, Prescott House has never received any financial support from the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, in support of it's continuous services to the City; 

PRESCOTT HOUSE offers to enter into an agreement with the City of Mountain Brook 
whereby Prescott House will continue to provide such services to the citizens of 
Mountain Brook, and the Mountain Brook Police Department, as needed, for FY 2016 in 
consideration of Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) to be paid to Prescott House during 
FY 2016. 

Done this day of ,2015, by 

For the City of Mountain Brook, AL 

David Barber, Founder & President of the Board 
On behalf of Prescott House 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-161 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that either the 
Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, to 
enter into a contract with the McWane Science Center, a copy of which contract is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day ofNovember 201 5 .  

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Brook at its meeting held on November 9,201 5, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of McWane Science Center contract 



O F F I C E  O F  T H E  M A Y O R  
56 Church 5tracl 
P.O. 001 130009 
t,fountain Brook. Alabuma 352 13 
Tclephonc: 205.802.3802 
Fax. 205.870.3577 
epsteinc@r.~nbrook.arg 
po:sonal ernoil - Lcti~ValhellaQcoi.com 

LAWREIJCE T OOEtJ 
M A Y  0 R 

October 28,20 1 5 

Susan Tipton 
The McWane Center 
200 f 9"' Street North 
Birmingham, AL 35203 

Dear Ms. Tipton: 

The City of Mountain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7"'. We appreciate your interest in parhering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents. 

Afier much discussion and deliberation, the City of Mountain Brook has decided to enter 
into a contract for services with your organization in the amount of % 10.000 for FY-2016. 
IF you haven't already done so, please cmait a proposed contract for services for FY-20 1 6 
(October I ,  2015 to September 30,201 6) to our City Manager. Sam Gaston. at 
pastons(i7rntnbrook.org). The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 
November 9'h or 23rhmeetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city government. We look 
fonvard to a productive and successful relationship with you in FY-2016. 

Sincerely. 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

Virginia C. Smith 
Council President 



: sW% 
Mc\I;:.? 

b Science CenTer 
November 41h, 2015 

Mr. Steven Boone 
Finance Director 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, A1 35213-0009 

Mr. Boone, 

Thank you and the City of Mountain Brook for awarding funding to McWane Science 
Center for fiscal year 2016. This funding will not only assist with science education 
opportunities for Mountain Brook residents but also help us continue to serve as a 

positive extension of your school classrooms. Science education is essential for the 
overall development of our children. Together we can continue to "change lives 
through science and wonder." 

Included, as requested, please find the contract signed by our President 81 CEO, 
Amy templeton. A complete list of Mountain Brook school field trips and 

Outreaches from the 2014-15 school year has been included for your review. 

If I can be of any further services, please do not hesitate to ask. 

J&& y Shanno 

u ~ e v e l o ~ r n e n t  Office 
(205) 714-8220 

cshannon@mcwane.org 

200 Nineteenth Street North Birminghom, Alabama 35203 Telephone 205 714-8300 Fox 205 714-8400 www.mcwane.org 



McWane 
Science cenTer 

A Contract for Funds to support services provided by 
McWane Science Center to the students of Mountain Brook 

October 2015 - September 201 6 

Submitted to: 
The City of Mountain Brook 

by 
McWane Science Center 

200 Nineteenth Street North 
Birmingham, AL 35203 
Phone: (205) 714-8300 

Fax: (205) 714-8400 



McWane Science Center - City of Mountain Brook Contract 

The Overview 

This contract Is entered into by the City of Mountain Brook and McWane Science Center, a non- 
profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama. 

Both the City of Mountain Brook and McWane Science Center desire to increase the opportunities 
for learning in the Mountain Brook School System. McWane Science Center serves as a community 
resource unlike any other educational institution in the Greater Birmingham Area offering hands-on 
interactive information science and technology education programs. These programs are directly aligned 
to the Alabama Course of Study Science Mucation Curriculum and the National Science Standards. 

Therefore, due to the ability to enhance science education for school children, the City of 
Mountain Brook has agreed to pay McWane Science Center $10,000 for use of the Center and Ik 
programs by the students in the Mountain Brook School System for fiscal year 
October 2015 - September 2016. 

McWane Science Center services supported through this contract 

This contract supports three different science education programs provided by McWane Science 
Center. In consideration of this support, students may visit the science center and partkipate in its 
programs or partlclpate in our outreach program. 

This contract supports services up to $10,000 for the fiscal year. Each student fee for visits to 
the science center is $12 for Adventure Halls and a Reserved School Program. The student fee for both 
the Adventure Halls and an IMAX film is $15. Teachers and chaperones are admitted free to Adventure 
Halls, $5 for only an IMAX film and $5 for both the Adventure Halls and an IMAX film. 

Fees for outreach programs vary depending on the type of program and classroom size. A 
classroom outreach of up to 32 students is $125, An assembly outreach, which accommodate a larger 
number of students (100 +) Is $250. 

McWane Sclence Center shall provide Teacher Guides far each school for the duration of this 
contract. Educabn from McWane Science Center shalt be avallable at least two times each year to 
participate in teacher professional development workshops, training sessions, and In-service programs. 
During this time, McWane Science Center educators shall provide Mountain Brook teachers with 
information about the outreach programs, permanent exhibits, traveling exhibits, and science education 
programs and demonstrations that tle directly into the Alabama Course of Study Sdence Education 
Curriculum. 

Other services such as food services, parking and bus parking are available fbr classes during 
their visits to McWane Science Center at advertised prices. 

Support from Mountain Brook City Schools in consideration of this contract 

I n  coordination with the Mountain Brook Superintendent, Mountain Brook Schools shall select the 
students and the programs in which these students will partidpale. Each Mountain B m k  City School and 
the Superintendent's off~ce shall select a liaison for this contract. The liaison shall coordinate this 



antract for hislher particular school and work with a designated McWane Science Center Visitor Services 
=presentative or Groups Sales staff member. 

Each Mountain Brook City School shall be responsible for providing transportation to the science 
center for both visits to the science center and participation in the Challenger Learning Center. Adult 
chaperones shall be provided by Mountaln Brook City Schools for students at McWane Science Center, 
McWane Science Center requires one chaperone for every six students in grades K-8, 

Each Mountain Brook School liaison shall contact the McWane Science Center Grants 
Administrator at least 12 school days prior to a proposed visit to the science center. 

During the late spring, McWane Science Center can have over 1,500 students a day. McWane 
Science Center would like to strongly encourage a visit, mission or a program early in the spring t e n  so 
that the students can take full advantage of this contract. 

Both the Mountain Brook City Schools and McWane Science Center shall keep a record of the 
number of students who have participated in programs through the use of this contract and the programs 
in which they have participated, They shall work together to reconcile these numbers each year and 
report these numbers to the Mountain Brook Superintendent, the Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook 
and the Mountain Brook City Council. 

Any fees for services over the allotted amount of $10,000 shall be covered by either the schools 
or the students. 

Agreement 

This agreement represents the entire contract between the City of Mountain Brook and McWane Sclence 
Center. The signatures listed below attest to the agreement of the contract as stated. 

president and CEO, McWane Science Center 
Lawrence T, Oden 
Mayor of Mountain Brook 

Date 



- - . -  - I .?y, ;.&E I,.. .. I .  , 
Li 

\ \we fq,,\ 3 
-7--J Science CenTer 

Mountain Brook Involvement With McWane Science Center 

City of Mountain Brook 
June 1,2014 - May 31,2015 

# of General Visitors (based an zip codes: 35213,35223 and 35243) - 13,572 

Citv of Mountain Brook Field Trips - 436 

Mo~rritni~i Brook Ele~~ienfury School - 275 
Adventure Halls / Robotics Challenge program I 

MAX - Mysteries of the Unseen World 
Adventure Halls I IMAX -Journey into Space 
Adventure Halls I Electrifying Experiences / 

IMAX - Mysteries of the Unseen World 

Mottnfnitt Brook Higlt Sclzool- 20 
Adventure Halls 

Cresrlinc Elententary Scliool - 14 1 
Adventure Halls / IMAX -Mysteries of the Unseen World 

City of Mountain Brook Outreach Propram - 1,358 

Broohvood Forest Elerllrnrory Scltool - I93 
Star Dome 
Marvels of Magnets 

Clterokee Bend E1enreiitnr-y School - 526 
Liquid Lab 
Light Bright 
Amazing Animals 
Marvels of Magnets 
Reactions in Action 
Dinosaur Detectives 
Rocks and Minerals 



Star Dome 

Crestline Elel~zentary Sclzool - 489 
Rocks and Minerals 
Liquid Lab 
MarveIs of Magnets 
Reactions in Action 
Reactions in Action 

Mou~ztain Brook Elementmy Sclwol - 149 

Marvels of Magnets 
Star Dome 

Other Groups (based on zip codes: 35213,35223 and 35243) - 1,723 
Camp Gan Israel 
Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation 
Youth Serve 

James Rushton Foundation 
YMCA 
Be Kare Child Development Center 

I Canterbury Child Development Center 
Can terbury United Methodist Church 
Jewish Levite Community Center 
Highland School 

Country Club of Birmingham 
JBS Mental Health Authority 
Crestline Early Learning Center 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-168 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Alabama Ballet subject to such minor changes 
as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 9,2015 as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Alabama Ballet contract 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

o r r l c c  O F  T H E  M A Y O R  
56 Church Streal 
PO. Bor 130009 
Movnluin Brook, Alobomo 352 13 
Telephone: 205.802.3802 
Fnz. 205.070.3577 
epsteinc@m?nbrook.arg 
personal cmdt - l.aatVahalto@ool corn 

L A W R E N C E  7. ODEN 
MAYOR 

October 28.20 15 

Melanie Mooney 
Alabama Ballet 
2726 First Avenue South 
Birmingham, AL 35223 

Dear Ms. Mooney: 

The City of Mountain Brook would like to thank you for making a presentation to our 
City Council on October 7'. We appreciate your interest in paitnering with the City to 
improve the quality of life in our community for our residents, 

Afier much discussion and deliberation, the City oTMountain Brook has decided to enter 
into a contract for services with your organization in the amount of $2.500 for FY-2016. 
If you haven't already done so, please email a proposed contracl for services for FY-2016 
(October 1,201 5 to September 30,20 16) to our City Manager, Sam Gaston, at 
astons(iimtnbrook.org). The City Council will consider your contract for services at its 

kovember 9"' or 23d meetings. 

Again, thank you for your interest in our community and city government. We look 
forward to a productive and successful relationship with you in FY-2016. 

Sincerely, 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

Virginia C. Smith 
Council President 



."Alabama -a -1 Ballet 
Contract for Services - Fiscal Year 201 5-1 6 

This Contract for Services ("Contract") is entered into by and between the City of Mountain Brook, an 
Alabama municipal corporation ("City") and the Alabama Ballet, a not-for-profit corporation organized under the 
laws of the State of Alabama ("Contractor"), effective as of the date last signed below by a party ("Effective Date"). 

WHEREAS, the Contractor offers educational and artistic programming and services through professional 
performances, in-school programs and meaningful outreach efforts at no or below cost; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to increase learning opportunities and provide unique enrichment 
experiences for students who attend schools in the Mountain Brook system by entering into this Contract pursuant 
to which the Contractor will perform the educational services contemplated herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor's performance of the contemplated services for students who attend schools 
in the City will enhance the quality of life and serve a public purpose for all its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the term, conditions and understandings in this Contract, Ule City desires that the 
Contractor provide the educational services for students provided herein. 

Now wherefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the City and Contractor agree as follows: 

1. The City shall pay Contractor the sum of two thousand twenty-five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), within 
fifteen (15) days folowing the Effective Date of this Contract. 

2. The Contractor shall provide the following minimum level of senrices during the City's fiscal year 
beginning October 1,2015 and ending September 30,2016 (collectively, the "Services"): 

a. Contractor will provide free tickets to students in the City who attend school productions, 

b. Contractor will provide one Dance Discovery Workshop at a Mountain Brook City School 
designated by the City Council or the City of Mountain Brook Board of Education. Grade 
level to be decided. 

c. Contractor will provide one public performance or one school performance of a repertory 
program at a venue to be approved by both parties. 

d. Contractor will provide PDF versions of curriculum guides for all major productions to 
Mountain Brook public school teachers. The curriculum guide includes the production's 
plot history, facts, ballet theatre etiquette, ballet vocabulary and a guide for teachers to 
use to supplement lesson plans regarding the ballet before and after attending the 
performance. 

e. Contractor will keep its ballet school tuition at current rates and maintain scholarship 
levels for students who attend City Schools. 

f. If students are charged to attend school productions, Contractor will keep its ticket prices 
at $20.00 per ticket for students who attend schools in the City. 

3. Contractor shall provide all personnel, supplies, equipment and expertise necessary to fulfill its 
obligations under this Contract. 



4. The Contractor is an independent contractor of the City. The City has no right to control the persons, 
agents or employees of the Contractor who provide the Services, and none of them are agents or 
employees of the City. 

5, The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents, employees, and elected 
officials (collectively the "City") from and against all actions, causes, claims, demands, damages, 
losses and expenses of any kind, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees and court costs which 
may be asserted against, or suffered by the City, arising out of, or in connection with the acts or 
conduct of the Contractor, and its agents, employees and representatives, in performing or failing to 
perform any of their obligations or Setvices under this Agreement. The indemnification obligations in 
this provision shall survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement for a period of three 
years. 

6. The Contractor agrees to utilize commercially reasonable accounting procedures which are 
customary to similar operations. The Contractor shall maintain all financial records and other 
documents pertaining to its performance of obligations under this Contract for a period of three (3) 
years after its expiration or termination. Upon advance request by the City, the Contractor agrees to 
provide the City full access to, and the right to examine and audit, any of such financial records and 
other documents at reasonable times during the term of this Contract or during the three-year period 
following its expiration or termination. 

7. If the Contractor fails to perform or comply with any of its material obligations under this Contract, any 
such failure shall constitute a default hereunder unless corrected by Contractor within thirty (30) days 
following its receipt of written notice of such default from the City. Upon the occurrence of any such 
default, the City shall have a right to terminate this Agreement before its expiration by giving 
Contractor written notice of such termination effective as of the time designated in that notice. Any 
such termination by City shall not relieve Contractor of its obligations or liability to the City arising 
hereunder that relate lo or arise from events occurring before the termination or early expiration of 
this Contract. 

8. This Contract contains the complete terms, conditions, understandings, representations and 
covenants between the City and the Contractor conceming the matters set forth herein. Unless 
stated herein, any prior negotiations or understandings conceming these matters are merged herein 
and of no effect. 

In witness whereof, the undersigned, duly authorized representatives of the parties have affixed their 
signatures with the intent to bind their respective entities to the obligations in this Contract. 

ALABAMA BALLET CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: 
Printed Name: Melanie Moonev 

By: 
Printed Name: Lawrence T. Oden 

Its Director Its: Mayor 
Date: Date: 



!Alabama '7 Ballet 
201 5 Cih, of Mountain Brook 
Request for Service Contract 

Alabama Ballet Com~any 
The Alabama Ballet Company (AB), formed in 1981 is second-to-none in artistic excellence as Birmingham's second largest 
performing arts organization and Alabama's largest professional ballet company. The mission of AB is to promote and foster 
the development of classical and contemporary ballet through high quality performances, dance education and community 
outreach. The company is made up of 42 professional dancers from around the world. Under the artistic direction of Tracey 
Alvey, the A0 performs five major programs during its regular season and tours throughout the state. This includes 
performances in Anniston, Montgomery, and Rainsville. The Alabama Ballet Center for Dance is a 21,500 square-foot facility 
with six studios which houses the company's administrative and artistic offices, the costume shop (with more than 750 
costumes) and the Alabama Ballet School of Dance - Alabama's only ballet school accredited by the Royal Academy of 
Dance (RAD). In 2009, the Alabama Ballet rounded out its programming by becoming the home of the Alabama Ballet 
Tappers, a tap group with ages ranging from 3 to 82, with an annual performance in May at the Virginia Samford Theatre. 
Each year, the AB touches the lives of more than 30,000 people, including 15,000 youth in Alabama through its education 
and outreach programs. 

There is a long history of ballet in Alabama, and the AB is proud to be the state's premier, professional ballet company. A6 
is one of only 56 ballet companies in America with budgets of $1 million or more. AB provides the highest standard for 
professional dance in Alabama backed by its national reputation of being only one of eight companies licensed to perform 
George Balanchine's The Nutcracker. AB was the first ballet company in the state to offer full-time contracts to its 
professional dancers. AB also offers the strongest training environment for young professional ballerinas through its 
apprenticeship program and the Alabama Ballet School of Dance. AB provides a leadership role in strengthening and 
sharing the state's rich heritage of ballet, giving professional dancers the opportunity to remain in the state and pursue their 
careers. AB has strong community support and partnerships with numerous organizations including Sarnford University and 
the Alabama School of Fine Arts (ASFA) as our primary performance venues are at Samford's Wright Center (WC) and 
ASFA's Dorothy Jemison Day Theater. Southern Danceworks (SDW) uses our facility for rehearsal space, and AB also 
provides free office space to the Alabama Dance Council as we partner with them on numerous educational projects. AB is 
proud to serve Alabama through dance, having a $2.5 million positive impact on Alabama's economy and strengthening the 
cultural fabric of the community we serve. 

2015116 is our 34h Season, and it includes five major programs on the home season and a statewide tour, with appearances 
in Anniston, Rainsville and Montgomery, in addition to returning for two productions at the new Alabama School of Fine Arts 
(ASFA) Dorothy Jemison Day Theatre. 

The Alabama Ballet (AB), consisting of 42 professional company dancers, is led by Artistic Director Tracey Alvey. AB will 
perform 5 major performances in the 2015-16 Season, with appearances in Birmingham, Anniston, Montgomery, and 
Rainsville, Alabama. An additional tour in Oxford is also under review. 

There are a total of 41 season performances, and 11 school performances, with a pending tour that would provide 3 
additional performances. The 2015-16 Season schedule includes At  Home (aptly named after AB's home facility, the 
Alabama Ballet School of Dance), September 25-27 and October 1-4; American Horror Stories, October 29-31 and 
November 1, which include Agnes DeMillefs fall River Legend and Frank Staffs Transfigured Night, Alabama School of 
Fine Arts (ASFA); Snow White, October 30, (ASFA); George Balanchine's The Nutcracker, December 3-6, Anniston 
Performing Arts Center (APAC) and December 11-13 and 18-20,Samford Wright Center (WC), Don Quixote, February 13, 
Northeast Alabama Community Center (NACC), February 18-21 (WC), and March 4-5, Montgomery Performing Arts Center 
(MPAC); and Coppbia and the Toymaker, April 7-10 (ASFA). 



.).la bama 7 Ballet 
2015 Citv of Mountain Brook 
Request for Service Contract 

Request for Contract Sewices 
The Alabama Ballet respectFully requests $10,000 from the City of Mountain Brook, which includes: 

free school show tickets to Mountain Brook City School children 
Dance Discovery Workshops to a Mountain Brook City School of the council's choosing 
an opportunity for a performance in a Mountain Brook City School of the council's choosing 
access to curriculum guides for all our major productions to Mountain Brook public school teachers 
keeping Alabama Ballet ticketing pricing below production costs 

Alabama Ballet's Current Service Numbers to Mountain Brook Residents 

24% of the Alabama Ballet ticket buyers live in Mountain Brook 
15% of the students in our RAD Accredited Ballet School reside in Mountain Brook 
Mountain Brook public schools attend our free school performances such as Cherokee Bend Elementary, Crestline 
Elementary and Mountain Brook Elementary 
The Alabama Ballet is part of the strong cultural sector of the greater Birmingham area, which makes Mountain 
Brook an attractive place to live and work as well as has a positive impact on the economy 

AB's Current Proorams 

Professional Dance Comuany- AB employs forty-two professional dancers for 30 weeks a year. A0 members perform 
classical and modern ballet for thousands of Alabama residents each year. They have classes and rehearsals five lo six 
days a week and many serve as faculty members at numerous colleges and universities throughout the Birmingham area as 
well as teach students in our own Alabama Ballet School of Dance. 

Alabama Ballet School of Dance [ABSDI- The ABSD opened in September 1999 at the new Alabama Ballet Center for 
Dance. In September 2008, the ABSD became the state's only dance school accredited by the Royal Academy of Dance 
(RAD). The school's faculty receives several weeks of training in order to offer a unified curriculum and students take annual 
RAD exams which are developed at the international level. The ABSD provides the highest quality training to aspiring artists, 
which are specifically designed to be artistically challenging at all ages and skill levels. 

Education and Communitv Prosramminq- The benefits of educational and outreach programs extend beyond exposing 
children to the arts. Dance education improves learning, specifically math, and helps to develop social skills as well as 
building self-esteem. The art form also benefits because it brings in new talent that othetwise might never have made its 
way to a ballet class. Tracey Alvey, Alabama Ballet's Artistic Director, said, "If we didn't have education outreach, we might 
miss the next ballet star." AB offers numerous education and community programs including: 

Dance Discovery Workshops are presented in schools for students in an assembly atmosphere to introduce basic ballet 
repertoire and discuss the historical context of the choreography, costumes and music. The Dance Discovery Workshops 
are designed for groups of 50 to 100 students where company dancers engage children in the basic history of ballet, dance 
terms and techniques while performing brief excerpts of work that showcase the depth and variety of the ballet repertoire. 
These programs are targeted for students K-8. 

Free School Show Tickets are awarded to at-risk schools for each major production of the season. AB performs school 
shows for each major production we present throughout the season. These school shows serve more than 10,000 children 
from around the state. All studenls are provided a ticket at no cost and priority is given to students from underserved areas. 
More than 100 schools representing 15 counties in Alabama take advantage of our Free School Shows each year. 



!Alabama '7 Ballet 
Citv of Mountain Brook 

Request for Service Contract 

2nd Tuesday is a free educational program in which performances are held at the Alabama Ballet Center for Dance. Our 
2nd Tuesday Series is an infonnal AB performance and "studio chat" with Artistic Director Tracey Alvey. These 
performances are free and open to the public and give a behind the scenes glimpse of our season produclions. 

Summer Programs include skill based programs designed to fit the needs to young dancers. Summer Intensive programs 
for ages 12-19 are for ballet students who wish to continue their training over the summer break and focus on transitioning 
into higher level ballet curriculum. Junior Ballet Camp is offered for students 8-12 and Dance Camps for ages 4-7 called 
"Tutus and Tiarasw give younger ballet students and those new to the art form a week-long experience which culminates with 
an in-studio performance for participants' family and friends. 

Touring Programming- AB is the state's premier, professional ballet company and brings its productions to venues 
throughout the state. Each year, we partner with Knox Concert Series to present George Balanchine's The Nufcracker in 
Anniston. This year, we are also performing Don Quixofe in Rainsville and Montgomery. 

The Alabama Ballet is a strong believer in the importance of evaluating how we meet the needs of the conslituents we 
serve. Our goals are measured by audience attendance, number of services provided and the quality of the performances 
and the accomplishment of our students. Also considered are factors such as continual development of new ballet works 
and the presentation of works never performed in Alabama, number and attendance of community outreach programs and 
the feedback from constituents participating in education programs. A thorough evaluation by our Board of Trustees and 
staff includes a review of our organization's mission and goals, and a realistic assessment of whether or not our activities 
serve the core values of the organization .The Alabama Ballet education and artistic staff adhere to the standards of the 
Royal Academy of Dance (RAD) Curriculum, and our students and school faculty are evaluated annually by RAD 
representatives. This provides an annual outside assessment of the quality of educational programs. 

Financial Information 

Please see attached Line Item Budget 
Other funding sources: 

Source Amount 
Alabama Power Foundation $10,000 
Alabama State Council of the Arts $48,200 
Mike and Gillian Goodrich Foundation $50,000 
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Alabama $35,000 
Robert R. Meyer Foundation $35,000 
Protective Life FoundaPon $1 0,000 
Comer Foundation $30,000 

Status 
Received 
Received 
Pending 
Received 
Pending 
Pending 
Pending 

Please see attached Audit for the fiscal year ending on July 31,2014 
IRS Determination letter is attached 

Conclusion 
The generous past support of the City of Mountain Brook and the residents of Mountain Brook have helped the Alabama 
Ballet carry out its purpose to change lives through dance. We promote and foster the development of classical and 
contemporary ballet through high quality performance, dance education and community outreach. With renewed contracted 
service funding from the City of Mountain Brook, the Alabama Ballet will maintain the highest possible standards of artistic 
excellence and sustain its commitment to delivering exhilarating performances, innovative educational programs and 
enriching community engagement programs for all the citizens of the City of Mountain Brook. Funding from local government 
agencies is vital to the A0 as it serves as matching funds for our Operating Grant from the Alabama State Council on the 
Arts. Thank you for your consideration. 



2015/116 Board of Trustees 
Executive Committee * Hononly Trustee Emeritus 

4 lifetime Board Memben 

Page Nand 
Chairman 
Teresa C. Shufllebarger 
Past Chairman 
Mary Goodrich 
Chairman Elect 
Eric Pruitt 
Secretary 
David Woodall 
Treasurer 
Glenda Cochran 
Tom Fox 
Mary Virginia Mandell 
Eileen Markstein 
Colin Mitchell 
Scott Vowell 

Board of Trustees 
Priala Cmmmekn Ball 
Sylvia Hagan Barnes 
Betty Ferguxln Brice- 
Karen Carroll 
Donna Chrislian 
Anne Copebnd 
Lauren DeMoss 
Susan Origgers 
Krystal Drummond 
Dr. C. Morgan Eiland- 
Shirley Brice Uliolt 
Shari Gamson 
James W. Gewin 
Lori Goodson 
Joy Grenier 
Wyatl R. Haskeb 
Ashley I n w e  
Ray Jordan 
Scarlolte Kilgore 
John A. tacey 
Dr. Lisa Mani 
Mary Mclnnis 
Kacj Ireland Mitchell- 
Raphael Pierw 
Eva Robertsan 
Jeremy Retherford 
Michael Sansbury 
Me'inda Sellen 
Garland Cook Smilh- 
Courtney Slephens 
R. Thomas Warburton 
Mallie Mitchell Whatley 
George Wilbanks 

Honorary Board Members 
Gage Bush" 
Jane S. Comer 
Penelope Cunningham' 
Clara Gethardt 
Barbara G. Gotlieb 
Melissa Lassiter 
Jeh Jeh Pruitt 
Dudley Reynolds 
Tammy Toms 
Rebecca Wise 

Ram Tool & Supply Company 

Baptist Health Systems 

Community Volunteer 

Baker Donelson Beannan Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC 

PricewatehouseCoopen, LLP 

Cochran & Associates 
National Tube Holding Co. 
Community Volunleer 
Markslein Consulting 
Community Volunteer 
Retired 10h Cim:l Cwti Judge 

Soulheastern Conference 
Community Vdunteer 
Birmingham Zoo 
Community Volunteer 
Regions Bank 
Maynard, Cooper & Gale. P.C. 
Univeniv of Alabama at Birmingham 
Drumrnond Coal Saks. Inc. 
Doctor. Image SouUl 
Bradley Aranl Bout1 Cummings LLP 
Cmmun'ly Volunleer 
Bradley Arant Bouft Cummings LLP 
Emst 8 Young LLP 
Regions Bank 
Retired Haske!! Slaughter Young B Rediker, LLC 
Community Vdunteer 
FlowerSuds 
Community Volunteer 
Merrill Lynch 
Occupational Medidne Consultant 
Community Volunleer 
Community Volunteer 
Urban Energy Enterprises L C  
PmterAve Lira 
Balch B Bingham LLP 
Spobwood Sansom & Sansbury LLC 
Burr B Forman LLP 
Community Volunteer 
Community Volunleer 
Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP 
Community Volunleer 
Drummond Coal Sa'es, inc. 

Honorary Trustee Emeritus 
Community Vdunteer 
H~norafy Trustee Emeritus 
Sarnford University 
Community Volunteer 
Ballet Women's Cornmiltee 
Fox 6 

Jackie O'Neal Dance Studio 
Ballet Gunld of Birmingham 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-162 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the Alabama Power Company be requested to install a street light on an existing pole between 
2720 and 2724 Mount Royal Circl (see attached map! illustration -Exhibit A). 

2. That the City Clerk be directed to furnish the Alabama Power Company a certified copy of this 
resolution. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November, 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day ofNovember, 2015. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I ,  Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on November 9,2015, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Mount Royal Circle Street Light Installation 



-Original Message- 
From: rusty hyde [mailto:rustv@hvde-ear.com1 
Sent: Thursday, November 05.2015 851 AM 
To: 'Sam Gaston'; Therrell, Deborah L. 
Subject: RE: Street Light Request 

Sam, 

The fixture Debbie mentions is a HPS cobra head and it is pretty ugly. 
Typical of HPS, it has a ghastly orange hue with a lot of spill. I would 
definitely oppose that fixture at our location because of a) lamp color 
and b) light trespass. 

I'd prefer a 100W (5000 lumens) metal halide with an improved head. 
Better yet, a 5000 lumen LED. 

Debbie- Hey, 1 haven't talked with you in a while. 

Rusty 

Russell Hyde, P.E. 
Hyde Engineering 
3120 8th Avenue South 
Birmingham, Alabama 35233 

-Original Message- 
From: Sam Gaston [mailto:gastons&mtnbmk.~ 
Sent: Thursday, November 05,2015 8:41 AM 
To: rusty hyde 
Subject: FW: Street Light Request 

See the comments below from APCO. Could be a 100watt although the one on 
Mount Royal Place is a 150 watt. 
Suggestions? 

Sam S.Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook, AL. 
56 Church Street 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook AL. 3521 3 
(205) 802-3803 Phone 
(205) 870-3577 Fax 

-Original Message- 
From: Therrell, Deborah L. [mailto:DLTHERRE@southemco.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, November 03,2015 10:12 AM 
To: Sam Gaston 
Subject: Re: Street Light Request 

The pole around the comer that has a 150 watt light at street is on Mount 
Royal Place. 



Sent from my iPhone 



Omdlmlu 
a m  t!eaun~~ ThtlO8dwrDr3 CI-w 

City of Mountri? Bpok , ,umJna 
On ,,,, 9th wol November 2015 

I , , rdoplrdnrolulbmwhlPb mar hmrrnlmnn of 

R m n O m u l M p  - 
*d- worr)nrr 

~ q c u n w  
*-P 

wata RUMMI mbn 
llllJL *am W W  Rmm 

1 150W HPS C@rahead-Existing pole between 2720 and - * 

2724 Mount Royal Circle 
1 --__ 

* * 

* 

. . 
mnqwstdnodUhllbnrWIOdun((r LrpnrrnlbN8n~aounUu~nWou: 

'See attached (4 MdlUOm . 
a. 

sue attached 
(bD Flmmovlla, 





CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

56 Church Street 

PO. Box 130009 
Mounlain Brook, Aloboma 3521 3 
Telephone: 205.802.3803 
Fax. 205.870.3577 
gosions@rntnbrook.org 

S A M  S. GASTON 
CITY MANAGER 

November 3,201 5 

Dear Resident, 

The City of Mountain Brook has received a request for a street light between 2720 and 
2724 Mount Royal Circle. Alabama Power Company recommends a 150-watt street light 
to be mounted on an existing utility pole at this location. (See attached map.) 

The Mountain Bmok City Council will consider this request at its November 9Ih meeting 
which begins at 7:00 p.m. You are invited to attend this meeting to offer your comments 
on this proposed street light. If you cannot attend the City Council meeting on November 
9Ih but would like to comment, please contact me at 802-3803 or gastons@mtnbrook.org. 

Sincerely, 

Sam S. Gaston 
City Manager 





RESOLUTION NO. 2015-163 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of a contract for services between the City and 
ETC Institute to design and administer a citizen survey, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit 
A, subject to such minor revisions as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November, 2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November, 20 15. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifL the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on November 9,201 5, as  same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

ETC Institute Citizen Survey 



Contract for Services and Scope of Work 
Between ETC Institute and the City of Mountain Brook, AL 

ARTICLE I: SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1. Overview of Services to Be Performed. ETC Institute will design and administer a 
citizen survey for the City of Mountain Brook, AL. The survey will be designed and 
administered in 2016, ETC Institute will provide a draft report within 8 weeks of the 
time the survey is approved by the City. ETC Institute will provide a final report within 1 
week of receiving feedback fiom the City on the draft report. 

2. Maximum fixed fee. The total fee for the project is $15,700. This includes $13,200 to 
design and administer the survey and provide a formal report and summary, and $2,500 to 
provide GIs mapping. 

3. ETC Institute's resnonsibilities. The tasks that will be performed by ETC Institute as 
part of this agreement include the following: 

a. finalizing the methodology for administering the survey based on input fiom the City, 

b. designing a resident survey instrument that is up to 15 minutes in length (6-7 pages). 

c. selecting a random sample of households to be surveyed 

d. setting up the database 

e. conducting a pretest of the survey instrument 

f. completing 400 surveys by a combination of mail, phone, and internet (ETC 
Institute's costs include all labor, postage and printing associated with the 
administration of the survey). The resuIts of a random sample of 400 completed 
surveys will have a precision of at least +I-5% at the 95% level of confidence. 

g. conducting data entry and quality control review for all completed surveys 

h. providing complete printouts of the data 

i. conducting benchmarking analysis that shows how the results for Mountain Brook 
compare to other cities in the US, the mid-west region, and in Missouri. 

ETC Institute Page 1 of 3 



j. conducting importance-satisfaction analysis to identify the types of improvements that 
will have the most impact on satisfaction with city services. 

k. compIeting a final report that will include an executive summary, charts and graphs, 
GIs mapping, benchmarking analysis, importance-satisfaction analysis, tables 
showing the results to all questions on the survey, and a copy of the survey 
instrument. 

I. making one on-site presentation of the survey results to the City. 

4. Responsibilities for the City of Mountain Brook will include the following: 

a. approving the survey instrument 

b. providing a cover letter for the mail version of resident surveys 

ARTICLE 11: PAYMENT FOR SERVICES 

1. Invoices will be submitted as follows: 

J Invoice I: 1'' Draft of the Survey Submitted ($2,300) 

J Invoice 2: Final Survey Approved by the City ($2,300) 

J Invoice 3: Survey Printing and Mailing Complete ($3,500) 

J Invoice 4: Survey Administration Complete and Results Submitted ($5,800) 

Invoice 5: Final Report Delivered ($1,800) 

ARTICLE 111: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

1. Change in Scope. The Scope of Services for this contract shall be subject to modification or 
supplement upon the written agreement of the contracting parties. Any such modification in the 
Scope of Services shall be incorporated in this agreement by supplemental agreement executed 
by the parties. 

ETC Institute Page 2 of 3 



2. Termination of Contract. This agreement may be terminated by either party upon 14 days 
written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with 
the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party. If the contract is terminated by the 
City, the City shall reimburse ETC Institute for the f i l l  value of any tasks that have been 
initiated, up to the total amount of the next scheduled invoice. 

3. Riahts to Use the Data. ETC Institute has the right to use the data as a component of ETC 
Institute's DirectionFindea benchmarks, but ETC Institute will not release specific results 
for the City of Mountain Brook without written approval from the City. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be signed by 
their duly authorized officers. 

City of Mountain Brook 

Chris Tatham, CEO 
ETC Institute 

Date 

Date 

ETC Institute Page 3 of 3 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

ETC INSTITUTE 
DATED NOVEMBER 9,2015 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thefthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and ETC Institute ("the Contractor") dated November 9,201 5. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting or  inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting or  inconsistent terms or  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or  to (b) 
reduce, restrict, or  eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, or  supplement of or  to the principal agreement, whether or  not expressly acknowledged 
or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, or  suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The (this) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "The Confracfor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

2. Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Disprife Resolution. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attort~ey's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of 3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4, Late Paynient Cltarges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

$+ Indenrnijcation; Hold-Harn~Iess; Release; Waiver; Lin~itatiorts of Liability or Renredies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

la Cltoice of Law; Cltoice of Venue or Forunr. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7. Corrstruction ofAddendum Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8- Alabama Inrnrigration Law Conipliatrce Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-VeriQ 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 9th day of November, 20 15. 

ETC Institute 

Its : 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By : 

Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



RE: Roundabout Improvcmcnt Project at lntcrscctions Ncar Lanc Park- Final Nov 5 Version of Agreement 
for Cost Sharing Betwccn Bir and Mt Brook 

:in'bdx.$ .--- . 

Steve Stine 10:14 AM (1 hour 
ago) 

to Tracy, James, Andre, Fred, Sam, me 

Images are not displayed. Display images below - Always display images from 

Thanks guys. Attached is what should be the final Nov 5 version of the Agreement for Cost Sharing, along with a 
red-line that shows the final few changes. In the dispute resolution section, I inserted Tracy's language about 
mediation, and added provisions stating that the costs of mediation would be shared, and that if mediation fails, ttie 
Parties would resolve the Dispute through non-jury litigation in Jeffco Cir Ct with the prevailing party having ttie 
right to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs of court in that litigation. 

Tracy, by copy of this Sam Gaston, the City Manager for Mt Brook and Steve Boone (Mt. Brook's City Clerk), I am 
suggesting to them that the Nov 5 final form of the Agrmt for Cost Sharing be given to the Mt. Brook City Council 
for its approval at its next Council meeting. Please let us know how the COB'S consideration of this goes at the 
upcoming Budget and Finance Committee meeting, and what else I can do to help us finish this. 

Steve 

From: Roberts, Tracy L [mailto:Tracv.RobertsdbirminahamaI.~ov] 
Sent: Thursday, November 5, 2015 9:21 AM 
To: Steve Stine; Stanley, James C. 
Subject: RE: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Oct 23 Version of 
Agrmt for Cost Sharing 

Steve, 
We attempted to call you at 9:00 am as scheduled. Jim and I discussed revisions to the second paragraph 
of Section VII (ii) and suggest the following: 

"If any dispute, disagreement or conflict arises between the Parties as to (a) the 
refusal or failure by Birmingham to certify or approve payment by Mountain 
Brook of a Local Expense or (b) whether Mountain Brook should make a Local 
Expense payment that it is i q w s i k d  required by ALDOT to 
make (collectively, a "Payment Dispute"), the Parties agree to resolve such 
Payment Dispute as follows. The Payment Dispute first shall be submitted to the 
Mayor of Birmingham and City Manager of Mountain Brook for consideration 
and potential resolution by those officials. If the Payment Dispute is not resolved 
by those officials within twenty (20) days after submission to them, either Party . . may request that the Payment Dispute be submitted to non- 
binding mediation, by a neutral third party, for resolution. The rdewd 

, . . , a provisions of $6-6-20, Code 
of Alabama 1975, stiall apply with respect to any such mediation; provided that 
the expense of any such arbitration shall be equally shared between the Parties 
and each Pany shall be responsible for its own attorney fees' and other costs in 
such proceeding." 



r-r: R4.A 
Assistant City Attorney 
City of Birmingham - Law Department 
710 North 20th Street - 6th Floor 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Office: 12051 254-2369 
Fax: 4205) 29-2502 
Tracv.RobertsQBirmin~hamAL.aov 

This email is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§2520-2521 and is legally 
privileged. This email and any files transmitted with it are also subject to the attorney-client privilege and 
attorney work-product doctrine, and contain confidential information intended only for the person o r  
persons addressed above. If you have received this emaii message in error, please notify the sender 
immediately and destroy all copies of the original message. Please d o  not forward, disseminate, 
distribute or duplicate this message without the consent of the original sender. 

From: Steve Stine [mailto:sstine@bishoncolvin.com] 
Sent: Friday, October 23, 2015 3:36 PM 
To: Roberts, Tracy L; Stanley, James C.; Bittas, Andre V.; Hawkins, Fred T. 
Cc: 'Sam Gaston'; whitcolvindbisho~co1vin.com 
Subject: RE: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Oct 23 Version of 
Agrmt for Cost Sharing 

Tracy, Jim, Andre and Fred, this is to follow up on dle meeting we had last week and the informatiodlegal guidance 
that the lawyers received from the Attorney General's Office earlier this week on a conference call that the lawyers 
had with tliat Office. 

Attached is what 1 trust is the final Oct 23 version of the Agreement for Cost Sharing between the COB and Mt. 
Brook on this Project. This Oct 23 version incorporates the matters that have been discussed to date. Tracy, in 
preparing this, 1 worked from the last Sept 1 5version that I sen1 you; all the matters that are specified by Act 1969- 
9 16 in Section 3(c) appear in this version. Also, where appropriate, 1 incorporated into this Oct 23 Version several 
of the provisions that you had in your Sept 16 draft. For your convenience, I have attached a redline version that 
compares the Oct 23 version v the Sept 15 draft. 

Jim and Tracy, you will see that, at the end of Section Vll(ii), I inserted new dispute-resolution provision to resolve 
any dispute that might arise as lo whether the COB should approve a payment or MI. Brook should pay an 
expense. If the senior administrators for both cities cannot resolve any such payment dispute, the dispute resolution 
mechanism 1 selected is binding arbitration because that is the fastest way to resolve the dispute and move forward. 

Please advise if the Oct 13 version is acceptable and when you think the Birmingham City Council might approve 
it. When we know the COB'S time frame for approval, Mr. Gaston and I will submit the final agreed version of the 
Agreement for Cost Sharing to the Mountain Brook City Council to get its blessing on the revised version. Because 
the Mt. Brook City Council has already considered these matters, the approval of the final version should happen 
quickly on the Mt. Brook end. 

Thanks again for your help on this. I know that we all look forward to finishing this and our clients getting started 
on the Project. 

Steve Stine 
19 10 First Avenue North 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Phone : 1205) 25 1-288 1 
Fax : 1205) 254-3987 
Email: ~ineG!bishwcolvin.com 



From: Steve Stine -w 
Sent: Friday, September 25, 2015 4:37 PM 
To: 'Roberts, Tracy L'; 'Stanley, James C.'; 'Bittas, Andre V.'; 'Hawkins, Fred T.' 
Cc: 'Sam Gaston'; 'whitcolvin@bishoocolvin.com' 
Subject: RE: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Agreements that Need 
to be Approved by Mt. Brook & City of Birmingham 

Tracy, it appears that we need to have a meeting of clients and lawyers to see if we can agree on the final form of the 
Cost Sharing Agreement and how to move forward. Based on the information you provided, it appears this 
meeting needs to be after October 12. Mt Brook's City Manager and I are available to meet on the following 
dates: Oct I3 Afternoon (I -5 pm); Oct 14 .. Late Afternoon (3-5 pm) ; Oct 15 - Afternoon (I -5 pm). Can you 
coordinate on your end and see if you, Jim, Fred and Andre can meet at any of these times? 

As previously mentioned, the Sept 15 version of the Cost Sharing Agmt has already been thoroughly considered and 
approved by the City Council. I reviewed your Sept 16 draft of this Agreement in which you made changes in or did 
not accept provisions in the Sept I5version. For everyone's benefit, 1 have created and attach a red-lined version 
that shows the changes you made to MI. Brook's Version. It looks to me that we have 3 open questions: 

(i) Open Legal Question: What approval process is legally required with 
respect to the Cost Sharing Agreement? I see two options lo get off dead center on this 
legal matter: (a) as previously mentioned, Birmingham could ask the AG for an opinion 
on whether we must comply with both laws (as you believe) or if we have authority to 
act if only comply with the general act and we pass parallel ordinances (as we believe) 
or (b) If Birmingham believes that we have to comply with two different statutes ( both of 
which authorize the cities to sign the Cost Sharing Agreement), I guess we can do that 
with this proviso: Birmingham should take the lead and assume the responsibility to 
get approval from the Attorney General, and to filing and record the agreement 
everywhere that is mentioned in the 1969 Local Act. We still don't think it is necessary 
to take all those actions. 

(ii) Open Business Question: What is a Local Expense? As I understand your 
concept of what is a local expense, it is an expenditure related lo the ALDOT 
agreements, In your Sept 16 draft you struck the section and definition of" Local 
Expensen that I included on pages 2-3 of MI. Brook's Sept 15 Draft. There 
are 3 attorneys on the Mt. Brook City Council (including a retired Circuit Judge), and the 
Council specifically instructed me to add this very language that you struck. The point 
of broadening the concept of what is a Local Expenses is this: local expenses may 
need to be incurred by the two cities to build the roundabout that are not contemplated 
in or do not arise from the ALDOT agreements. The parties will need to share all type 
expenses on the project regardless if they relate to or arise from the ALDOT agreements 
or not. Also, please recall that, in the Section of my Sept 15 Draft titled " PROCESS FOR 
APPROVING, PAYMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT OF MOUNTAIN BROOK FOR LOCAL 
EXPENSE", we have language providing that Mt. Brook cannot unilaterally pay or incur 
any Local Expense without the concurrence of the COB. We can talk about this more 
when we meet and see if Fred and Andre are comfortable with Mt. Brook's language. 

(iii) Open Business Question. In your Sept 16 draft you changed the language 
of the Term of the Agreement to limit the maximum length of this cost sharing 
agreement to the sooner of (a) 3 years or (b) the completion of the Project. I do not 
know the precise project schedule, but I doubt it will be constructed and finished in 3 
years. In any event, if the project is not totally completed in 3 years, certainly both cities 
will want to extend the Agreement in order to finish the work. This is why we 



put language in the Sept 15 version providing that the Agreement could be extended 
beyond 3 years. 

Please let me and Mr. Gaston know if the any of the suggested dates and times work for the Binningham Team. 

Steve Stine 
19 10 First Avenue North 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Phone : 12051 251-288 I 
Fax : $2051 254-3987 
Email: ~ s t i n ~ b i s h o ~ o l v i n . c o m  

From: Roberts, Tracy L [mailto:Tr- . . 
3 

Sent: Thursday, September 24, 2015 4 5 4  PM 
To: Steve Stine 
Cc: Stanley, James C.; Bittas, Andre V.; Hawkins, Fred T, 
Subject: RE: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Agreements that Need 
to be Approved by Mt. Brook & City of Birmingham 

Steve, 

1 understand that we have a disagreement as to the application of Alabama law on this type of interlocal agreement. 
Attached are copies of the Cost Sharing Agreement and Ordinance that I will approve as to form. Please let me 
know a few dates that you could meet if we need to sclledule a meeting. 

At this point I will not be available until after October x'~ .  

Jim Stanley will be out of the office After October 2 and will return October 12. 

Justice Cook will be out of the ofice after September 29'+ 

Andre and Fred may be able to give times that they are available. 

Troy L Rvkrb 
Assistant City Attorney 
City of Birmingham - Law Department 
710 North 20th Street - 6th Floor 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Office; (2051 254-2369 
Fax: (205) 254-2502 
Tracv.Roberts@Birmin~hamAL.~ov 

This email is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. 552510-2521 and is legally 
privileged. This email and any files transmitted with it are also subject to the attorney-client privilege and 
attorney work+product doctrine, and contain confidential information intended only for the person or 
persons addressed above. If you have received this email message in error, please notify the sender 
immediately and destroy all copies of the original message. Please do not forward, disseminate, 
distribute or duplicate this message without the consent of tile original sender. 

From: Steve Stine [mai~to:sstine@bishoocolvin.comJ 
Sent: Wednesday, September 23,2015 3:20 PM 
To: Roberts, Tracy L 



Cc: Stanley, James C.; Bittas, Andre V.; Hawkins, Fred T. 
Subjeck RE: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Agreements that Need 
to be Approved by Mt. Brook & City of Birmingham 

Tracy, the Mt. Brook Council is ready to sign the 3 ALDOT/MB agreements and the Cost Sharing Agreement in the 
form I sent you last week. What does Birmingham want to do on this project now'? 

Steve 

From: Roberts, Tracy L ~ ~ r r n i m h a m a I . a w 1  
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 10:32 AM 
To: Steve Stine 
Cc: Stanley, James C.; 'Sam Gaston'; Bittas, Andre V.; Hawkins, Fred T.; whitcolvin@bisho~olvin.com 
Subject: RE: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Agreements that Need 
to be Approved by Mt. Brook & City of Birmingham 

Steve. 

Thank you for your thoughts. 

rAy r R A  
Assistant City Attorney 
City of Birmingham - Law Department 
71.0 North 20th Street - 6th Floor 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Office: 1205) 254-2369 
Fax: /205) 254-2502 
Tracv.RobertsQBirminvhamAL.aov 

This email is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. 552510-2521 and is legally 
privileged. This email and any files transmitted with it are  also subject to the attorney-client privilege and 
attorney work-product doctrine, and contain confidential information intended only for the person or 
persons addressed above. If you have received this email message in error, please notify the sender 
immediately and destroy all copies of the original message. Please d o  not forward, disseminate, 
distribute or duplicate this message without the consent of the original sender. 

From: Steve Stine [rnailto:sstine@bishoocolvin.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 10:23 AM 
To: Roberts, Tracy L 
Cc: Stanley, James C,; 'Sam Gaston'; Bittas, Andre V.; Hawkins, Fred T.; whitcolvin@bisho~colvin+com 
Subject: RE: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Agreements that Need 
to be Approved by Mt. Brook & City of Birmingham 

Tracy, I appreciate all your help on this matter, but I respectfully disagree with your interpretation that, in order to 
the COB and Mt. Brook to cooperate on this Roundabout project and enter the asociated Cost Sharing agreement, 
cities in Jefferson County must follow the procedural requirements of botl~ a 1998 general act of the Legislature that 
authorizes the two cities to cooperate in this manner and an earlier 1969 local act that also authorizes the same two 
cities in Jefferson County to enter these type agreements. 

The open question is what, from a procedural perspective, is required for the COB and Mt. Brook to enter these 
cooperative arrangements on this Project. The 1998 Act states that this cooperationljoint exercise of powers is 
authorized merely by each cooperating city passing an ordinance, while the prior 1969 Act contemplates multiple 
other steps (Including the agreement being submitted to and approved by the Attorney General before becoming 
effective, submitting the agreements to ofice of the Secretary of State, recording of the agreement in Probate Court 



and passing resolutions). Here is why the COB and Mt. Brook only have to comply with the procedural 
requirements of one of these laws for the cooperative agreements to be effective. 

As we know, the Alabama Legislature historically has passed local and general laws. In the local act passed in 
1969 , on its face, that law provides that ONLY the cities in Jefferson County (and the County) could cooperate 
with each other on joint-power contracts and projects. Later the Legislature passed a General Act in I998 that 
allows all Municipalities in Alabama to cooperate and jointly exercise powers on projects like this one, and the 
Legislature specifically stated in the 1998 Act tllat the authority being bestowed to all cities in Alabama (including 
those in Jefferson County) was "Supplemental" - i.e., "in addition to" - whatever laws that previously existed. To 
me, the only interpretation of "Supplemental" that can apply here is that, after the Legislature passed the 1998 joint 
powers act, cities in Jefferson County now have two different, independent bases of authority (each with a distinct 
process for approval) that they can follow to jointly exercise powers like what we are doing here with these 
Roundabout Agreements. Stated differently, after the 1998 Act passed, the Legislature gave cities in Jefferson 
County another new way and mechanism to exercise joint powers, and, as long as the cities comply with the 
requirements in the 1998 act that each city pass ordinances authorizing their joint exercise of powers, the joint action 
is authorized by the 1998 act alone. 

It would be best for everyone if we did not have this patchwork of general and local laws that address the same 
subject. Ideally, in 1998 when the Legislature passed the general act it should have repeal or amended any prior 
law on the same subject. However, it often does not do that, and instead just says - like it did here - that the most 
recently passed law is "Supplemental" to all other existing laws or is "cumulative." When the Legislature does that, 
both laws exist and valid, and here, either one of them gives the COB and Mt. Brook the authority we need to 
proceed. If tile Legislature had intended when it passed the 1998 general Act that cities in Jefferson County must 
continue to comply with the 1969 Local act, wouldn't that intent have been expressed in the 1998 Act? In fact, the 
opposite intent - that additional "Supplemental" powers were being granted - was expressed when the Legislature 
passed the 1998 Act. 

Additionally, we both know that multiple acts regarding the same subject are codified in Title I I (the municipal 
authority part of the Code). Because this has occurred, you see language like this in 1 1-40-36 (authority of cities to 
demolish structures) -.- "This article is cumulative in nature and is in addition to any power and authority 
which any municipality may have under any other law." Similarly, in 11 -67-67 where, after passing multipIe 
bills on weed abatement that gave authority to only certain clasdsize cities, the Legislature passed a bill that granted 
ALL cities weed abatement authority and stated that 'This article is cumulative in its nature and in addition to 
any and all power and authority which a municipality may have under any other law.' "Cumulative" in these 
parts of Title 1 1 and "Supplemental" in the context of the 1998 joint powers act have the same meaning - they are 
intended to r~xpnnd existing powers and give new rights to cities that they previously did not have. 

1 know that everyone is ready to get started on what is a good project for both the COB and Mt. Brook. Let me 
know if you want to schedule a meeting with me and others at the City (including Jim Stanley and Judge Cook if he 
is available) to further discuss this. I don't think it is necessary and further debate on this will delay work on a 
Project that our clients want, but if the City Legal Staffstrongly believes that we must comply with the procedural 
requirements in two separate statutes, the COB certainly could ask the COB City Council for authority to solicit an 
AG opinion and bear the expense of obtaining such an AG opinion. 

Steve Stine 
19 10 First Avenue North 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Phone : 12051 251-2881 
Fax : 12051 254-3987 
Email: sstine@.bishoocolvin.com 

From: Roberts, Tracy L [mailto:Tracv.RobertsBbirminahamal.aov~ 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 20 15 4: 29 PM 
To: Steve Stine 
Cc: Stanley, James C.; 'Sam Gaston'; Bittas, Andre V.; Hawkins, Fred T.; whitcolvin~hishopcolvin.com 



Subject: RE: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Agreements that Need 
to be Approved by Mt. Brook & City of Birmingham 

Steve, 

1 have reviewed and revised your proposed agreement and the proposed ordinance for the City of Birmingham. Both 
Section 1 1 - 102- 1 et seq., Code of Alabama 1975 and Ala. Act 1969-9 16 require similar ordinances to be passed by 
each municipality. 

Ala. Act 98-471 (codified as Section 11-102-1 et seq., Code of Alabama 1975) states "Nothing in this 
chapter shall be construed to affect or alter any other law which authorizes joint cooperative power 
between any public entities and this chapter shall be supplemental to these laws." See 51 1-102-6, Code 
of Alabama 1975. Accordingly, municipalities in Jefferson County must comply with both Act 98-471 and 
Act 1969-91 6 in order to have a legally binding agreement, even though it may be complicated and rarely 
used. 

Please let me know your thoughts on my suggested revisions. 

Thanks 

7- L RJvrr 
Assistant City Attorney 
City of Birmingham - Law Department 
710 North 20th Street - 6th Floor 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Office: 12051 254-2369 
Fax: 12051 254-2502 
Tracv.Roberts@Birmin~hamAL.~ov 

This email i s  covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§2510-2521 and is  legally 
privileged. This email and any files transmitted with i t  are also subject to the attorney-client privilege and 
attorney work-product doctrine, and contain confidential information intended only for the person or 
persons addressed above. If you have received this email message in error, please notify the sender 
immediately and destroy a11 copies of the original message. Please do not forward, disseminate, 
distribute or duplicate this message without the consent of the original sender. 

From: Steve Stine ~ ~ l v i ~ )  
Sent: Thursday, September 10, 2015 1:02 PM 
To: Roberts, Tracy L; Bittas, Andre V.; Hawkins, Fred T. 
Cc: Stanley, James C.; 'Sam Gaston' 
Subjeet: Roundabout Improvement Project at Intersections Near Lane Park- Agreements that Need to 
be Approved by Mt. Brook & City of Birmingham 

Genlleman, I appreciate that the COB i s  working through several issues involving public works projects right 
now. However, in an effort to keep the Roundabout Road project moving and assuming that the Bir. City 
Council ultimately will authorize the COB to participate in it, we are submitting tile following documents 
concerning this Project to the Mt. Brook City Council for its consideration and potential approval at its next regular 
Council meeting at 6 pm this upcoming Monday (Sept 14): 

1. The 3 attached ALDOTIMB Agreements that Mt. Brook will enter with ALDOT for ALDOT to 
perform administrative services required to construct the Roundabout; 



2. A Sept 10 Version of the Cost Sharing Agreement between the COB and Mt. Brook. Tracy, the 
terms in this are consistent with first draft, but I have changed the format in places, rearranged some of 
the provisions and polished it up in places. Please note that in reimbursement section, I did change the 
time for Birmingham to more promptly reimburse Mt. Brook (in 10 days not 30 days), and that I have 
included a delinquent interest provision and some other provisions that apply if either party breach its 
responsibilities. I have also attached a red-line that shows the changes between your first draft and the 
attached Sept 10 version; this looks busy, but there are only a few substantive differences in the two 
versions. 

3. A Draft of the Ordinance that the Mt. Brook City Council will pass concerning these Agreements. 

Also, I have attached a revised "Cover Page" of the draft of the Birmingham's Ordinance that you sent me in which 
1 made a few changes in terminology so the cover page will be consistent with the Cost Sharing Agmt. I did not 
attempt to revise the main text of your version of the lengthy Ordinance that you have drafted Tor the Birmingham 
City Council as the form of that in largely in your discretion, but at some point you may want to make a few changes 
to tlie text of your Ordinance so it is consistent with those in the attaclied Cost Sharing Agreement. 

Tracy, I understand that you have talked to Jim about the subject of what "authority" for Mt, Brook and COB to 
enter into these arrangements. Ala. Act 98-471 + which is codified at Ala. Code Sections 11-102-1 et. seq, and 
authorizes the very type joint service/joint power arrangements involving multiple cities - gives both Mt. Brook and 
Binningliam ALL the authority that either need to enter into the ALDOTIMB Agreements and Cost Sharing 
Agreement. In the ALDOTIMB Agreements, ALDOT will perform administrative and other scrvices for a project 
that lies in both jurisdictions and clearly benefits both cities; in fact, both Mt. Brook and COB could be, and 
probably should be, parties to the Agreements with ALDOT, but Tor administrative reasons ALDOT only wants to 
deal with one city as its point of contact. Further, the Cost Sharing Agreement flows from and is intertwined with 
the ALDOT Agreements as it delineates Birmingham's obligation to reimburse Mt. Brook for the benefits that flaw 
to the COB from Mt. Brook entering and receiving services from ALDOT pursuant to the ALDOT 
Agreements. Because Act 98-471 gives both of our cities all the authority that is needed to move forward if they 
both pass Ordinances, we do not need to comply with the complicated and rarely used approval 
process contemplated in the JelTCo intra-governmental Local Cooperation Act (Ala Act 1969-9 16) that was enacted 
almost 3 decades before the Legislature passed general Act 98-471 and gave all municipalities in the state the broad 
authority to enter joint service agreements like those on this Roundabout project. 

1 will let you know if the Mountain Brook City Council approves the Agreements. Of course, none of these 
Agreements will become effective until and unless the Birmingham City Council also approves (and passes an 
Ordinance concerning) the Cost Sharing Agreement. 
Steve Stine 
19 10 First Avenue North 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Phone : l205) 251-288 1 
Fax : /205) 254-3987 
Email: sstine~bishoacolvin.com 



AGREEMENT FOR COST SHARING 
h1r ,5  

Roundabout lmprovcment -Intersection 
Cahaba RoadlUS-2BOICulvcr RoadLane Park Road 

ALDOT Project # CMAQ-3715 

The CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA ("Birmingham"), a municipal corporation 
and the CITY O F  MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("Mountain Brook"), a municipal 
corporation, enter into this AGREEMENT FOR COST SHARING ("Agreement"). Mountain 
Brook and Birmingham individually may be referred to as a "Party" and collectively as 
"Parties." 

WIIEREAS, a Transportation lmprovement Program has been developed for the 
B~rmingham Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are lis~ed 
llicrein; and 

WHEREAS. Federal transportation funds arc dedicated specifically to thc 
Birmingham area by the 1011 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21' Century Act (MAP-21). 
as directed by the Birmingham Metropolitan Planning Organization, and hereinafter referred 
to as Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality lmprovcmcnt Program Funds ("Federal CMAQ 
Funds"); and 

WHEREAS, Birmingham and Mountain Brook desire to construct a roundabout road 
improvement (the "Roundabout') at or near the intersections of Lane Park Road, Cahaba Road, 
Culver Road and a road that connects to U.S. Highway 280 in order to facilitate the flow o f  
traftjc in that area (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the intersections in question are important connectors for visitors to the 
Birmingham Zoo, the Birmingham Botanical Gardens, Mountain Brook Village and other points 
in that area that are regularly accessed by the citizens of both Birmingham and Mountain Brook; 
and 

WHEREAS, the State of Alabama, acting through the Alabama Department of 
Transportation ('ALDOT") has designated the Roundabout Project as Project # CMAQ-3715, 
and Federal CMAQ Funds have been identified for use in conjunction with its construction: and 

WHEREAS, in order to administer and implement Project # CMAQ-3715, ALDOT has 
requested that Mountain Brook enter into the following three (3) agreements with ALDOT (i) an 
Agreement for Right of Way Acquisition that estimates the total right o f  way ("ROW) 
acquisition costs at $360,000 and estimates the local share of that expense as $72,000: (ii) an 
Agreement for Preliminary Engineering that reflects a total estimate of $515,000 for engineering 
expense and estimates the local share of $103,000 for those costs; and (iii) an Agreement for 
Utility and Construction that reflects a total estimate $2,616,000 to construct the Project and 
estimates a local share of $523,200 to build the Roundabout (collectively, the "ALDOTIMB 
Agreements"); and 



WHEREAS, Mountain Brook will enter the ALDOTfMB Agreements if Birmingham 
enters into this Agrcemcnt and agrces to equally share the Local Expense (as defined in Section I 
below) incurred by Mountain Brook on the Project; and 

\\'IIEREAS. pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Birmin&am agrees to reimburse 
Mountain Brook for one half (112) of the Local Expense; and 

WtIEREAS, it is in the public interest for the Partics and their respective citizens to 
coopcrate on the implementation of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, Act 1969-916 of the Acts of  Alabama ("Act 1969-91 6") authorizes 
municipalities in Jefferson County to make the most efficient use of  their powers by enabling 
them to cooperate with the state, the federal government and with each other on a basis of  mutual 
advantage and thereby to provide services and facilities in a manner and pursuant to forms of  
governmental organization that will accord best with geographic, economic, population and other 
factors influencing the needs and developments of  the county and municipalities and other 
governmental units and agencies therein; and 

WHEREAS, as is contemplated and authorized by Act 1969-916, the joint interests of  
Mountain Brook and Birmingham are promoted by Mountain Brook entering the ALDOTiMB 
Agreements whereby ALDOT will perform services that jointly benefit each of  the two 
municipalities, Mountain Brook will compensate ALDOT for those services pursuant to the 
terms in those Agreements, and Mountain Brook and Birmingham enter into this related Cost 
Sharing Agreement to equally share the Local Expense of the Project. 

NOW WHEREFORE 

In consideration of the premises and mutual covenants stated herein, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, Birmingham and 
Mountain Brook agree as follows: 

1. LOCAL EXPENSE For purposes of this Agrecmcnt. "Local Expense" means any 
expense, cost o r  expenditure that Mountain Brook pays. incurs. suffers or expends 
following the Effective Datc (as is defined below in Section IV) for the Projcct that is not 
covered by, or reimbursed to Mountain Brook through Federal CMAQ Funds. Local 
Expense includes, but is not limited to, any amount that Mountain Brook pays with 
respect to any invoice, bill or any other request, dcrnand, action or claim by ALDOT that 
Mountain Brook owes ALDOT. the Federal Highway Administration ("FI.1WA") or  any 
other governmental agency, entity or person a monetary sum or other obligation by 
reason of  Mountain Brook entering the ALDOTrMB Agreements. Local Expense does 
not include ordinary and usual expenses incurred by the employees, officials or the staff 
of either Party to administer this Agreement, to administer the ALDODMB Agreements, 
or that may be expended to secure approval o f  this Agreement. 

Nothing in this Section I or elsewhere in this Agreement is intended to authorize 
Mountain Brook to pay any Local Expense unless and until the Parties have complied 



with the processes for approving payment of Local Expenses that is set forth in Section 
Vll(ii) below. 

11. IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT: The Project will be administered by ALDOT and 
the costs thereof will be financed, when eligible for Federal participation, on the basis of  
80% federal CMAQ Funds and 20% local funds. Mountain Brook agrees to enter the 
ALDOTIMB Agreements and make the payments to ALDOT contemplated in such 
Agreements or incur other Local Expense, subject to the terms and covenants herein. 

111. PURPOSEISHARING OF LOCAL EXPENSE. The Parties agree that, for purposes of 
this Agreement, the benetits of the Project are equally proportionate to both jurisdictions. 
Accordingly, Birmingham will equally share the Local Expense incurred by Mountain 
Brook on the Project and reimburse it for 50% of those costs. 

IV. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement will become effective on the date on which the last 
of all of the following has occurred: ( I )  Birmingham's City Council has approved an 
ordinance authorizing Birmingham to enter into this Agreement; (2) Mountain Brook's 
City Council has approved an ordinance authorizing Mountain Brook to enter into this 
Agreement; (3) the respective, duly authorized representatives of  the Parties have 
executed this Agreement; (4) Mountain Brook has executed the ALDOTI'MB 
Agreements; and (5) as contemplated in Act 1969-916, a copy of this Agreement, fully 
executed, is properly filed with the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama and 
with the Alabama Secretary of  State (the "Effective Date"). 

V. TERM. This Agreement shall commence on its Effective Date and continue in effect for 
five (5) years thereafter or until Project is completed. whichever first occurs; provided 
that, if the Project is not completed at the end of the initial five year term. this Agreement 
will be automatically renewed on the terms stated herein for an additional renewal period 
of  three (3) years. If the Project is not completed by the end of the first renewal term, the 
Partics will engage in good faith negotiations to further extend this Agreement for the 
period required to complete the Project. 

VI. ESTIMATED COSTS OF PROJECT. As of  the Effective Date, the estimated costs and 
expected sources of funding for design, plan and construct the Project are as follows: 



The Parties acknowledge and understand that the above amounts arc  estimates only. 
In the event the final costs or the Project exceed the estimated levels, Birmingham 
and Mountain Brook will be responsible for sharing in and paying Ihe actual expenses 
i m m d  on the Project and sharing thc Local Expense on thc proportional b a s i s  a n d  
u t i l i z i n g  t h e  p r o c e s s  d e s c r i b e d  be low.  

Vtl. PROCESS FOR APPROVING, PAYMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK FOR LOCAL EXPENSE. 

(i) Each Party will designate a senior level representative who will be 
responsible for administration of  its respective organization's 
responsibilities under this Agreement (the "Contract Administrator"). 

(ii) Mountain Brook promptly will forward to Birmingham's Contract 
Administrator any invoices or other requests for payment that it receives 
from ALDOT, and provide Birmingham advance written notice of any 
other Local Expense amount it anticipates spending on the Project. Prior 
to any payment of those amounts by Mountain Brook, the Contract 
Administrators for each Party will consult and certify in writing that the 
invoiced amount or other amount that Mountain Brook intends to pay is 
proper md should be paid by Mountain Brook. Such consultation and 
certification shall occur not less than 10 days before any such payment is 
due. 

If any dispute, disagreement or conflict arises between the Parties as to 
(a) the refusal or failure by Birmingham to certify or approve payment by * %  

Mountain Brook of  a Local Expense or (b) whether Mountain Brook 
should make a Local Expense payment that it i~ w m - u i r d  by 
A L D O T P  to make (collectively, a "Payment Dispute"), 
the Partics agree to resolve such Payment Dispute as  follow^.-^ The 
Payment Dispute first shall be submitted to the Mayor of Birmingham and 
City Manager of  Mountain Brook for consideration and potential 
resolution by those officials, -If $hose ofliciala &not m l v e  the Payment 
Dispute- within twenty (20) days after 
submission to them, either Party may request that the Payment Dispute be . . . . . . submitted -for r e s o l u t i o n ; - m  
before a neutral third nartv that is mutuallv accentable to the Parties. The 
~ p r o v i s i m s  of  . . 

" B 
6-6-10. Code of Alahama. 1075, shall apply with respect to any such . . -mediation.,-except that the expense of  any such 
-medLtion shall be equally shared between the Parties and each 
Party shall be responsible for its own attorney 
-fees and other costs in such mediation. If the Payment Disnute, . . 
s -la& resdution process shall be lilicatipn 

ircuit C m  .. . 
in Jefferson C w l v  C a m v i d e d  t h a ~  in mv such I- 
g c h  Party aerees to waive any r i ~ h t  zs a iuw trial and tho n w a i l i n r  P a ~ v  



Vltl. 

IX. 

a. 

jn my s uch li-tion shall lx &led ur recwer lrwn the a h  er Partv the 
f c a r t  thal the nr+vallrnrr mufly . . reasonable atonrev fees and anv COWI o 

incurs in that action. A 

(iii) Following the above-described confirmation and certification or the 
resolution of a Payment Dispute determining that Mountain Brook 
should pay the Local Expense amount in dispute, Mountain Brook will 
pay the amount due ALDOT under the ALDOT/MB Agreements or 
due others for any Local Expense and promptly notify Birmingham, in 
writing, upon making any such payment. 

(iv) No later than ten (10) days following each such payment, Birmingham 
will remit to Mountain Brook 50% of  the amount of any Local 
Expense payment made by it. If requested by Birmingham, Mountain 
Brook will submit and deliver to Birmingham's Contract 
Representative an invoice evidencing the amount to be remitted by 
Birmingham. 

DEFAULT. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any material breach, dclay or 
other failure by either of them to perform their respective obligations hereunder (a 
"Default", which includes, but is not limited to, any delay by Birmingham in 
reimbursing Mountain Brook for amounts payable by Birmingham hereunder) will 
have a detrimental impact on the operations of the other Party. Consequently, in the 
event of a Default by either Party hereunder, the following understandings apply: 

(I) Default Interest. Simple interest shall accrue on any delinquent amount 
payable by one Party to the other hereunder at the rate of 6% per annum 
until the delinquency is satisfied; and 

(ii) If the non-defaulting Party files litigation to enforce its rights hereunder 
and prevails in that proceeding, the defaulting Party shall reimburse the 
non-defaulting Party for all reasonable attorney's fees and costs of 
litigation that it incurs to remedy any such Default; and 

(iii) If the defaulting Party fails to cure the Default within sixty (60) days after 
receipt of written notice thereof from the non-defaulting Party, the non- 
defaulting Party, in addition to all other remedies available to it at law or 
provided herein, may terminate this Agreement effective immediately 
upon its provision of a second written notice. 

MISCELLANEOUS. 

Each municipality shall duly appropriate and tinance their anticipated respective costs for 
the Local Expense of the Project from their Capital lmprovement Funds, Gasoline Tax 
Funds, General Fund or other sources they deem appropriate. The failure of either Party 



to make such appropriations shall not relieve Mountain Brook of its obligations to make 
payments for Local Expense due ALDOT under the ALDOTNB Agreements o r  
Birmingham o f  its obligation to pay and reimburse Mountain Brook for amounts owed 
and due it hereunder. 

b. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Parties expressly agree that, following the 
construction of the Project, neither of  them assume any risk or future Iiability, or any 
future responsibility for maintaining any portion of the Roundabout improvement that is 
located outside their respective jurisdiction. 

c. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, no Party shall have any power to incur 
any debt which shall become the responsibility of  any other contracting party. 

d. The execution of  this Agreement or the performance of any act pursuant to the provisions 
thereof shall not be deemed or  construed to have the effect of creating between the 
Parties the relationship of principal o r  agent or of partnership or ofjoint venture. 

e. Except as otherwise provided by law and as limited by this Agreement between the 
parties, any entity which contracts to  perform or exercise any service or power pursuant 
to this chapter shall have the full power and authority to act within the jurisdiction of  all 
contracting entities to the extent necessary to carry out the purposes of  the Agreement. 

f. This Agreement shall not take effect until it has been approved by the governing body of 
each Party. Approval shall be by adoption of  an ordinance of general and permanent 
operation. 

g. This Agreement may be executed (a) in counterparts, a complete set o f  which together 
shall constitute an original and (b) in duplicates, each of which shall constitute an 
original. Copies of this Agreement showing the signatures of the respective parties, 
whether produced by photographic, digital, computer, o t  other reproduction, may be used 
for all purposes as originals. 

h. With respect to immigration law compliance, the Parties represent and warrant to the 
other that: 

(i) they do not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to 
employ, in Alabama, an "unauthorized alien," as defined by the 
Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, $31- 
13-1, etseq., Code of Alabama 1975, as amended (the "Act"); 

(ii) they will enroll in the E-Verify program prior to performing any work 
on the Project in Alabama and shall provide documentation 
establishing that the Party is enrolled in the E-Verify program. During 
the performance o f  this Agreement, Parties shall participate in the E- 
Verify program as required under the terms of the Act and shall verify 



every employee in Alabama that is required to be verified according to 
the applicable federal rules and regulations; 

(iii) they will comply with all applicable provisions of the Act with respect 
to subcontractors, if any, that they engage on the Project by entering 
into an agreement with or by obtaining an affidavit from such 
subcontractors providing work for the Party on the Project in Alabama 
that such subcontractors are in compliance with the Act with respect to 
their participation in the E-verify program. Parties represent and 
warrant that they shall not hire, retain or contract with any 
subcontractor to work on the Project in Alabama which the Party 
knows is not in compliance with the Act; and 

(iv) by signing this Prgreetrretttcontract, the contracting Parties affirm, for 
the duration of  the Agreement, that they will not violate federal 
immigration law or  knowingly employ, hire for employment, or 
continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 
Furthermore a Party found to be in violation of  this provision shall be 
deemed in breach of  the agreement and shall be responsible for all 
damages resulting therefrom. 

i. SEVERABILITY: If any provision o f  this agreement is declared by a court having 
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of  the remaining terms 
and provisions shall not be affected; the rights and obligations of  the parties shall be 
construed and enforced as if the agreement did not contain the particular provision held to 
be invalid. 

j. GOVERNING LAW: This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Alabama as interpreted by Alabama Courts. 

k. ADDITIONAL UNDERSTANDING ON ROW ACQUISITION SERVICES. 
Notwithstanding any terms or provisions in the Agreement for Right of  Way Acquisition 
to be executed by Mountain Brook, ALDOT representatives have expressed a willingness 
to perform the ROW acquisition function for the Project that is needed to acquire land 
that lies in Birmingham and Mountain Brook. If ALDOT performs those services, the 
Parties agree that ALDOT will be paid the Local Expense portion of costs incurred in 
those operations in a manner that is consistent with the payment process contemplated 
herein. However, if ALDOT does not perfonn the ROW acquisition services for the 
Project, the Parties agree to jointly contract with a mutually acceptable third party 
contractor to obtain those services from that contractor. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their undersigned, duly authorized representatives as reflected below, 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 

I 
BY: 

Date William A. Bell, Sr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY LAW DEPARThIENT: 

Assiwsnt City Auorncy / bw 

I 
ClTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

BY: 
Daw Lawrence Terry Oden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-164 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the execution of an Agreement for Cost Sharing between the City of Mountain 
Brook and City of Birmingham, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A subject to such minor 
revisions as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, with respect to the roundabout 
improvements at the intersection of Cahaba Road/US Highway 280/Culver RoadtLane Park Road 
(ALDOT Project CMAQ-37 15( )). 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November, 201 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of November, 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifjl the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on November 9,20 15, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Roundabout Cost Sharing Agreement with City of Bham 



AGREEMENT FOR COST SHARING Nov 5 

Roundabout Improvement -Intersection 
Cahaba RoadlUS-280/Culver R o a a a n e  Park Road 

ALDOT Project # CMAQ-3715 

The CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA ("Birmingham"), a municipal corporation 
and the CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("Mountain Brook"), a municipal 
corporation, enter into this AGREEMENT FOR COST SHARING ("Agreement"). Mountain 
Brook and Birmingham individually may be referred to as a "Party" and collectively as 
"Parties." 

WHEREAS, a Transportation Improvement Program has been developed for the 
Birmingham Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are listed 
therein; and 

WHEREAS, Federal transportation hnds are dedicated specifically to the 
Birmingham area by the 20 12 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 2 lS' Century Act (MAP-2 I), 
as directed by the Birmingham Metropolitan Planning Organization, and hereinafter referred 
to as Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Progam Funds ("Federal CMAQ 
Funds"); and 

WHEREAS, Birmingham and Mountain Brook desire to construct a roundabout road 
improvement (the "Roundabout') at or near the intersections of Lane Park Road, Cahaba Road, 
Culver Road and a road that connects to U.S. Highway 280 in order to facilitate the flow of 
traffic in that area (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the intersections in question are important connectors for visitors to the 
Birmingham Zoo, the Birmingham Botanical Gardens, Mountain Brook Village and other points 
in that area that are regularly accessed by the citizens of both Birmingham and Mountain Brook; 
and 

WHEREAS, the State of Alabama, acting through the Alabama Department of 
Transportation ('ALDOT") has designated the Roundabout Project as Project # CMAQ-3715, 
and Federal CMAQ Funds have been identified for use in conjunction with its construction; and 

WHEREAS, in order to administer and implement Project # CMAQ-3715, ALDOT has 
requested that Mountain Brook enter into the following three (3) agreements with ALDOT: (i) an 
Agreement for Right of Way Acquisition that estimates the total right of way ("ROW) 
acquisition costs at $360,000 and estimates the local share of that expense as $72,000; (ii) an 
Agreement for Preliminary Engineering that reflects a total estimate of $5 15,000 for engineering 
expense and estimates the local share of $103,000 for those costs; and (iii) an Agreement for 
Utility and Construction that reflects a total estimate $2,616,000 to construct the Project and 
estimates a local share of $523,200 to build the Roundabout (collectiveIy, the "ALDOTjMB 
Agreements"); and 



WHEREAS, Mountain Brook will enter the ALDOTiMB Agreements if Birmingham 
enters into this Agreement and ag-ees to equally share the Local Expense (as defined in Section I 
below) incurrcd by Mountain Brook on the Project; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Birmingliam agrees to reimburse 
Mountain Brook for one half ( 1 4  of the Local Expense; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the Parties and their respective citizens to 
cooperate on the implementation of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, Act 1969-916 of the Acts of Alabama ("Act 1969-916") authorizes 
municipalities in Jefferson County to make the most efficient use of their powers by enabling 
them to cooperate with the state, the federal govenunent and with each other on a basis of mutual 
advantage and thereby to provide services and facilities in a manner and pursuant to fonns of 
governmental organization that will accord best with geographic, economic, population and other 
factors influencing the needs and developments of the county and municipalities and other 
governmental units and agencies therein; and 

WHEREAS, as is contemplated and authorized by Act 1969-916, the joint interests of 
Mountain Brook and Birmingham are promoted by Mountain Brook entering the ALDOTNB 
Agreements whereby ALDOT will perform services that jointly benefit each of the two 
municipalities, Mountain Brook will compensate ALDOT for those services pursuant to the 
terms in those Agreements, and Mountain Brook and Birmingham enter into this related Cost 
Sharing Agreement to equally share the Local Expense of the Project. 

NOW WHEREFORE 

In consideration of the premises and mutual covenants stated herein, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, Birmingham and 
Mountain Brook agree as follows: 

LOCAL EXPENSE: For purposes of this Agreement, "Local Expense" means any 
expense, cost or expenditure that Mountain Brook pays, incurs, suffers or expends 
following the Effective Date (as is defined below in Section 1V) for the Project that is not 
covered by, or reimbursed to Mountain Brook through Federal CMAQ Funds. Local 
Expense includes, but is not limited to, any amount that Mountain Brook pays with 
respect to any invoice, bill or any other request, demand, action or claim by ALDOT that 
Mountain Brook owes ALDOT, the Federal Highway Administration ("FHWA") or any 
other governmental agency, entity or person a monetary sum or other obligation by 
reason of Mountain Brook entering the ALDOTJMB Agreements. Local Expense does 
not include ordinary and usual expenses incurred by the employees, officials or the staff 
of either Party to administer this Agreement, to administer the ALDOT/MB Agreements, 
or that may be expended to secure approval of this Agreement. 

Nothing in this Section 1 or elsewhere in this Agreement is intended to authorize 
Mountain Brook to pay any Local Expense unless and until the Parties have complied 



with the processes for approving payment of Local Expenses that is set forth in Section 
Vll(ii) below. 

11. IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT: The Project will be administered by ALDOT and 
the costs thereof will be financed, when eligible for Federal participation, on the basis of 
80% federal CMAQ Funds and 20% local funds. Mountain Brook agrees to enter the 
ALDOT/MB Agreements and make the payments to ALDOT contemplated in such 
Agreements or incur other Local Expense, subject to the terms and covenants herein. 

111. PURPOSE/SHARlNG OF LOCAL EXPENSE. The Parties agree that, for purposes of 
this Agreement, the benefits of the Project are equally proportionate to both jurisdictions. 
Accordingly, Birmingham will equally share the Local Expense incurred by Mountain 
Brook on the Project and reimburse it for 50% of those costs. 

IV. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement will become effective on the date on which the last 
of all of the following has occurred: (1) Birmingham's City Council has approved an 
ordinance authorizing Birmingham to enter into this Agreement; (2) Mountain Brook's 
City Council has approved an ordinance authorizing Mountain Brook to enter into this 
Agreement; (3) the respective, duly authorized representatives of the Parties have 
executed this Agreement; (4) Mountain Brook has executed the ALDOTiMB 
Agreements; and (5) as contemplated in Act 1969-916, a copy of this Agreement, fully 
executed, is properly filed with the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama and 
with the Alabama Secretary of State (the "Effective Date"). 

V. TERM. This Agreement shall commence on its Effective Date and continue in effect for 
five (5) years thereafter or until Project is completed, whichever first occurs; provided 
that, if the Project is not completed at the end of the initial five year term, this Agreement 
will be automatically renewed on the terms stated herein for an additional renewal period 
of three (3) years. If the Project is not completed by the end of the first renewal term, the 
Parties will engage in good faith negotiations to further extend this Agreement for the 
period required to complete the Project. 

VI. ESTIMATED COSTS OF PROJECT. As of the Effective Date, the estimated costs and 
expected sources of funding for design, plan and construct the Project are as follows: 

I Type Expense Total Estimated 

, 

! 

$360,000 
$5 15,000 

$500,000 
$2,116,000 

$3,49 1,000 

ROW Acquisit. 
Preliminary 
Engineering 
Utilities 
Construction 
(incl inspection) 

TOTAL 

Estimated Fed. 
CMAQ Funding 

$288,000 
$41 2,000 

$400,000 
$1,692,800 

$2,792,800 

Estimated 
Bham Funding 

Estimated Mt. 
Bk. Funding 

$36,000 
$5 1,500 

$50,000 
$2 1 1,600 

$349, I00 

$36,000 
$5 1,500 

$50,000 
$2 1 1,600 

$349,100 



The Parties acknowledge and understand that the above amounts are estimates only. 
In the event the final costs of the Project exceed the estimated levels, Birmingham 
and Mountain Brook will be responsible for sharing in and paying the actual expenses 
incurred on the Project and sharing the Local Expense on the proportional bas is and  
uti l izing the process described below. 

VII. PROCESS FOR APPROVING, PAYMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK FOR LOCAL EXPENSE. 

(i) Each Party will designate a senior level representative who wilI be 
responsible for administration of its respective organization's 
responsibilities under this Agreement (the "Contract Administrator"). 

(ii) Mountain Brook promptly will forward to Birmingham's Contract 
Administrator any invoices or other requests for payment that it receives 
fi-om ALDOT, and provide Birmingham advance written notice of any 
other Local Expense amount it anticipates spending on the Project. Prior 
to any payment of those amounts by Mountain Brook, the Contract 
Administrators for each Party will consult and certify in writing that the 
invoiced amount or other amount that Mountain Brook intends to pay is 
proper and should be paid by Mountain Brook. Such consultation and 
certification shall occur not less than 10 days before any such payment is 
due. 

If any dispute, disagreement or conflict arises between the Parties as to (a) 
the refusal or failure by Birmingham to certify or approve payment by 
Mountain Brook of a Local Expense or (b) whether Mountain Brook 
should make a Local Expense payment that it is required by ALDOT to 
make (collectively, a "Payment Dispute"), the Parties agree to resolve 
such Payment Dispute as follows. The Payment Dispute first shall be 
submitted to the Mayor of Birmingham and City Manager of Mountain 
Brook for consideration and potential resolution by those officials. If 
those officials do not resolve the Payment Dispute within twenty (20) days 
after submission to them, either Party may request that the Payment 
Dispute be submitted for resolution in a non-binding mediation before a 
neutral third party that is mutually acceptable to the Parties. The 
provisions of 8 6-6-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, shall apply with respect to 
any such mediation, except that the expense of any such mediation shall 
be equally shared between the Parties and each Party shall be responsible 
for its own attomey fees and other costs in such mediation. If the Payment 
Dispute is not resolved mediation, the dispute resolution process shall be 
litigation in Jefferson County Circuit Court; provided that, in any such 
litigation, each Party agrees to waive any right to a jury trial and the 
prevailing Party in any such litigation shall be entitled to recover from the 
other Party the reasonable attomey fees and any costs of court that the 
prevailing party incurs in that action. 



(iii) Following the above-described confirmation and certification or the 
resolution of a Payment Dispute determining that Mountain Brook 
should pay the Local Expense amount in dispute, Mountain Brook will 
pay the amount due ALDOT under the ALDOTIMB Agreements or 
due others for any Local Expense and promptly notify Birmingham, in 
writing, upon making any such payment. 

(iv) No later than ten (10) days following each such payment, Birmingham 
will remit to Mountain Brook 50% of the amount of any Local 
Expense payment made by it. If requested by Birmingham, Mountain 
Brook will submit and deliver to Birmingham's Contract 
Representative an invoice evidencing the amount to be remitted by 
Birmingham. 

VIII. DEFAULT. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any material breach, delay or 
other failure by either of them to perform their respective obligations hereunder (a 
"Default", which includes, but is not limited to, any delay by Birmingham in 
reimbursing Mountain Brook for amounts payable by Birmingham hereunder) will 
have a detrimental impact on the operations of the other Party. Consequently, in the 
event of a Default by either Party hereunder, the following understandings apply: 

(i) Default Interest. Simple interest shalI accrue on any delinquent amount 
payable by one Party to the other hereunder at the rate of 6% per annum 
until the delinquency is satisfied; and 

(ii) If the non-defaulting Party files litigation to enforce its rights hereunder 
and prevails in that proceeding, the defaulting Party shall reimburse the 
non-defaulting Party for all reasonable attorney's fees and costs of 
litigation that it incurs to remedy any such Default; and 

(iii) If the defaulting Party fails to cure the Default within sixty (60) days after 
receipt of written notice thereof from the non-defaulting Party, the non- 
defaulting Party, in addition to all other remedies available to it at law or 
provided herein, may terminate this Agreement effective immediately 
upon its provision of a second written notice. 

IX. MISCELLANEOUS. 

a. Each municipality shall duly appropriate and finance their anticipated respective costs for 
the Local Expense of the Project from their Capital Improvement Funds, Gasoline Tax 
Funds, General Fund or other sources they deem appropriate. The failure of either Party 
to make such appropriations shall not relieve Mountain Brook of its obligations to make 
payments for Local Expense due ALDOT under the ALDOT!MB Agreements or 
Birmingham of its obligation to pay and reimburse Mountain Brook for amounts owed 
and due it hereunder. 



b. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Parties expressly agree that, following the 
construction of the Project, neither of them assume any risk or future liability, or any 
future responsibility for maintaining any portion of the Roundabout improvement that is 
located outside their respective jurisdiction. 

c. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, no Party shall have any power to incur 
any debt which shall become the responsibility of any other contracting party. 

d. The execution of this Agreement or the performance of any act pursuant to the provisions 
thereof shall not be deemed or construed to have the effect of creating between the 
Parties the reIationship of principal or agent or of partnership or of joint venture. 

e. Except as otherwise provided by law and as limited by this Agreement between the 
parties, any entity which contracts to perform or exercise any service or power pursuant 
to this chapter shall have the full power and authority to act within the jurisdiction of all 
contracting entities to the extent necessary to cany out the purposes of the Agreement. 

f. This Agreement shall not take effect until it has been approved by the governing body of 
each Party. Approval shall be by adoption of an ordinance of general and permanent 
operation. 

g. This Agreement may be executed (a) in counterparts, a complete set of which together 
shall constitute an original and (b) in duplicates, each of which shall constitute an 
original. Copies of this Agreement showing the signatures of the respective parties, 
whether produced by photographic, digital, computer, or other reproduction, may be used 
for all purposes as originals. 

h. With respect to immigration law compliance, the Parties represent and warrant to the 
other that: 

(i) they do not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to 
employ, in Alabama, an "unauthorized alien," as defined by the 
Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, 53 1- 
13- 1, el seq., Code of Alabama 1975, as amended (the "Act"); 

(ii) they will enroIl in the E-Verify program prior to performing any work 
on the Project in Alabama and shall provide documentation 
establishing that the Party is enrolled in the E-Verify program. During 
the performance of this Agreement, Parties shall participate in the E- 
Verify program as required under the terms of the Act and shall verify 
every employee in Alabama that is required to be verified according to 
the applicable federal rules and regulations; 

(iii) they will comply with all applicable provisions of the Act with respect 
to subcontractors, if any, that they engage on the Project by entering 



into an agreement with or by obtaining an affidavit fiom such 
subcontractors providing work for the Party on the Project in Alabama 
that such subcontractors are in compliance with the Act with respect to 
their participation in the E-verify program. Parties represent and 
warrant that they shall not hire, retain or contract with any 
subcontractor to work on the Project in Alabama which the Party 
knows is not in compliance with the Act; and 

(iv) by signing this contract, the contracting Parties affirm, for the duration 
of the Agreement, that they will not violate federal immigration law or 
knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an 
unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore a Party 
found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of 
the agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting 
therefrom. 

i. SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this agreement is declared by a court having 
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining tenns 
and provisions shaIl not be affected; the rights and obligations of the parties shall be 
construed and enforced as if the agreement did not contain the particular provision held to 
be invalid. 

j. GOVERNING LAW: This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Alabama as interpreted by Alabama Courts. 

k. ADDITIONAL UNDERSTANDING ON ROW ACQUISITION SERVICES. 
Notwithstanding any tenns or provisions in the Agreement for Right of Way Acquisition 
to be executed by Mountain Brook, ALDOT representatives have expressed a willingness 
to perfom the ROW acquisition function for the Project that is needed to acquire land 
that lies in Birmingham and Mountain Brook. If ALDOT performs those services, the 
Parties agree that ALDOT will be paid the Local Expense portion of costs incurred in 
those operations in a manner that is consistent with the payment process contemplated 
herein. However, if ALDOT does not perform the ROW acquisition services for the 
Project, the Parties agree to jointly contract with a mutually acceptable third party 
contractor to obtain those services from that contractor. 

(Signature Page Follows) 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their undersigned, duly authorized representatives as reflected below. 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 

Date 
BY: 

William A. Bell, Sr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY LAW DEPARTMENT: 

Assistant City Aaorncy 1 nYc 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Date 
BY: 

Lawrence Terry Oden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



R W  Bentley 
GOVERNOR 

ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

EAST CENTRAL REGION 
1 DO CORPORAE PARKWAY 

SUITE 450 
HOOVER, AL 35242 
P.O. BOX 382348 

BIRMINGHAM, AL 35238-2348 
TELEPHONE: (205) 3274962 

June 24,2015 

The Honorable Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 
City Hall 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

RE: Jefferson County 
Project No. CMAQ-3715( ) 
Proj. Ref. No. 100064199 
Intersection Improvements Cahaba Road/ 
US-280/Culver Road/Lane Park Road 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

I have enclosed the original Preliminary Engineering Agreement (and one copy) between the State of 
Alabama and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama for the above referenced project. 

This Agreement is submitted to the City for approval. After execution by the City Council, please return 
the original document and the copy, with original signature and the City Seal afflxed to both to this 
office for further handing. A certified resolution, which authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement, 
affixed with the City Seal should be included with the original Agreement, as well as with the copy. 

If I can supply you with any additional information or clarify any paint contained herein, please feel free 
to contact me at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

Ddanris Leonard, P.E. 
East Central Region Engineer 

MT/t rs 
Enclosure 
C: Mrs. Sandra F. P. Bonner 

File w/encl. 

By: - -  
Lance Taylor, P.E. 
Asst. Region Engineer, Pre-Construction 



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 

BETWEEN THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
AND 1 ,  - -.. 

r . 3  I-itIN 15 qy3:67 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Project CMAQ-3715 ( ) 
Project Reference Number 100064199 

Intcrscction Improvements Cahaba Road/US-28O/Culver RoadLane Park Road 
in the City of Mountain Brook 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Alabama, 

acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as 

STATE; and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereinafter referred to as CITY, in 

cooperation with the United States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway 

Administration, hereinafter referred to as the FH WA; and 

WHEREAS, a Transportation lrnprovement Program has been developed for the 

Birmingham Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are listed 

therein; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the STATE and the CITY to cooperate toward 

the implementation of the Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the STATE and the CITY desire to cooperate in a preliminary engineering 

program for intersection improvements Cahaba Raad/US-280/Culver RoadILane Park Road in 

the City of Mountain Brook. 

WHEREAS, Federal transportation hnds are dedicated specifically to the Birmingham 

area by the 2012 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21" Century Act (MAP-21), as directed by 

the Birmingham Metropolitan Planning Organizalion (MPO), and hereinafter referred to as 

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvements Program Funds (CMAQ). 



NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for, and in consideration of the premises stated 

herein do hereby mutually promise, stipulate, and agree as follows: 

( I )  The CITY will perform or have performed all services required to fblfill the purposes of 

this Agreement. The East Central Region of the Department of Transportation will be the 

lead agency for the STATE relative to the work under this Agreement and will be point 

of contact for the CITY. 

(2) This Agreement will cover only the preliminary engineering phase of the work. 

(3) The preliminary engineering phase is hereby defined as that work necessary to advance 

the development of the Project through construction authorization by the FHWA. The 

preliminary engineering will be performed by or for the CITY and will incIude all 

environmental studies and documentation required by FHWA. 

(4) Funding for this Agreement is subject to availabiIity of Federal Aid hnds at the time of 

authorization by FHWA. 

(5 )  The project will be financed, when eligible for Federal participation, on the basis of 80 

percent Federal funds and 20 percent CITY funds. The estimated cost and participation 

by the various parties is as follows: 

Tot a1 Estimated Estimated 
Estimated Federal CITY 

Cost - - Funds Funds 
PreIiminary Engineering 

TOTAL $5 1 5,000 $4 1 2,000 $1 03,000 

It is understood that the above is an estimate only, and in the event the final cost exceeds 

the estimate, the CITY will be responsible for its proportional share of the final cost. It is 

expressly understood by both parties of this Agreement that all Federal funds will be 

CMAQ hnds, attributable to the Binningharn area. 



The STATE will assist the CITY in any public involvement action that may be required. 

The ClTY will invoice the STATE for the Federal share of the preliminary engineering 

costs not more frequently than monthly. Requests for reimbursements will be made on 

forms provided by the STATE and submitted through the East Central Region Engineer 

for payment. 

Invoices for any phase of work performed by the CITY under the terns of this 

Agreement will be submitted within twelve (1 2) months after the completion and 

acceptance by the STATE of the work. Any invoices submitted after this twelve-month 

period will not be eligibIe for payment. 

Any cost for work not eligible for Federal participation will be financed 100 percent by 

the CITY, which payment wilt be reflected in the fina1 audit. 

The CITY agrees that in the event the FHWA determines, due to rules andlor regulations 

of FHWA (including but not limited to delay of the projects, or delay of projects 

contemplated to be developed and accomplished in sequence to the current projects) that 

the Federal finds expended on this Project must be refbnded to the FHWA, the CITY 

will reimburse and pay to the STATE a sum of money equal to the total amount of 

STATE and Federal funds expended under this Agreement. 

Any services of the STATE necessary to carry out the intent of this Agreement will be 

paid as provided for herein. 

The performance of the work covered by this Agreement will be in accordance with the 

current regulations and requirements of the STATE and FHWA. 

The STATE will provide without cost to the CITY information available from its records 

that will facililate the performance of the work. 



It is clearly understood by both parties that the STATE does not commit any STATE or 

Federal Cunds beyond those mentioned herein and that a separate agreement will be 

required for the construction of the proposed improvement. 

A final audit will be made of all project records after the completion of the project and a 

copy will be h i s h e d  to the Department of Examiners of Public Accounls, in accordance 

with Act 1994, No. 94414. A final financial settlement will be made between the parties 

as reflected by the final audit and this Agreement. 

The CITY will be responsible at all times for all of the work performed under this 

Agreement and, the CITY will protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the State of 

AIabama, the Alabama Department of Transportation, the officials, ofhers, and 

employees, in both their official and individual capacities, and their agents andlor 

assigns, from and against any and ali action, damages, claims, loss, liabilities, attorney's 

fees or expense whatsoever or any amount paid in compromise thereof arising out of or 

connected with the work performed under this Agreement. 

By entering into this Agreement, the CITY is not an agent of [he STATE, its officers, 

employees, agents or assigns. The CITY is an independent entity from the STATE and 

nothing in this Agreement creates an agency relationship between the parties. 

By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the Agreement, 

that they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for 

employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 

Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be 

deemed in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting 

therefrom. 



(19) The terms of this Agreement may be modified by supplemental agreement duly executed 

by the parties hereto. 

(20) This Agreement will remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated by either party upon 

the delivery of a thirty (30) day notice of termination. 

(21) Nothing will be construed under the terms of this Agreement by the STATE or the ClTY 

that will cause any conflict with Section 23-1-63, Code of Alabama (7R41h Law). 

(22) Exhibits M and N are attached and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto cause this Agreement to be executed by those 
officers, officials, and persons thereunto duly authorized, and the Agreement is deemed to be dated 
and to be effective on the date stated hereinafter as the date of the approval of the Governor of 
Alabama. 

SEAL 

ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAM BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: - - 

City Clerk (Signature) Mayor (Signature) 

Type name of Clerk Type name of Mayor 

THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN LEGALLY REVIEWED 
AND APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

Chief Counsel, Jim R. Ippolito, Jr. 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

East Central Region Engineer, Delarvis Leonard, P. E, 

Multimodal Transportation Engineer, 
Robert 1. Jilla 

Chief Engineer, Ronald L. Baldwin, P. E. STATE OF ALABAMA 
ACTING BY AND THROUGII. THE 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Transportation Director, John R. Cooper 

The foregoing Agreement is hereby approved by the Governor of the State of Alabama 
this d a y  of ,20-. 



CERTIFICATION 

Exhibit M 

This certification is applicable to the instrument to which it is attached whether attached 
directly or indirectly with other attachments to such instrument. 

The prospective participantlrecipient, by causing the signing of and the submission of this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable 
under Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, and the person signing same for and on behalf of the 
prospective participantlrecipient each respectiveIy certify that to the best of the knowledge and 
belief of the prospective participant or recipient and of the person signing for and on behalf of 
the prospective participantlrecipient, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated finds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the prospective participantlrecipient or the person signing on behalf of the participantlrecipient as 
mentioned above, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an oficer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated finds have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an oficer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, the prospective participantlrecipient shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 3 I ,  U. S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $1 00,000 for each such failure. 

The prospective participantkecipient also agrees by submitting this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, that the prospective participant/recipient shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 
and that all such subrecipients shall certifL and disclose accordingly. 



EXHIBIT N 

FUNDS SHALL NOT BE CONSTITUTED AS A DEBT 

It is agreed that the terms and commitments contained herein shall not be constituted as a debt of 
the State of Alabama in violation of Article 1 1, Section 2 13 of the Constitution of Alabama, 
1901, as amended by Amendment Number 26. It is further agreed that if any provision of this 
agreement shall contravene any statute or Constitutional provision of amendment, either now in 
effect or which may, during the course of  this agreement, be enacted, then the conflicting 
provision in the agreement shall be deemed null and void. 

TERMINATION DUE TO INSUFFICIENT FUNDS 

If the agreement term is to exceed more than one fiscal year, then said agreement is subject to 
termination in the event that funds should not be appropriated for the continued payment of the 
agreement in subsequent fiscal years. 

In the event of proration of the fund from which payment under this agreement is to be made, 
agreement will be subject to temination. 

ADR CLAUSE 

For any and all disputes arising under the terms of this contract, the parties hereto agree, in 
compliance with the recommendations of the Governor and Attorney General, when considering 
settlement of such disputes, to utilize appropriate forms of non-binding alternative dispute 
resolution including, but not limited to, mediation by and through the Attorney General Office of 
Administrative Hearings or where appropriate, private mediators. 



RESOLUTION MIMBER 20 1 5-1 6 5  

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama as 
follows: 

1. That the City enter into an Agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 
through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Preliminary engineering program, Project CMAQ-3715 ( ), Project Reference 
Number 100064 I99 for intersection improvements Cahaba RoadlLTS-280!Culver 
RoadLane Park Road in the City of Mountain Brook; which Agreement is before 
this Counci 1. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on 
its behalf. 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 
thereto. 

BE IT FURTNER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
Agreement by a11 parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

Passed, adopted and approved this day of 3 20 -- 
ATTESTED: 

City Clerk Mayor 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, 
AIabama, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of 
such Council held on the day of ,20 - and that such 
resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office. 

M WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and a x e d  the official 
seal of the City on this day of 9 20 -- 

City Clerk 



Robert Bentley 
GOVERNOR 

DEPARTMENT OFTRANSPORTATION 
EAST CENTRAL REGION 

100 CORPORATE PARKWAY 
SUITE 450 

HOOVER, AL 35242 
P.O. BOX 382346 

BIRMINGHAM. AL 3523&234B 
TELEPHONE: (205) 327-4962 

June 24,2015 

Jdm R. Cwper 
TRANSPORTATMN DIRECTOR 

The Honorable Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 
City Hall 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

RE: Jefferson County 
Project No. CMAQ-3715( ) 
Pro]. Ref. No. 100064200 
Intersection lmpravements Cahaba Road/ 
US-28O/Culver RoadILane Park Road 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

I have enclosed the original Right of Way Acquisition Agreement (and one copy) between the State of 
Alabama and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama for the above referenced project. 

This Agreement is submitted to the City for approval. After execution by the City Council, please return 
the original document and the copy, with original signature and the City Seal affixed to both to this 
oHice for further handing. A certified resolution, which authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement, 
afnxed with the City Seal should be included with the original Agreement, as well as with the copy. 

If I can supply you with any additional information or clarify any point contalned herein, please feel free 
to contact me at  your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

DeJarvis Leonard, P.E. 
East Central Region Engineer 

LAT/trs 
Enclosure 
C: Mrs. Sandra F. P. Bonner 

File w/end. 

v 
Lance Taylor, P.E. 
Asst. Region Engineer, Pre-Construction 



AGRIEErnNT 
FOR 

RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION 

BETWEEN THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
AND 

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Project CMAQ-3715 ( ) 
Project Reference Number 100064200 

Intersection Improvements Cahaba RoadlllS-280fCulver RoadLane Park Road 
in the City of Mountain Brook 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Alabama, 

acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as 

STATE; and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereinafier referred to as CITY, in 

cooperation with the United States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway 

Administration, hereinafter referred to as the FHWA; and 

WHEREAS, a Transportation Improvement Program has been developed for the 

Birmingham Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are listed 

therein; and 

WEREAS, it is in the public interest for the STATE and the CITY to cooperate toward 

the implementation of the Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the STATE and CITY desire to cooperate in a right-of-way acquisition 

program for intersection improvements Cahaba Road/US-280/Culver Road/Lane Park Road in 

the City of Mountain Brook. 

WHEREAS, Federal transportation funds are dedicated specifically to the Birmingham 

area by the 20 12 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 2 Is' Century Act (MAP-21), as directed by 

the Birmingham Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), and hereinafter referred to as 

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Pragram Funds (CMAQ). 



NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for, and in consideration of the premises stated 

herein do hereby mutually promise, stipulate, and agree as follows: 

(1) This Agreement will cover only the right-of-way acquisition phase of the work. 

(2) The right-of-way purchased under terms of this Agreement will be acquired by the ClTY 

and in accordance with current regulations of the STATE and FHWA. The CITY will 

adhere to all STATE and FHWA regulations pertaining to the acquisition of ROW and 

will coordinate their activities with the Region Acquisition Manager for guidance. The 

property will be acquired in the name of the ClTY with any condemnation or other legal 

proceedings being performed by the CITY. 

(3) The STATE shall follow all Federal regulations related to the Management, Leasing, and 

Disposal of right-of-way, uneconomic remnants and excess right-of-way as found in CFR 

23 471 0 Subpart D. Proceeds from Leases and Disposals shall be credited ro the Project 

or to the Title 23 Collector Account. 

(4) Funding for this Agreement is subject to availability of Federal Aid funds at the time of 

authorization by FHWA. Any deficiency in Federal Aid, or overrun in the Project costs 

will be borne by the CITY. In the event of an under run in the Project costs, the amount 

of Federal Aid funds will be 80 percent of eligible cosls. 

( 5 )  This Project will be administered by the STATE and all costs will be financed, when 

eligible for Federal participation, on the basis of 80 percent Federal funds and 20 percent 

CITY funds. The estimated cost and participation by the various parties are as follows: 

Estimated Estimated 
Total Federal c m  

Estimated EM& D!Il!& 
Right-of-way acquisition 

TOTAL 



It is understood that the above is an estimate only, and in the event the final cost exceeds 

the estimate, the ClTY will be responsible for its proportional share. It is expressly 

understood by both parties of this Agreement that all Federal hnds wilI be CMAQ funds, 

attributable to the Birmingham area. 

(6) Any cost for work not eligible for Federal reimbursement will be financed 100 percent by 

the CITY, which payment will be reflected in the final audit. 

(7) The CITY agrees that in the event the FHWA determines, due to rules and/or regulations 

of FHWA (including but not limited to delay of the projects, or delay of projects 

contemplated to be developed and accomplished in sequence to the current projects) that 

Federal funds expended on this Project must be refhded to the FHWA, the ClTY will 

reimburse and pay to the STATE a sum of money equal to the total amount of STATE 

and Federal funds expended under this Agreement. 

(8) The CITY will invoice the STATE for the Federa1 share of right-of-way acquisition costs 

not more frequently than monthly. Requests for reimbursements will be made on forms 

provided by the STATE and submitted through the East Central Region Engineer for 

payment. 

(9)  Invoices for any phase of work performed by the ClTY under the terms of this 

Agreement will be submitted within twelve (12) months after completion and acceptance 

by the STATE of the work. Any invoices submitted after this twelve-month period wiIl 

not be eligible for payment. 

(10) The performance ofthe work covered by this Agreement will be in accordance with the 

current regulations and requirements of the STATE and FHWA. 

(1 1) The ClTY will assist the STATE, if necessary, in any public involvement actions that 

may be required. 



The CITY will provide without cost to the STATE, information avaiIable from its records 

that will facilitate the performance of the work. 

It is clearly understood by the parties that the STATE does not commit any STATE or 

Federal funds beyond those mentioned herein and that a separate Agreement will be 

required for the construction of the proposed improvement. 

A final audit will be made of all Project records after completion of the Project and a 

copy will be furnished to the Department of Examiners of Public Accounts, in accordance 

with Act 1994, No, 94-414. A final financial settlement will be made between the parties 

as reflected by the audit and this Agreement. 

The CITY will be responsible at all times for all of the work performed under this 

Agreement and, the CITY will protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the State of 

Alabama, the Alabama Department of Transportation, the officials, officers, and 

employees, in both their official and individual capacities, and their agents and/or 

assigns, from and against any and all action, damages, claims, loss, liabilities, attorney's 

fees or expense whatsoever or any amount paid in compromise thereof arising out of or 

connected with the work performed under this Agreement. 

By entering into this Agreement, the CITY is not an agent of the STATE, its officers, 

employees, agents or assigns. The CITY is an independent entity from the STATE and 

nothing in this Agreement creates an agency relationship between the parties, 

By signing this contract, the contracting parties afirm, for the duration of the Agreement, 

that they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for 

employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 

Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be 



deemed in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting 

therefrom. 

(1 8) The terms of this A~eement  may be modified by supplemental agreement duly executed 

by the parties hereto. 

(19) This Agreement will remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated by either party upon 

the delivery of a thirty (30) day notice of termination, 

(20) Nothing will be construed under the terms of this Agreement by the STATE or the CITY 

that will cause any conflict with Section 23-1-63, Code of Alabama (7/24' Law). 

(21) Exhibits M and N are attached and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto cause this Agreement to be executed by those 
officers, officials, and persons thereunto duly authorized, and the Agreement is deemed to be dated 
and to be effective on the date stated hereinafter as the date of approval of rhe Governor of Alabama. 

SEAL 

ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAM BROOK, ALABAMA 

BY:, 
City Clerk (Signature) Mayor (Signature) 

Type name of Clerk Type name of Mayor 

THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN LEGALLY REVIEWED 
AND APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

BY: 
Chief Counsel, Jim R. Ippolito, Jr. 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

East Central Region Engineer, DeJwis Leonard, P. E. 

Mullimodal Transportation Engineer, 
Robert J. Jilla 

Chief Engineer, Ronald L. Baldwin, P. E. STATE OF ALABAMA 
ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATJON 

Transportation Director, John R cooper 

The foregoing Agreement i s  hereby approved by the Governor of the State of Alabama this 
- day of ,20-. 

GOVERNOR OF ALABAMA, ROBERT BENTLEY 



Exhibit M 
CERTIFICATION 

This certification is applicable to the instrument to which it is attached whether attached 
directly or indirectly with other attachments to such instrument. 

The prospective participantlrecipient, by causing the signing of and the submission of this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable 
under Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, and the person signing same for and on behalf of the 
prospective! participantlrecipient each respectively certifjr that to the best of the knowtedge and 
belief of the prospective participant or recipient and of the person signing for and on behalf of 
the prospective participant/recipient, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the prospective participantfrecipient or the person signing on behalf of the parlicipantlrecipient as 
mentioned above, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in co~ec t ion  with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of my Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any fbnds other than FederaI appropriated h d s  have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 31, U. S, Code, the prospective participantlrecipient shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions, 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $1 00,000 for each such failure. 

The prospective participanvrecipient also agrees by submitting this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 3 1, U, S. Code, that the prospective participant/recipient shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in a11 lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 
and that all such subrecipients shall certifL and disclose accordingly. 



FUNDS SHALL NOT BE CONSTITUTED AS A DEBT 

It is agreed that the terms and commitments contained herein shall not be constituted as a debt of 
the State of Alabama in violation of Article 1 1, Section 2 13 of the Constitution of Alabama, 
1901, as amended by Amendment Number 26. It is firrther agreed that if any provision of this 
agreement shall contravene any statute or Constitutional provision of amendment, either now in 
effect or which may, during the course of this agreement, be enacted, then the conflicting 
provision in the agreement shall be deemed null and void. 

TERMINATION DUE TO INSUFFICIENT FUNDS 

If the agreement term is to exceed more than one fiscal year, then said agreement is subject to 
termination in the event that funds should not be appropriated for the continued payment of the 
agreement in subsequent fiscal years. 

In the event of proration of the hnd from which payment under this agreement is to be made, 
agreement will be subject to termination. 

ADR CLAUSE 

For any and all disputes arising under the terms of this contract, the parties hereto agree, in 
compliance with the recommendations of the Governor and Attorney General, when considering 
settlement of such disputes, to utilize appropriate forms of non-binding alternative dispute 
resolution including, but not limited to, mediation by and through the Attorney General Office of 
Administrative Hearings or where appropriate, private mediators. 



RESOLUTlQN NUMBER 20 I ('-1 66 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama as 
follows: 

I .  That the City enters into an Agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 
through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Right-of-way acquisition program for Project CMAQ-3715 ( ), Project Reference 
Number 100064200 for intersections improvements Cahaba Road/US-28OKulver 
Road/Lane Park Road in the City of Mountain Brook; which Agreement is before 
this Council. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on 
its behalf, 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 
thereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

Passed, adopted and approved this day of ,20 -- 
ATTESTED: 

City Clerk Mayor 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution - - 
passed and adopted by thicity Council of the City named thenin, at a regular meeting of 
such Council held on the day of '20 -, and that such 
resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office. 

M WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on the day of ,20 ,-. 

City Clerk 



ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF f RANSPORTATION 

EAST CENTRAL REGION 
100 CORPORATE PARKWAY 

SUITE 450 
HOOVER. At 35242 
P.O. BOX 362348 

BIRMINGHAM, AL 35238-2348 
TELEPHONE: (205) 327-4962 

June 24,2015 

John R. Cooper 
TRANSWRTATlON OlRECmR 

The Honorable Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 
City Hall 
P.0, Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

RE: Jefferson County 
Prolect No, CMAQ-3715( ) 
Proj. Ref. No. 100064201 
Proj. Ref. No. 100064202 
Intersection Improvements Cahaba Road/ 
US-28O/Culver Road/Lane Park Road 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

I have enclosed the original Utility and Construction Agreement (and one copy) between the State of 
Alabama and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama for the above referenced project. 

This Agreement is submitted to the City for approval. After execution by the City Council, please return 
the original document and the copy, with original signature and the City Seal affixed to both to this 
afflce for further handing, A certified resolution, which authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement, 
afflxed with the City Seal should be included with the original Agreement, as welt as with the copy. 

If I can supply you with any additional information or clarify any point contained herein, please feel free 
to contact me at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

Delarvis Leonard, P.E. 
East Central Region Engineer 

LAT/trs 
Enclosure 
C: Mrs. Sandra F. P. Bonner 

File w/encl. 

lance Taylor, P.E. LJ 
Asst. Region Engineer, Pre-Construction 



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

UTILlTY AND CONSTRUCTION 

BETWEEN THE STATE OF ALABAMA f - I  c ~ 1 ~ 9  -pj,,b~::~? 
L...! < r f - 

AND 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Project CMAQ-3715 () 
Project Reference Number 100064201 
Project Reference Number 100064202 

Intersection Improvements Cahaba Road/US-280fCulvcr RoadILane Park Road 
in the City of Mountain Brook 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Alabama, acting 

by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as STATE; and the 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereinafter referred to as CITY; in cooperation with the United 

States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, hereinafter refemed to as the 

FHWA; and 

WHEREAS, a Transportation improvement Program has been developed for the Birmingham 

Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are listed therein; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the STATE and the CITY to cooperate toward the 

implementation of the Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the STATE and CITY desire to cooperate in a utility and construction program 

for intersection improvements Cahaba Road/US-280~CuIver RoadtLane Park Road in the City of 

Mountain Brook. 

WHEREAS, Federal transportation knds are dedicated specificaHy LO the Birmingham area 

by the 2012 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 2 Is' Century Act (MAP-21), as directed by the 

Birmingham Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), and hereinafter referred to as Congestion 

Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program Funds (CMAQ). 



NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for, and in consideration of the premises stated 

herein do hereby mutually promise, stipulate, and agree as follows: 

(1) This Agreement will cover utilities and all aspects of construction for the proposed 

improvements, including construction engineering and inspection during the course of the 

work, all in accordance with plans approved by the STATE. 

(2) Funding for this Agreement is subject to avaiIability of Federal Aid finds at the time of 

authorization by FHWA. Any deficiency in Federa1 Aid, or overrun in construction costs will 

be borne by the CITY. In the event of an under run in construction costs, the amount of 

Federal Aid h d s  will be 80 percent of eligible costs. 

(3) The Project will be administered by the STATE and all cost will be financed, when eligible 

for Federal participation, on the basis of 80 percent Federal finds and 20 percent CITY hnds. 

The estimated cost and participation by the various parties are as follows: 

Estimated Estimated 
Total Federal elm 

Estimated - Funds - Funds 
Utilities $500,000 %400,000 % 100,000 
construction, including engineering 
snd inspection $2.1 16.000 $1.692.800 f 423.20Q 

TOTAL $2,6 1 6,000 $2,092,800 $523,200 

It is understood that the above is an estimate only, and in the event the final cost exceeds the 

estimate, the CITY will be responsible for its proportional share as above noted and the CITY 

agrees to pay same to STATE; or in the event the cost is less than the estimate, the CITY will 

receive a refirnd accordingly from the STATE. 

(4) Any cost for work not eligible for Federal reimbursement will be financed 100 percent by the 

CITY, which payment will be reflected in the final audit. It is expressly understood by both 



parties of this Agreement that a11 Federal funds will be CMAQ h d s ,  attributable to the 

Birmingham area. 

( 5 )  The ClTY will coordinate any required adjustments to utilities with the utility company 

involved in accordance with usual STATE procedures. Any utility expenses involved which 

are eligible for STATE reimbursement or payment under state law will be considered as a part 

of the Project cost and will be paid as provided herein, with the CITY paying its proportional 

share. The STATE will not be liable for utility expenses which are not eligible for STATE 

reimbursement or payment under state law. 

(6) The performance of the work covered by this Agreement will be in accordance with the 

current re ylations and requirements of the STATE and FHWA. 

(7) The construction of the improvements will be by contract and the STATE will be responsible 

for advertisement and receipt of bids and for the award of the contract. Following receipt of 

bids and prior to the award of the contract, the STATE will invoice the CITY for its prorata 

share of the estimated construction cost as reflected by the bid of the successfbl bidder plus 

engineering and inspection cost, and the CITY will promptly pay this estimated cost before 

award of the contract. The STATE will not award the contract until it is in receipt of the 

estimated cost payabIe by the ClTY as reflected by the bid of the successfbl bidder, plus the 

engineering and inspection cost. 

(8) Upon completion and acceptance of the work by the STATE, the CITY will assume full 

responsibility for maintenance of that part of the facility which is not part of the State 

Highway Maintenance Sys tern. 

(9) It is clearly understood by the parties that the STATE does not commit any STATE or Federal 

b d s  beyond those mentioned herein. 



(1 0) The CITY agrees that in the event the FHWA determines, under its rules and/or regulations 

that Federal funds expended on this Project (including but not limited to delay of the projects, 

or delay of projects contempIated to be developed and accomplished in sequence to the 

current projects) must be refunded to the FHWA, the CITY shall reimburse and pay to the 

STATE for and on behalf of FHWA, a sum of money equal to the total amount of STATE and 

Federal hnds expended under this Agreement. 

(1 1) A final audit will be made of dl Project records after completion of the Project and a copy 

will be furnished to the Department of Examiners of Public Accounts, in accordance with Act 

1994, No. 94-414. A final financial settlement will be made between the parties as reflected 

by the audit and this Agreement. 

(12) The CITY will be responsible at all times for all of the work performed under this Agreement 

and, the CITY will protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the State of Alabama, the 

Alabama Department of Transportation, the officials, officers, and employees, in both their 

official and individual capacities, and their agents andfor assigns, from and against any and all 

action, damages, claims, loss, liabilities, attorney's fees or expense whatsoever or any amount 

paid in compromise thereof arising out of or connected with the work performed under this 

Agreement. 

(1 3) By entering into this Agreement, the CITY is not an agent of the STATE, its offkers, 

employees, agents or assigns. The CITY is an independent entity from the STATE and 

nothing in this Agreement creates an agency relationship between the parties. 

(14) By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the Agreement, that 

they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or 

continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore, a 



contracting parry found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the 

Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 

(1 5) The terms of this Agreement may be modified by supplemental agreement duly executed by 

the parties hereto. 

(1 6) This Agreement will remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated by either party upon the 

deIivery of a thirty (30) day notice of termination. 

(1 7) Nothing will be construed under the terms of this Agreement by the STATE or h e  CITY that 

will cause any conflict with Section 23-1 -63, Code of Alabama (7/2@ Law). 

(1 8) Exhibits M and N are attached and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto cause this Agreement to be executed by those 
officers, officials, and persons thereunto duly authorized, and the Agreement is deemed to be dated 
and to be effective on the date stated hereinafter as the date of approval of the Governor of Alabama. 

SEAL 

ATTEST: ClTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

BY: _ 
City Clerk (Signature) Mayor (Signature) 

Type name of Clerk Type name of Mayor 

THIS AGREEMENT AS BEEN LEGALLY REVIEWED 
AND APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

BY: 
Chief Counsel, Jim R. Ippolito, Jr. 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

East Central Region Engineer, DeJarvis Leonard, P. E. 

Multimodal Transportation Engineer, 
Robert I. Jilla 

Chief Engineer, Ronald L. Baldwin, P. E. STATE OF ALABAMA 
ACTING BY AND THROUGH T H E  
ALABAMA DEPARThlENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Transportation Director, John R. Cooper 

The foregoing Agreement is hereby approved by the Governor of the State of Alabama this 
- day of 9 20 

GOVERNOR OF ALABAMA, ROBERT BENTLEY 



Exhibit M 
CERTIFICATION 

This certification is applicable to the instrument to which it is attached whether attached 
directly or indirectly with other attachments to such instrument. 

The prospective participanllrecipient, by causing the signing of and the submission of this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable 
under Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, and the person signing same for and on behalf of the 
prospective participant/recipient each respectively certify that to the best of the knowledge and 
belief of the prospective participant or recipient and of the person signing for and on behalf of 
the prospective participantlrecipient, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated hnds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the prospective parlicipant/recipient or the person signing on behalf of the participantJrecipient as 
mentioned above, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, the prospective participanttrecipient shall complete and 
submit Standard Farm-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $1 00,000 for each such failure. 

The prospective participant/recipient d s o  agrees by submitting this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, that the prospective participant/recipient shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $1 00,000 
and that all such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingty. 



EXHIBIT N 

FUNDS SHALL NOT BE CONSTITUTED AS A DEBT 

It is agreed that the terms and commitments contained herein shall not be constituted as a debt of 
the State of Alabama in violation of ArlicIe 1 1, Section 213 of the Constitution of AIabama, 
1901, as amended by Amendment Number 26. It is M h e r  agreed that if any provision of this 
agreement shall contravene any statute or Constitutional provision of amendment, either now in 
effect or which may, during the course of this agreement, be enacted, then the conflicting 
provision in the agreement shall be deemed null and void. 

TERMINATION DUE TO INSUFFICIENT FUNDS 

If the agreement term is to exceed more than one fiscal year, then said agreement is subject to 
termination in the event that funds should not be appropriated for the continued payment of the 
agreement in subsequent fiscal years. 

In the event of proration of the fund from which payment under this agreement is to be made, 
agreement will be subject to termination. 

ADR CLAUSE 

For any and all disputes arising under the terms of this contract, the parties hereto agree, in 
compliance with the recommendations of the Governor and Attorney General, when considering 
settlement of such disputes, to utilize appropriate forms of non-binding alternative dispute 
resolution including, but not limited to, mediation by and through the Attorney General Office of 
Administrative Hearings or where appropriate, private mediators. 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2015-1 67 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama as 

follows: 

1. That the City enters into an Agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 
through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Utility and construction program for Project CMAQ-3715 ( ), Project Reference 
Numbers 100064201 and 100064202 for intersection improvements Cahaba 
RoadiUS-28OICulver Road/Lane Park Road in the City of Mountain Brook; which 
Agreement is before this Council. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on 
its behalf. 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 
thereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

Passed, adopted, and approved this day of , 20 -a 

ATTESTED: 

City Clerk Mayor 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of 
such Council held on the day of ,20 , and that such 
resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office. 

M WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on the day of ,20 

City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 1943 

APPROVAL OF THE EDUCATIONAL DEGREE PREMIUM PAY PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 1 .VIII.G. OF THE PERSONNEL BOARD OF JEFFERSON COUNTY 

"SALARY ADMINISTATION GUIDE & PAY PLAN" 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as 
follows: 

SECTION 1. EDUCATIONAL DEGREE PREMIUM PAY PLAN. The City p?uncil hereby 
approves, subject to the a p p r o v a l  of the Personnel Board of Jefferson County L 1 

1, the payment of Educational Degr Premium 
Pay pursuant to Section 1 .VIII.G. of the Personnel Board of Jefferson County "Salary 
Administration Guide & Pay Plan" for qualiQing degrees earned from accredited institutions of 
higher education determined to be directly related to the responsibilities and duties of the 
incumbent's classified position as foflows: 

Class 
No. Job Title 
1082 Assistant City Manager/Finance Director 
5257 Building Inspections Superintendent I1 
5098 : Chief 111 

1 ectorofP1 ing and . * d l - .  =. dI 6093 Poltrr b a r  

8715 Public Works Director III 
8290 ParklRecreation Suoerintendent 

Sworn Fire and Police personnel excluding 
Chiefs (5098 and 6093) as specified in Fire 
Departmental Policy No. 106.06 and Police 
Departmental Policy No. 100-4-1 attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and B, respectively One Step Two Steps 

Note: Eligible employees may only receive one of the educational degree premiums; the 
premiums may not be combined. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of 
this ordinance are hereby expressty repealed. 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be 
held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate 
or impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in fhll force and effect 
notwithstanding such holding. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this ordinance shall be November 1, 
2015. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of November, 201 5. 

Council President 



APPROVED: This 9th day of November, 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, as its meeting held on November 9, 2015, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on November 19, 
2015, at the following public places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required 
by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 


	2015-Nov-9 Agenda
	1.   2015-Oct-26 minutes
	2.   2015-Nov-2 minutes
	3.   Transfer
	4.   Brook Manor street lights
	5a. JBSC Mental Health Authority
	5b. Exceptional Foundation
	5c. Jeff Co Historical Commission
	5d. Veterans' Memorial Foundation
	5e. Bham Museum of Art
	5f. Ala Symphony
	5g. Bham Botanical Society
	5h. Childrens' Theatre
	5i. Bham Zoo
	5j. Prescott House
	5k. McWane Science Center
	5l. Alabama Ballet
	6.   Mt. Royal Cir street light
	7.   ETC Institute resident survey
	8a. City of Bham Cost Share (e-mail)
	8a. Bham Cost Share (marked)
	8a. Bham Cost Share (clean)
	8b. ALDOT preliminary engineering
	8c. ALDOT right-of-way acquisition
	8d. ALDOT utility & construction
	9.   Educational incentive



